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Edward O’Brien Limited

Directors’ report

for the year ended 31 March 2005

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2005.

Principal activity

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of GUS plc and did not trade during the year.
Directors

The directors holding office during the year were:

P A Atkinson
P G Cooper

Directors’ interests

Mr Atkinson was a director of GUS Holdings Limited, the Company’s intermediate parent
undertaking, throughout the year and his interests in the ordinary shares of GUS plc, the
Company's ultimate parent undertaking, are disclosed in the financial statements of that
company.

The interests of Mr Cooper in the ordinary shares of GUS plc, the Company’s ultimate parent
undertaking, are shown in sections (a) and (b) below.

a) Share options
iy Details of options granted to Mr Cooper in respect of the ordinary shares of GUS pic, under
that company's executive share option schemes, are setf out in the table below.

Number  Options  Options Exercise  Date from Expiry Total

of options granted exercised price which date number of

at during the during the exercisable options at

1 April 2004 year year 31 March

2005

Mr P G Cooper

11.06.01 11,832 - 11,832 612.7p 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 4,632 - - 653.0p 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 4,663 - - 675.5p 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 - 4,078 - 809.2p 01.06.07 31.05.14

13,373




Edward O’'Brien Limited

Directors’ report {continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2005

Directors’ interests {continued)

iy Details of options granted to Mr Cooper in respect of the ordinary shares of GUS plc, under
that company’s Save As You Earn share option scheme, are set out in the table below.

Number of Exercise Date from which Expiry  Total number of
options at price exercisable date options at
1 April 2004 31 March 2005

Mr P G Cooper
09.02.01 2,197 384.0p 01.05.06 31.10.06
05.07.02 908 523.0p 01.09.05 28.02.06

b) Long term incentive plan - performance share plan

in addition Mr Cooper held deferred rights to acquire, at no cost, ordinary shares in GUS pilc,
under that company’s Performance Share Plan, subject to performance targets based on total
shareholder return. Awards under the Plan have been as follows:

Plan shares Plan shares Plan shares Vesting Total plan shares
awarded at awarded during released during date awarded at
1 April 2004 the year the year 31 March 2005
Mr P G Cooper
11.06.01 3,786 - 3,786  June 2004
31.07.02 6,381 . - - July 2005
19.06.03 4,663 - - June 2006
01.06.04 - 4,078 - June 2007
15,122

PG Cooper
Secretary
Date: 12 August 2005

The Works

5 Union Street
Manchester
M12 44D

D




Edward O’Brien Limited

Balance sheet at 31 March 2005

Note

Current assets

Amount owed by the parent undertaking

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital

Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ funds 890

For the year ended 31 March 2005 the Company was entitled to exemption under
section 240AA(1) of the Companies Act 1985.

Members have not required the Company to obtain an audit for the year ended 31 March
2005 in accordance with section 249B(2) of the Companies Act 1985.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

i) ensuring the Company keeps accounting records that comply with section 221 of
the Companies Act 1985; and
if) preparing accounts which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company at the end of the financial year, and its profit and loss for the financial
year, in accordance with the requirements of section 226 of the Companies Act
1985, and which otherwise comply with the reguirements of the Companies Act
relating to accounts, so far as applicable to the Company.

The financial statements on pages 3 and 4 were approved by the Board on 12 August
2005 and are signed on its behalf by:

P G Cooper
Director




Edward O’Brien Limited

Notes 1o the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2005

Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicabie accounting standards in the
United Kingdom.

Profit and loss account

The Company has not traded during the year and accordingly no profit and loss account
is presented. Any expenses have been borne by the ultimate parent undertaking.

Directors’ emoluments

None of the directors received any emoluments from the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2005 (2004 nif).

Subsidiary undertaking

The Company owns the whole of the issued share capital of Sleepyrest Limited, a
company registered in England and Wales, which did not trade during the year.
Group financial statements are not prepared, as permitted under Section 228 (2) of
the Companies Act 1985, as the Company is itself a wholly owned subsidiary of
another company (see note 6).

Called up share capital

2005 2004
£000 £000
Authorised:
40,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 40 40
Aliotted and fully paid:
24,300 Ordinary shares of £1 each 24 24

Ultimate parent undertaking

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking is GUS plc, which is registered in England
and Wales. Copies of its group financial statements can be obtained from The Secretary,
GUS pic, One Stanhope Gate, London, W1K 1AF.
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Exparian’s Business
Strategies division

is a market leader in
consumer profiling,
market segmentation
and economic forecasting

Sarah Willatts joined the
Business Strategles division
three years ago and is part
of the team that markets
Experian’s leading consumer

ciassification system, Mosaic.

GUS is committed to creating

long-term shareholder value
by focusing on businesses with
above average growth potential
and establishing leadership
positions in its chosen markets.
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Group overview

GUS is a retail and business services
group. Its activities comprise general
merchandise retailing through

Argos Retail Group, information and
customer relationship management
services through Experian and
fuxury goods through a majority
shareholding in Burberry Group plc.

Hey evenis Way 04 June [/ July 04
GUS employees share in Experian launches the UK's
£10m payout from GUS first national credit scere
Sharesave scheme for consumers
ARG opens new buying office Sara Weller Joins Argas as
in Shanghai managing director

Argos Retail Group

General merchandise retailing

Argos Retail Group (ARG) is the UK's leading mutti-
brand, multi-channel retailer. It delivers choice,
value and convenience through a unigue and
award-winning combination of stores, catalogues,
websites and home delivery options. ARG provides
this through its market leading brands:

Argos — the UK's most successful genaral

merchandise retailer

Homebase - one of the UK's leading home
enhancement companies

ARG Financial Services - providing financial
services, including the Argos and Homebase

store cards

Wehkamp - the largest home shapping
catalogue in the Netherlands

ARG leads its markets by leveraging its size and
strength to integrate and improve purchasing scale,
to share services and to provide multi-channet
capability across the business.

ARG employs 46,000 pecopie in the UK, Holland and

the Republic of Ireland.

August / September 04

Experian acquires Americas
Software Corperation, &
{eader in anti-money
laundering software

Partiafl flotation of Lewis
Group in South Africa

Experian secures £40m
contract from HBOS

Launch of Burberry Brit for Men

Octaber Q4

Experian acquires QAS, the
ieader in address management
software, for £30m

Experian acquires Simmons
Résearch, consumer research
specialists

Homebase launches trial of
Furniture Direct



Expearian
Information solutions

Experian has an unrivalied understanding of
individuals, markets and economies around the
world. It helps organisations to develop and manage
profitable customer retationships by providing
information, analysis, decision management solutions
and processing services,

Experian also promotes the financial wellbeing of
consumers by heiping them o understand and
protect their personal information and to manage
the financial aspects of key life events.

Experian is a strategic partner to more than 50,000
business clients across diverse industries, including
financial services, telecomemunications, healthcare,
insurance, retail, automotive, manufacturing, leisure,
utilities, e-commerce, property and government.

The company employs 12,000 people in 28 countries,
supporting clients in more than 60 countries.
Experian's headguarters are in Nottingham, UK and
Costa Mesa, California.

Novembar 7 December 04 January 05

GUS reports record
half-year profits

Argas Spring/Summar
catalogue cuts the cost

Burberry announces £250m of over 2,000 products

share repurchase programme Homebase becomes first UK DIY
ratailer to achieve FSC Chain of

Argos website is agatn the
Cusiody

maost frequently visited UK
high street retail website
in the ruen-up to Christmas

Mareh 05

Butberry
International luxury gocds

Burberry designs and markets a comprehensive range
of luxury clathing and accessories, which appeal ta
style-conscious consumers around the world,

Burberry products are sold through 157 directly-
operated stores, concessions and putlets, and
through partnerships with key retailers in the world's
leading economies.

The company employs approximately 4,000 people
around the world.

Burberrys principal strengths are its:
unique history and positioning
international recognition and broad appeal
diversified distribution channeis

= multiple product and geographic growth
opportunities

Lewis Group
South African retailing

Lewis Group is a leading retaiter in Southern Africa
selling household and electrical goods, mainly on
credit, together with associated financial products.

GUS undertook a partial flotation of Lewis Group
in October 2004. Its remaining 50% stake was
successfully placed in May 2005.

April 05

Don Robert and John
Loombe join board of GUS

Argos buys 33 Index stores

CUS completes £200m
share buyback programme

Argos scoops Store Manager of

the Year at Retaii Week Awards Experian faunches credit
Homebase Jaunches new Durezu In Russia

advertising campaign Experian develaps China's first

consumer classification system

* Before central activities
Operating profit is before
amertisation of goadwill
and exceptional ltems

CUS places remaining
50% stake in Lewis Group
Experian acquires
LowerMyRills.comn

GUS reparts fourth year of
double-digit prefit growth




Financial highlights

‘ before amortisation of goodwill and exceptianal items

10% increase in profit before amortisation of = 0% increase in full year dividend to 29.5p
goodwill, exceptional items and taxation 1c (2004:27.0p)
£910m (2004: £827m)}
+ 10.3% post-tax return on capital (2004:10.2%)
- Profit before 1ax increased to £693m
(2004: £692m) ~ Record profits again at Argos, Experian
and Burberry
. 5% increase in basic earnings per share before
amortisation of gopdwill and exceptiona! items Further initiatives 1o eshance shareholder value
to 63.8p (2004: 60.7p) ’

- Basic earnings per share 42,3p (2004: 47.4p)

GUS Annual Report 2005 1

Financial highlights

for the years ended 31 March 2005 2004 Change
Total sales £7.8bn £7.5bn up 3%
Profit before tax before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional items* £910m 1827m up 0%
Earnings per share before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional items 63.8p 60.7p up 3%
Dividend per share 29.5p 27.0p up 9%

* Cne-off Charges have been made cavering the Argos OFT fine (£16.2m) and Homebase rearganisation costs (£18,3m), Excluding these one-off charges, Croup PET was £9435m (up 14%).




2 GUS Annual Report 2005

Sir Victor Blank
Chairman

Chairman’s statement

GUS has made good progress again this year

The Graup has delivered another strong set of
results, achieving its fourth consecutive year of
double-digit profit growth, Profit before amortisation
of goedwiil, exceptional items and raxation was
£910m, an increase of i 0% cn the previous year.

We continued to invest in our busingsses to drive
profit growth, spending over £650m during the year,
targely on capital expenditure and acquisitions.

We also returned £200m to shareholders in a share
buyback programme, in addition to the proposed
full-year dividend of 29.5p (2004: 27.0p).

Delivering sustainable growth

The key to the Group’s success lies in our
commitment 1o building high quality businesses in
markets with significant growth potential. This means
establishing clear strategies for the longterm growth
of our businesses and supporting these strategies
with investment in operations, infrastructure,
complementary acquisitions and good people.

At Argos Retail Group (ARCG) we have continued

10 bring Argos and Homebase closer together
through a central infrastructure, which is delivering
benefits in the form of efficiency gains, improved
buying power and shared expertise. At the same time
we have significantly increased the number of Argos
stores and product lines, and made substantial
further improvements to the customer experience

at Homebase.

At Experian, we made a total of 16 acquisitions
during the year in order to strengthen its global
reach and praduct affering. We aiso acquired a
further 11 of Experian’s affiliate credit bureaux in
North America 1o secure an important channe! of
distribution, These acquisitions were supported by
investment in new product development, notably in
the area of fraud prevention, and in the company's
infrastructure, which included the opening of a hew
UK data centre in Nottingham.

Through such investment we are building businesses
capable of delivering sustainable growth, This is how
we can best serve all our stakeholders - customers,
suppliars, employees and shareholders,

Attracting taiented people

Our ability to attract talented people to our
businesses underpins everything we do and | would
like to pay tribute to everyone at GUS for their
enthusiasm and dedication. Qur success is down to
them, | am therefore especially pleased by the results
of our Group-wide Sharesave scheme, which this year
produced a potential gain for employees of over
£10m when it matured in May 2004.

Our Board was strengthened during the year by the
appointments of Don Robert and lohn Coombe, Don
had been CEQ of Experian North America since 2002
and has a wealth of experience in the information
and financial services markets. He ptayed a key

role in the successful repositioning of Experian’s
North American business and this year took global
responsibility for the Experian Group. John was
previously Chief Financial Officer of GlaxoSmithKline
and has joined the GUS Board as a non-executive
directar. He brirgs great experience of successful
growth on an international scale and an excelient
knowledge of regulatory issues.

| would also like to welcome the new company
secretary, Gordon Bentley, whao is already proving
to be a great strength to the Board. He succeeds
David Morris, who joined the Group in 198% and
provided tremendous support 1o the Board over
many years. | am very pleased that David agreed
to remain involved with the Group as Chairman of
the trustees of the GUS pension schames. On the
Board's behalf, | wish David all happiness and good
health in his retirement.




The Group has delivered another strong

set of results, achieving its fourth consecutive

year of double-digit profit growth.

Fulfilling our corporale responsibilities

GUS has continued 1o make good progress in our
management of environmental, community and human
rights issues, as well as itmproving our positions in the
main indices of socially responsible investment.

The GUS Charitable Trust strengthened its reputation
during the year for developing innovative projects
that truly make a difference. its efforts to bring
together 23 charities and organisations in the field of
prostate cancer were hailed by the Secretary of State
for Health as ‘the example of how government and
the voluntary sector ¢an work together and a model
for all other disease groups'.

Fundraising and community volunteering
amongst empioyees remained a high priority for
Group businesses,

Reviewing our strategic options

Over the last five years, GUS has established a track
record of creating value for shareholders by focusing
on growth businesses and investing in their futures.
In May 2004, the Board stated that it believed there

was further scope to increase shareholder value,

We said firstly that we would continue to invest inh our
main businesses and drive profit growth. The evidence
for this is contained throughout this years report.

We said that we would undertake a share buyback
programme of about £200m over the next 12
months, This has been successfully completed.

Finally, we said that we would review our strategic
options over the next two years. The Board has
already reached its conclusions and is starting to take
actions accordingly.

in May 2005, we successfully sold our remaining
stake in Lewis Group, our retailing bysiness in
Southern Africa, following the partial IPO of the
business in September 2004. We also intend to
demerge our remaining 66% stake in Burberry by way
of a distribution of those shares to our shareholders.
We will be seeking the approval of our shareholders
for this demerger later in the year.

in refation to ARG and Experian, the Board has
concluded that, at the right time, shareholder vafue is
likely to be further enhanced by a separation of these
wo fine businesses. However, we believe that at this
stage they will benefit from further investment and
support as part of GUS. The restructuring witl only be
undertaken at a time and in a manner that benefits
our businesses, mitimises disruption and is in the
long-term interests of our shareholders.

Until that time, we will maintain the strong
momentum at ARG and Experian, because we know
that it is ultimarely business success that drives the
creation of long-term shareholder value.

Wtd

Sir Victor Blank
Chairman

24 May 2005

GUS Annuat Report 2005 3
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John Peace
Group Chief Exacutive

Chief executive’s review

GUS has completed another successful year, with all
three of ur main businesses again achieving recard
profits. Saies from continuing operations increased
by 7% to £7.6bn and profit grew by 1 0% te £910m
before amortisation of goodwill, exceptional items
and taxation,

Group strategy

GUS has established a strong track record in the

last five years of creating value for sharehoiders.
During this time we have repositioned the Group
around three major businesses ~ Argos Retail Group,
Experian and Burberry — and continued to focus

on fewer activities. Our priority has been to drive
sustainable growth in sach of these businesses,
which we firmly believe to be a key driver of Jong-term
value creation.

Tweive months ago, as a logical extension of what
we have been doing since 2000, we announced a
two-year review of our strategic options. This strategic
review has reinforced our belief that GUS has highly
valuable businesses with above average growth
potential, which are capable of achieving leadership
positions in their respective markets.

The Board has already drawn a number of importamt
conclusions about the future structure of the Group
and, since the year-end, has begun taking a number
of actions.

We have successfully sold our remaining stake
in the Lewis Group, our retailing business in
Southern Africa, foliowing a partial fiotation last
October. This raised £140m, bringing the total
proceeds from the sale of Lewis 10 £245m.

We have announced our intention to demerge qur
remaining stake in Burberry to GUS shareholders,
by way of a dividend in specie jater this year,

This wifl enable our shareholders to benefit directly
from the significant future growth potential of

this business.

We have concluded that, at the right time,
shareholder value is likely to be further enhanced
by the separation of ARG and Experian, However,
we believe that at this stage both businesses will
benefit from further investment and support as
part of GUS.

We will therefore continue to concentrate on driving
sustainable growth and investing in our businesses
as we have successfully done in recent years.

Growth businesses
Argos Retail Group

ARG has become the UK’s Jeading general
merchandise retailer, commitied to delivering
ever-greater value to its customers through its
w0 major businesses, Argos and Homebase.

The economic envirgnment has become very
challenging for retailers, but ARG is robustly
controlling operating costs and driving productivity,
while continuing to benefit from the programme

of investment in its supply chain. A number of
initiatives are under way, which we believe wil
enable ARG to deliver sustainable long-term growth.

At Argos, we have announced that we see the
potential to add another 150 stores over the next
four years, bringing the total to over 750, Argos
Exira, whith offers over 4,000 more lines than the
main catalogue, is being rolled out to all stores in
July 2005,

At Homebase, we see the potential for about 450
stores over time, which compares with the current
total of 287. The continwing roli-out of mezzanine
ftoors is providing very cost effective additional
space for showcasing bathrooms, kitchens and
furniture. Homebase is also successfully trialling
the use of catalogues to drive sales and profit,
using ARC’s product pool, home delivery
infrastructure and multi-channel expertise.
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GUS has completed another successful
year, with all three of our main businesses
again achieving record profits.

Experian “Financial summary

Experian is the largest company in its sectbr, with

. . . . I i
no single competitor offering as many solutions ZUD:‘ i T P"’i‘u‘:;m ‘“‘;‘;’;4
or pperating in so many countries, The company’s 12 mesths to 31 March im m £m tm
vision is to use its peonie, data and technology o
become a necessary part of every major consumer Argos Retail Group' 5,535 5,162 421.5 415.5
economy in the worid. A number of key growth Experian 1,362 1,286 318.3 282.7
dgrivers make us confident that Experian has above- Burberry 715 676 165.7 141.2
average growth potential. Central activities (12) {5) (24.1) (19.5)
Experian’s direct-to-consumer activities, Experian Continuing aperations 7,600 7,119 881.4 819.6
interactive, have grown from a standing start in Discontinued operations® 187 429 55.4 61.%
2092 to account for 30% _of sales in North Amer!ca. Total 7,787 7,548 936.8 880.5
This Internet-based operation provides an expanding ) —_
range of online services to consumers, such as Net interest _f26.4) (53.9)
enabling them to monitor their credit status or Profit before amaortisation
find the best terms on mortgages and credit cards. of goodwill, exceptiona! items

. . L . and taxation 310.4 826.6
j’he increasing use of credit in emerging markets Amortisation of goodwill (207.3)  (192.6)
is ancther growth driver. Experian already sells txceptional items 10.0) £8.3
solutions in over 20 countries in Eastern Europe P - !
and Asia Pacific and has recently entered inte a joint Profit before taxation 693.1 692.3
venru_re Ip open the fir_sr credit bureau i1_1 Russia. EPS before amortisation of
Experian is also beneﬁt!ng fram the growing problem goodwill and exceptional items 63.8r 60.7p
of fraud across all business sectors, ~

Reported basic EPS 42.3p &74p
Burberry
The profit figure shown against each business above is operating profit, defined as profit before interest,

Burberry has become a global leader in the market taxation, exceplional items and goodwill amortisation. The same definition of gperating profit {5 used
for accessible luxury fashions and accessories. throughout this report.
Founded in 1856, the company embarked on a new } 2005 operating proflt at ARG is after the pne-off charges of £16.2m for the Argos DFT fine and £18.3m for
chapter in 2002 when it became a separate public Homebase recrganisation costs.
company, with GUS as its majority shareholder. 2 Discontinued operations include sales from Lewis, heme shopping and Reality, and operating profit from

N . R Lawt: Pi A
since then, the company has continued its ewils and Praperty:

geographical expansion and product diversification,
whtite strengthening the brand'’s international
recogrition and broad appeal.
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Argos Direct, the
delivery-to-home

operation, accounted
for 22% of Argos sales
during the vear.

Argos Retail Group

Argos Retall Group (ARG) hhas continued te build on
its position as the UK's leading multi-brand, multi-
channel retailer. Against a backoround of weakening
UK retail demand, ARG's two main businesses,
Argas and Homebhase, increased sales by 8% and 8%
respectivaly and continued to invest in initiatives for
delivering sustainable growth. Operating profit for
ARG as a whole, before one-off charges, was up 10%
to £456m.

Argos and Homebase are supported by a centzal ARG
infrastructure in areas such as sourcing and suppfier
management, multi-channel ordering and home
delivery, which continues to deliver sizbstantial
savings. The businesses are also supported by ARC
Financial Services, providing appropriate credit offers
to help drive merchandise sales.

Argos

In an increasingly competitive general merchandise
market, Argos remained focused on winning more
customers and a greater share of their spending by
offering the most compeiling combinatian of chaice,
vaiue and convenience. Argos again outperformed
its market, delivering sales growth of 8%, of which
3% was oh a like-for-like basis, while continuing to
improve jts gross margin,

The Argos Extra catatogue, which offers customers
the choice of about 30% more products, was available
in 179 stores at the year-end and will be introduced
to all stores in July 2005.

Productivity improvements and gains made in the
supply chain hetped Argos to reduce prices further.
In the Spring/Summer catalogue, which was
launched in January 2005, prices were 6% lower
than the year befare,

The number of Argos stores increased by 36 to 592
during the year and there are plans to open about

39 stores per annum over the next four years,

Since the yearend, Argos has bought 33 Index stoves
from Littlewoods, which will be converted to Argos.

‘Quick pay’ kiosks continued to reduce the time it
takes for customers to purchase goods in Argos
stores, By the end of the year, there were kiosks in
over 300 stores.

Customers also took increasing advantage of home
delivery and the ability to order goods in store, by
phonre or on the Internet, Argos Direct, the delivery-
to-home operation, accounted for 22% of sales, while
purchases made through the Argos website increased
by 37% and accounted for 5% of sales.

At the annual Retail Week Awards, the manager of the
Argos store in Lincoin, Marie Wilson, took the award
for Store Manager of the Year. Argos aiso won the
retail and distribution category in the Supply Chain
Excelience Awards, with a supply chain that judges
described as ‘very much wedded to the business
strategy of choice, tow prices and convenience’,




Argos remains focused on offering customers
the most compelling combination of choice,
value and convenience

Marie Wilson joined Argos from schoal
and is manager of the Argos store in
Lincotn, She was awarded the titie of
Store Manager of the Year at the retail
industry’s Retail Week Awards.
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The new Furniture Direct
catalogue from Homebase
offers products from both the
Argos and Homebase ranges,
and is being rolied out after
successful trials.

Argos Retail Group continued

Homebase

Homebase has continued 1o make strong progress
in establishing itself as the UK's leading home
enhancement retailer. its key strategic priorities
remain unchanged:

~ to improve the existing core business;

— to enhance and extend its home furnishings
offer; and

~ to deliver synergies by ieveraging the scale and
expertise of ARG.

In the year to 28 February 2005 {Homebase's
year-end), sales were up 6%, of which 3% came
from new stares.

Enbancing the customer experiance remained a

high priority throughout the year, Improvements in
store layout, signage, stock avaifabitity and other
retaiiing basics showed through in positive feedback
from customers.

Homebase maintained its store-opening programme,
with a net nine new stores opened during the year,
bringing the total to 287. As the resuit of increasing
confidence that it now has the right format and
service offer, Homebase believes there is scope for
up to 350 stores by 2009 and 450 ultimately.

Mezzanine floors continue to be introduced to
showcase improved ranges of bathrooms, kitchens
and furniture, The most recent mezzanines are
delivering sates lifts well above 15%. At Homebase’s
year-end, 111 stores had mezzanine floors, compared
to 67 a year ago.

Homebase is also benefiting from the infrastructure
and expertise of ARG, Product sourcing through ARC's
Far Eastern offices has proved particularly successful
in areas such as garden power, power tools and
garden furniture, heiping Homebase to drive down
cost prices.

A new furniture catalogue, Furniture Direct, offers
products from both the Argos and Homebase ranges,
with delivery to home using the Arges Direct
infrastructure. Some stores have ranges on display,
while others offer the catalogue oniy. Initial trials in
29 stores have been very encouraging and Homebase
will be rolling it out nationally in the current year.

In fanuary, Homebase became the first UK DiY
retaner to achieve FSC Chain of Custody cenification,
tssued by the Soil Association, the certificate
endorses Homebase's ethical trading principles.

ARG Financial Services

ARG Financial Services works with Argos and
Homebase to provide their customers with the mast
appropriate credit offers in order to drive product
sales. |t offers store cards, together with a range of
insurance products.

The total amount on loan to customers graw by 24%
in the year, with customers taking advantage of strong
promotional offers. The Argos store card now accounts
for 9% of sales in Argos, while the Homebase card was
used for 3% of sales at Homebase.

Wehkamp

Wehkamp is the leading home shopping brand in
Holland. it is a multi-channel retailer, with a third of
merchandise sales coming from its website,

Saies during the year declined by 4% at constant
exchange rates, reflecting the weakening retait
environment in Holland throughout the year.




Andreas Augoustis is a team leader
at the Homebase store in Finchley
Road. Andreas recently received the
company's bronze award for
excellence in demonstrating the
Homebase Way values.

Enhancing the customer experience at Homebase
remained a high priority throughout the year
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Experian

Experian has delivered its third consecutive year of
double-digit sales and profit growth as it continued
to builld momentum as a global leader in the market
for information solutions. The company is the fargest
in its sector, supporting clients in over 60 countries
and providing a broader range of solutions than any
of its peers.

Experian helps organisations to find, develop and
manage profitable customer relationships. It also
assists consumers in protecting their personal
information and managing the financial aspects of
key life events. The company’s strategy for growth is
hased on building its core business, developing new
soiutions and undertaking acquisitions that
strengthen its global capabilities.

Worldwide sales for the year from Experian’s
continuing businesses were up 8% and profit was
up 16% at constant exchange rates, driven by major
contract wins and significant investment in new
products and markets, Experian North America and
Experian International each deiivered another strong
financial performance, continuing the company's
momentum of sales and profit growth,

The company’s growth has been supported by
substantial investment in its infrastructure, including
a new UK data centre and new office premises in the
UX, Spain, France and Germany, together with new
technology platforms in the US for business-to-
pbusiness and credit card marketing.

The new global management structure announced in
february 2005 is reinforcing Experian’s position as a
world leading company and ensuring that it leverages
its skills and resources on a worldwide scale.

Buiiding on core business

Experian has continued to buiid on its core business
by winning mafor contracts across a growing range
of markets.

in Credit Information and Solutions, Experian agreed
a new contract with HBOS, the UK's largest mortgage
and savings provider, worth in excess of £40m over
five years. In the US, credit sales were strengthened
by gains in under-penetrated sectors such as
automotive, credit unions and telecommunications.

Two major Latin banks, Banco Afirme and Banco de!
Pichincha, installed Experian’s anti-money laundering
selution, With instaliations in 35 countries, this
powerfuf sofiware automates the detection,
investigation and reporting of suspected money
laundering activity.

Experian's international network of credit bureaux
was extended to Russia in a joint venture with
interfax information Services Croup. The new
consumer credit bureau brings the number of
bureauwx operated worldwide by Experian to 12,

irr Marketing Information and Solutions, Experian won
a significant number of new contracts, inciuding a
three-year database contract with one of the largest
card issuers in the US, worth over $10m. Experian is
benefiting from the investments it has made in
delivering value-added solutions such as database
management and email delivery platforms.

LEGQ, the toy manufacturer, signed a pan-European
deal for a comprenensive database management
solution to increase the speed and accuracy of its
direct mail campaigns. Hilton International became
the latest company to use Cheetahmail, Experian’s
email delivery sotution, to target international
customers with its {atest offers.

Demand for Experian’s vehicle histary reports was
strong throughout the year. Most of the world's major
automotive finance companies in the US are now
using Experian. Amongst car manufacturers, Mazda
joined BMW, Ford, Lincoin and Mercury in reguiring
that Experian verifies the histories of its certified
pre-owned vehicles.

Experian also sells credit reports and credit
monitoring services directly to consumers and
continued to increase its lead in the marketplace.

In France, Experian successfully integrated the
business process autsourcing operation acguired
from DMS Atos and won a four-year contract from
Bangue de France {o process an average of 200
miflion cheques per year.




Elio Vitucci joined the
decision support arm of
Experian 1) vears ago.
Today he is the Managing
Director of Southern,
Central and Eastern
Eurape, driving

Experian’s expansion
into emerging markets,

Experian’s international network of credit bureaux
has been extended to Russia in a joint venture

with Interfax Information Services Group
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Experian has continued to build
on its core business by winning
major contracts across a
growing range of markets.

Experian continued

Developing new solutions

Experian continued to invest heavily in new praduct
development throughout the vear,

The new National Business Database in North America
provides the most comprehensive target marketing
data in the business-to-business marketplace,
combining credit and marketing data on more than
16 million businesses.

A new global version of Mosaic, Experian's market-
leading consumer classification system, has classified
over a billion of the world's population irto ten
distinctive socip-economic groups. The gpening of
Experian’s first Chinese office has aiso led to the
development of Mosaic for China, identifying 34
distinct consumer types across the country's most
vibrant cities.

Experian-Scorex, the global decision solutions
business, extended it5 suite of Strategy Management
soiutions with the development of Sirategy
Optimisation. it was made possibie by the eariier
acquisition of Marketswitch and enabies crganisations
to sojve complex risk and marketing problems 10
identify the best action or decision to take for each
individual customer.

Experian-Scorex alsa {aunched 2 new collections and
debt recovery solution, Coliect SM, which allows
organisations to reduce iosses by adopting a mare
strategic and analyticai approach to their customer
service, collections and debt recovery processes.

n the UK, the Censumer indebtedness Index was
launched to aid responsibie tending. The Nationwide
Building Society was amongst the first organisations
to use the Index, which helps to identify individuals
who wouid struggle if they were to increase their
existing credit commitments.

Experian also extended its direct-to-consumer
services with the launch of the UK's first national
credit score, a summary for consumers of their credit
status based on their full Experian Credit Report.

Growing by targeted acquisition

The ability to identify, acquire and integrate businesses
is a core competence of Experian. The company

has continued to drive growth through acquiring
compiementary husinesses that provide new preducts,
new data or entry inte new markets, while leveraging
its core assets.

Experian’s target marketing services were strengthened
by the acquisitions of QAS in the UK and Simmons
Research in the US.

QAS is g major supplier of atdress management
software that enables grganisations to maintain
accurate and up-1o-date address information about
their customers. The company has almost 2,000
clients woridwide, covering all major market sectors.

Simmons has, for more than 50 years, provided
information on what American consumers buy, their
attitudes and lifestyles, where they shop and the
media channeis they use. The information is used by
over 300 clients woridwide,

The acquisition of Americas Software enhanced
Experian’ ability to support banks, brokerage firms and
insurance companies in combating money laundering
and complying with government regulations, including
those imposed by the USA PATRIOT Act.

Within the insurance sector, Experian strengthened its
risk modelling capabilities with the acquisition of the
specialist analytics company 15L Intermediary Systems.

Experian's automotive portfolio was enhanced by the
acguisitions of Autocount, which provides automotive
dealers and tenders with information on new and
used car sates and market share, and Autolocate, a
specialist in the deveiopment of web-based solutions
for the automotive industry.

Experian's operations in Asia Pacific were expanded
with the acquisition of Smartal Solutions, a specialist
in customer database solutions, local area planning
and target marketing. In ftaly, Experian significantly
increased its presence with the acquisition of Equifax
Italy, one of the major data providers to the

ltatian market.

Experian also continued the programme of acquiring
its affiliate bureaux in North America, with the
objective of taking direct control of this important
distribution channel. By the end of the year, Experian
had acquired 32 of the 38 bureaux.

Since the year-end, Expertan has significantly extended
its Internet-based, direct-to-consumer services, now
krown as Experian interactive, with the acquisitions
of LowerMyBills.com and Affiliate Fuel,
LowerMyBills.com helps consumers abtain better
deals on their recurring monthly expenses, such as
mortgages, persona!l loans, credit cards and insurance,
Affiliate Fuel is an advertising network that connects
consumers to companies offering educational services.

Experian Interactive’s strategy is to offer a wide range
of products that assist consumers in managing the
financial aspects of key life events, such as moving
house or buying a car.




LowerMyBills.com is helping to establish Experian as
a trusted source of information for consumers
undertaking financial transactions over the Internet

Jamie Fiore is Marketing Campaign
Manager at LowerMyBiils.com, where
she is respansible far devetoping and
executing its online advertising to
attract consumers to the website.
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Burberry's Cinda bag became
one of the years must-have
fashion accessories.

Burberry

Burberry has continped 1o buiid on its unigue position
as the authentic British lifestyle brand. Its solid
performance refiects the baiance and diversity of the
business across products, channels and regions.

In the year under review, at constant exchange rates,
Burberry sales increased by 10% and operating profit
by 21%, with good growth across all distribution
channels. Burberry also completed £58m of its share
repurchase programme of approximately £250m
announced in November 2004,

The management team was further strengthened
during the year with the appointment to the Burberry
Board of Brian Blake, Worldwide President and Chief
Operating Officer of Burberry. He joined Burberry in
lune 2004 from the Gucci Group, where he held the
position of Executive Vice President.

Products

Burberry continued to introduce contemporary
designs to strong consumer respense. Womenswear
achieved 11% underlying growth, with the Burberry
Prorsum collections a particular highlight, receiving
exceilent press reviews. Menswear benefited from the
trend towards a more sartorial style of dressing and
saw underlying growth of 6%,

Accessories also saw good growth at 8%, particularly
for small leather goods and new contemporary
handbag designs such as the Cinda bag, which
became one of the year’s must-kave fashion
accessories, Burberry Brit for Men joined the family of
Burberry fragrances and was launched to outstanding
consumer response. At the annual Fragrance
Foundation Awards in New York, Burberry won three
awards, including Best Men's Luxe Fragrance.

Channels

Burperry achieved growth across each of its distribution
channels - retail, wholesale and licensing.

Burberry's retail expansion continued on target, with
average selling space increasing by approximately
9%. A total of 12 new retail stores and concessions
were opened, including Burberry's first in Rome.
Several key stores also underwent refurbishment.

In wholesale, Burberry continued to concentrate on
key accounts in developed markets, while using the
channe! selectively to develap emerging markets such
as China, the Middie East, Russia and South America.

Regions

Burberry achieved good results across its wrading
regions, notably U5, Europe and Asia,

In Japan, Burberry continued its programme of
erhancing its brand positioning and taking greater
contro! of the non-apparel licences. Asia saw strong
demand from Chinese consumers, while new stores
hetped fuel UUS growth.

Lewis Group

Lewis Group delivered anather excellent performance,
strengthening its position as one of the leading
furniture and appliance retaiters in Southern Africa,
This was Lewis Group’s first set of full-year resuits

as a listed company, following its successful partial
flotation in Septernber 2004.

Sales for the year increased by 11% to £187m and
operating profit by 21% to £55.4m at constant
exchange rates. This was helped by an increasingly
buoyant trading environment in Scuth Africa,
stimulated by a decline in interest rates, reductions
in income tax and above-inflation wage increases.

tn May 2005, GUS successfully sold its remaining
stake in Lewis Group for £140m, bringing the total
proceeds of the sale to £245m.

Summary

(US has completed another successful year.
ARG, Experian and Burberry have each reported
record profits.

OQur strategic review has atready resulted in the
successful sale of the Lewis Croup and the
announcement of a demerger of our remaining
66% stake in Burberry later in the year.

We have concluded that, at the right time,
shareholder value is likely to be further enhanced by
separating ARG and Experian. Until such time, GUS
will continue to drive sustainable growth in these
businesses in the long-term interests of shareholders.

john Peace
Group Chief Executive

24 May 2005




Burberry opened 12 new stores during the year,
inciuding its first in Rome

Efisa Bruno is the General Manager of
Burberry's new store in Via Condottl,
Roame’s most distinguished shopping
street, She was responsible for hiring
the store’s 30-strong team before it
opered in Jctober 2004,
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Group strategy

b May 2004, the Board of GUS stated that it believed
that there was further scope to inCrease shareholder
value significantly, building on its track record of

success in the previous four years. It stated it would:

continue to invest in its three main businesses and
drive profit growth;

initiate a share buyback programme of about
£200m over the next twelve months: and

actively review ali strategic options over the next
two years, in order to creaze further value for our
shareholders.

Progress in 2005

During the last financial year, GUS has continued 1o
deliver against these initiatives:

Group profit before amortisation of goodwiil,
exceptional items and taxation increased by 10%,
with each of our three main businesses generating
record profits;

we have invested over £650m in these businesses,
through a combination of capital expenditure of
£390m, an increase of £89m in the ARG Financial
Services loan book and 27 acquisitions for
Experian at 2 total cost of £181m;

we have compieted the £200m share buyback,
purchasing 22m shares at an average price of
897p. This is in addition to the proposed full year
dividend of £293m (29.5p per share}; and

we have undertaken a detailed analysis of the
Group and its main businasses in a number
of areas:

- the likely future developments in each of the
markets in which we operate;

- the future growth plans and investment
requirements of our businesses;

- the equity market's valuation of the Group;

- the advantages and disadvantages of various
ownership structures; and

- the views of our investors and senior
management.

Update on Strategic Review

This review has reinforced our befief that CUS has
businesses with above average growth potential,
which are capable of ieadership positions in their
respective markets. As discussed later, each business
has a clear strategy to defiver sustainable growth,

The Board has also drawn its conclusions about
future Group structure from the review and has
started to take actions accordingly. These inciude:

Sale of Lewis Group stake

A placing of CUS' remaining 50% stake in Lewis took
place successfully in May 2005, raising about £140m.
This brings the total net proceeds from seflling 100%
of Lewis 1o £245m.

Burberry Graup pic

The Board has decided to demerge the remaining
66% stake in Burberry to GUS shareholders by way
of a dividend in specie latet on in 2005, This will
be subject to shareholder approval and will be
accompanied by a GUS share consolidation exercise,

ARG and Experian

The Board has also concluded that, at the right time,
shareholder value is likely to be further enhanced by
a separation of ARG and Experian,

But it believes that at this stage both businesses
will benefit from further investment and support &s
part of GUS, We will continue to focus on driving
sustainable growth in ARG and Experian as we have
in recent years. The Board firmly believes that this
is the key driver of long-term value creation

for shareholders.

The restructuring will be undertaken at a time and
in a manner that benefits our businesses, minimises
disruption and is in the long-term interests of

our shareholders.




Operational review

Argos Retail Group (ARG)

Sales up 7% to £5.5bn and profit up 10% to £456m,
with operating margin up at both Argos and Homebase

Argos continued o outperform its market, with iike-for-

fikke sales growth of 3% and an improved gross margin

Homebase gained market share, with like-forlike
salas growth of 3% and an improved grass margin

Maving forward there will be continued investment
in ARG despite challenging trading conditions:

increase in pianned size of chain at both Argos
and Homebase:

national rell-out of Argos Exirz in July 2005;

Furniture Direct into all Homebase stores by
November 2005.

ARG is focused principaily on seliing general
merchandise in the UK. it has a muiti-brand, multi-
channel offer, supported where appropriate by a
central infrastructure in areas such as sourcing and
supplier management, multi-channe! ordering, home
delivery and firancial services.

Consumer spending in the UK has slowed sharply in
recent months. ARG believes that this has resulted
in a decline on a like-forlike basis in the non-food,

non-clothing market. it is planning on the assumption

that this trend in the market continues. At the same

time, retailers are facing higher cost inflation in areas

such as rates, wages and energy costs. Clearly Argos

and Homebase are not immune from this downturn in

demand or these cost pressures.

In the current environment, ARG will continue to
control costs robustly and drive productivity to help
offset underlying cost inflation. It will also continue
t0 invest in its key initiatives, outlined below, which
support the delivery of sustainable growth over the
longer term.

ARG

delivering supply chain gains across ARG, with
total benefits from the integration of Homebase
expected to double 1o £40m by March 2006; and

continuing to invest in the infrastructure required
to support future growth.

Argos

rofling out Argos Extra to all storas with the
laurich of the Autumn/Winter catalogue in
July 2005;

converting and integrating the 33 acquired index
stores; and

extending the store chain to in excess of 750
stores over the rext fgur years.

Homebase

extending the store chain to around 350 stores
over the next four years;

nationaily launching Furniture Direct during 2006,
leveraging the ARG infrastructure; and

adding at least. 20 mare mezzanines into existing
stores in 2006.

Argos Retail Group
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Sales Gperating profit

2005 2004 2005 2004
12 months to 31 March £m im Em Em
Argos 3,652 3,384 325.8 287 .4
Homebase' 1,580 1,483 t1a.1 1p2.2
Financia! Services 3] 60 0.2 (5.5)
Wehkamp 222 235 19.9 21.4
Sub-total 5,535 5,162 456.0 415.5
Argos — charge for OFT fine - - 06.2) -
Homebase - ¢harge for
reorganisation costs - - {18.3) -
Total reported 5,535 5,182 421.5 415.5
Oparating margin? 8.2% B.0%
Operating cash flow 54 44

1 Homebase sales and profit for 12 maonths to 28 February

2 Extluding cne-cff chamges for Argos OFT fine and Homebase rearganisation ¢osts
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Operational review continued

One-off chiarges

As previgusly announced, the Competition Appeal
Tribunal has recently ruled on the fine imposed on
Argos by the Office of Fair Trading two years ago,
Argos is disappointed with the judgment and
continues to maintain vigorously its innocence,

it is seeking leave to appeal what it believes to be
an unfair decision. A charge of £16.2m to cover the
fine and the associated interest costs has been made
against Argos’ pperating profit in 2005,

As previously announced, ARG is planning to move

a number of Homebase functions currently based in
Wallington, Surrey to its head office in Mitton Keynes.
This relates to about 500 Homebase employees,
including the merchandising and buying functions.
The costs of this move have been estimated at
£18.3m and have been charged against Homebase's
operating profit in 2005,

Argos

In an increasingly competitive general merchandise
market, Argos continues to grow share by winning a
higher proportion of customers' spend by offering
them the most compelling combination of chaice,
value and convenience.

Operational review

Following o successful trial, customers will be offered
improved choice through the rolf out of Argos Extra
1o alt stores and channels with the faunch of the
Autumn/Winter catalogue in july 2005. Argos Extra has
over 4,000 more tines than the main catalogue's 13,300
and was available in 179 stores at the year end.

2005 2004
12 months to 3! March £m £m Growth
Sales 3,652 3,384 8%
Total growth 8% 12%
Like-for-like growth 3% 5%
Operating profit 325.8 297.4 1a%
Charge for OFT fine (16.2) -
Total reported 300.6 297.4
Qperating margin' 8.9% 8.8%
At 31 March
Number of stores 582 556
Of which: Argos Extra stores 179 75

1 Excluging one-off charge for the GFT fine

OF these, 128 stocked-in the additional Yines and 51
offered customers the option to order-in the exrended
range for iater collection. The extended leisure,
starage and lighting ranges soid well during the vear.

In july 2005, Argos Extra will be made avaiiable in
ali stores. Approximately 160 stores will stock-in the
additiona! lines, with the remaining stores offering
the order-in facility. Argos Extra will also be available
over the Internet and for home delivery anywhere

in the UK. New system developments, such as text
message notification that products are availaize in
store for collection, will also provide customers with
greater convenience.

To date, the Argos Extra stocked-in stores have
delivered high single-digit percentage sales uplifts,
with lower increases at ordered-in stores. The national
rall-aut of Argas Extra is expected ta add 2-3% to
sales in its first full year, as consumers become more
aware of the extended ranges. This initiative 5 a
clear exampie of how Argos can generate returns

on investment well above its hurdle rate.

Argas continues to offer customers lower prices.
Prices on re-included lines in the current
Spring/Summer catalogue are 6% lower than last
year supported by supply chain benefits and the
mavement in the US dolfar. Direct importing now
accounts for about 25% of sales compared to 16%
two vears ago. During the year, Argas also launched
a “non stop price drop” campaign, reinforcing to
consumers its commitment 1o reduce prices during
the life of the catalogue.

Argos expects to add around 35 stores per annum
over the next four years, bringing the total to over
750 stores by March 2009. It has already successfully
expanded the chain into more out-of-town locations
{(with 152 stores currently being on retail parks).

This aliows it to move into more catchments that can
support a second or third Argos store. Argos has also
enhanced its ability to open stores in smaller market
towns, as range expansion enables it to take a higher
share of spend in these catchments. Argos also plans
nearly to double its presence in treland over the next
four years from the current 22 stores.

At the year-end, Argos had 592 stores. it pians to
opep around 35 stores in 2006. This is in addition to
33 index stores, which will be purchased for £44m in
July 2005, Argos expects these stores to start trading
by October 2005 after which they shouid add 2-3% to
total Argos sates in their first ful} year of operation.




Argos continues to invest in improving the
convenience of its offer for customers. [t enables
customers to order or reserve goods in stores, by
phone or on the internet, for delivery 1o store or to
home. Argos Direct, the delivery to home operation,
grew sales by 8% and accounted for 22% of revenue
in 2005, internet orders for direct delivery to home
grew by 37% during the year, accounting for 5% of
Argos’ sales. A further 8% of total sales were reserved
by customers, either by phone, Internet or text
message, for later collection in-store,

Work is almost compiete on the new delivery 1o -
home warehouse in Faverdale, Darlington due to
open in july 2005, This is Argos’ third dedicated
warehouse supporting the home delivery of jarge
items which are not available in store, such as
furniture and white goods.

Financial review

in the year to 31 March 2005, Argos again
outperformed its market. It grew its total sales by 8%
and increased its gross margin, leading to a 10%
increase in operating profit (before the one-off charge
for the OFT fine). Against an environment of
weakening retail demand, sales and profit growth
slowed in the second half. Sales growth was 13% in
H1 siowing to 5% in H2, while profit growth declined
from [6% in HT to 7% in H2.

New stares continue to trade well and contributed 5%
to sales growth in the year. Like-for-like sales growth
was 3%. There were strong performances from
consumer electronics, digital products and leisure
throughout the year. However, the rate of growth in
sajes of furniture and white goods siowed in the
fourth quarter.

Operating profit in the year grew by 10%, reflecting
the level of sales growth, a slightly improved gross
margin and continued ihvestment in future growth
initiatives, such as Argos Extra and the infrastructure.
As outlined above, this investment will continue in
the current financial year in areas such as
infrastructure and the Irapsitippal costs relating 1o
the acquired Index stores, The latter will reduce
profits by about £8m in the first half.
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Homebase )

2005
1Z months to 28 Fabruary im

2004
im

Growth

Sales 1,580
Total growth' 6%
Like-for-like growth’ 3%

1,483
5%
3%

2%

Cperating profit
Charge for rearganisation costs

Total reported

QOperating margin?®

At 28 February
Number of stores
Of which: number with mezzanine floar

| Tetal and like-for-like growth for 2005 excludes 29 February 2004
2 £xcluding one-off charge for reargznisation costs

Homebase

Within a competitive market, Homebase is being
repositioned as the UK's leading home enhancement
retailer. The key strategic prigrities remain
unchanged, being to:

improve the existing core business;

enhance and extend its home furnishings offer;
and

deliver synergies by leveraging the scale and
expertise of ARG.

Operational review

Homebase cantinues to improve the in-store
experience for its customers, driving market share
gains. Actions to improve customer service, stock
availability and retailing basics have cantinued during
the year with positive feedback from customers.
Stock availability has been improved through clase
monitoring of key lines and out of stocks. Range
reviews have been undertaken in areas such as paint,
tiling and lighting, driving encouraging sales gains. A
new advertising campaign was launched in early
March, supporting the Homebase differentiated
proposition and value position, It also forms the basis
for a consistent style across all marketing activity.

Homebase expects to add around 15 stores per
annum aver the next four years, bringing the total to
about 350 stores by March 2009, New stores
continue to perform well, giving a payback on
investment well above the hurdle rate. Homebase
sees longer-term potentia) for around 450 stores
given this strong financial performance and its
greater confidence in the improved format and
service offer.

Homebase had 287 stores at the year-end, having
opened a net nine stores during the year. It plans 10
open a net 13 stores in 2006, being a mix of
traditional and smaller stores.

The most recent mezzanine formats are delivering
improved sales uplifts, well above the 15% generated
by earlier trials. They offer improved store layout,
better lit mezzanines, enhanced fixtures and improved
internal and external signage. Examples can be seen at
Telford, Finchiey Road (London) and Banbury.
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ARG Finmancial Services : ) . ‘

12 months te 31 March

2008 2004
£m £m

Sales

21 60

Profit before funding ¢osts
Funding costs

Opevating profit/(loss)

186.6 6.8
(i8.4) (12.3)

0.2 {5.5}

At 31 March
Gross loan book

374

Number of active store card holders (000s) 765

Operational review continued

A total of 111 stores had mezzanine floors at
February 2005, an increase of 44 in the year. In 2006,
Homebase pians to add at least angther 20
mezzanine floors to existing stores and open most of
its 13 net new Stores with mezzanines. This is in
addition to all the work involved with the national
roll-out of Furniture Direct in the same period.

Homebase will continue 0 benefit from leveraging the
scale and expertise of ARG, in both sourcing and
infrastructare, During the year, Homebase has seen
benefits from value engineering and terms
narmonisation in areas such as garden power, garden
furniture, power 100ls, bathroams, lighting and
flooring. Homebase has also been able to use the
established ARG infrastructure to increase rapidly the
proportion of goods directly imported. This now
stands at 21% of sales, comparaed to 8% at the time of
acquisition in late 2002.

The trial of the Furniture Direct catalogue, which uses
the ARG infrastructure to home deliver furniture and
home furnishings sourced from both the Homebase
and Argos ranges, has been successful in improving
sales densities. Product displays are in 20 Homebase
stores currently, with nine further stores offering the
catalogue only. By November 2005, an additional 115
stores will dispfay products, with catalogues available
in all remainirg stores. Homebase has also recently
iaunched a transactional website, sefling products
from the Argos range, and is testing Appiiances
Direct, a catalogue offering white goods again from
the Arges range, tn 29 stores,

Financial review

in the year 1o 28 February 2005, against a weakening
retail environment, Homebase gained share in the DIY
market, increased total sales by 6% and improved its
gross margin slightiy.

tn the year, new stores contributed 3% to 1o1al sales
growth. Like-for-like sales growth of 3% was aided by
the performance of mezzanines and big ticket items.

Cperating profit, befare reorganisatien costs,
increased by 8%, reflecting the sales increase and
gross margin improvement, partially offsat by
continued investrment in mezzanines.

ARG Financial Services {ARG FS)

ARG FS works in conjunctior with Argos and
Homebase to provide their customers with the most
apprapriate credit offers to drive product sales, while
retaining the maximum possible profit from the
transaction within ARG, It offers store cards
(providing both revolving and promotional credit) and
a range of insurance products,

ARG F5S loan book grew by 24% or £89m in the year,
reflecting mainly store card growth. The Argos store
card funded 9% of Argos’ sales in 2005, with
continued growth in the active card base. The
Homebase store card, which was faunched in October
2003, funded 3% of Homebase's sales. Credit saies
hetped 10 drive big ticket purchases in particuiar,
with customers taking advantage of strong
promational credit offers, such as "buy now pay
later”. Due to the competitive nature of the market,
ARG FS has currently stopped offering new persanal
loans. Despite this, continued momentum in store
cards is expected to drive the gross loan book to
around £500m by March 2006.

ARG FS achieved a break even position for the first
time in 2005, as interest income from growth in the
loan books increased. This has been offset to some
extent by higher borrowing costs, which have not
been passed on to customers, together with
additional bad debt costs.

Wehkamp

Sales at Wehkamp, the teading home shopping brand
in Holland, declined by 4% at constant exchange rates.
This reflects the weakening retail environment in
Hoiland throughout the year. Operating profit was 6%
fower in euros, driven primarily by the sales reduction.

‘Wehkamp

2005 2004 Change at
12 months 1o 31 March £m im  constant FX
Sales 222 235 {(4%)
Oparating profit 19.9 21.4 (6%)
Operating margin 9.0% 9.1%




Experian

Sales up 18% and profic up 1 8% for continuing
activities at constant exchange rates

Third consecutive year of double-digit sales and
profit growth

Third consecutive year of excellent cash
generation, with 97% of operating profit converted
into pperating cash flow

Benefiting from balance in the business pertfolio -
preadth of proeduct offer and giobal reach

Successful integration of acquisitians yietding
expected synergies and accelerating growth across
the portfalio: LowerMyBills.com is a step-change
for direct-ta-consumer activities

Experian is a global leader in providing information
solutions to organisations and consummers. it heips
organisations find, deveiop and manage profitable
customer relationships by providing information,
decision-making salutions and processing services,
it has over 50,000 ciients in more than 60 countries.

Experian is the clear global leader in its sector and is
uniquely positioned to benefit from the key drivers of
long-term growth, including expansion in:

credit and card usage;

emerging markets such as Eastern Eutope and Asia
Pacific;

fraud prevention;
muiti-channel marketing;

vertical markets such as automotive and
government; and

the direct-to-consumer market, Experian's newly
formed Interactive operation offers a wide range
of products that assist consumers in managing the
financial aspects of key life events, such as buying
a home. Following the acquisition in May 2005 of
LowerMyBilis.com, a ieading online generator of
mortgage and other loan apptication feads in the
US, Experian Interactive now accounts for about
30% of Experian North America saies on a pro
forma basis.

Experian has a ciear strategy to capitalise on these
opportunities by:

Building on its core businesses. Experian has continued to
win contracts across its businesses and arpund the world.

These include application processing for a number of
financial institutions in the US, a multi-year deal in
support of a UK government agency to provide
authentication services and customer management
sotutions for Brazil's largest state-owned bank. It has
also been successful in moving into emerging markets.
In the [ast tweive months, Experian has prepared to
open the first credit bureau in Russia as a joint
venture, worked with the leading Korean credit bureau
10 infroduce valuse-added solutions 1o the market and
extended its consumer classification system (Mosaic)
to countries including japan and China.

Seliing new valwe-added solutions. Experian continues
to invest heavily in new products. For example, its
new appiication fraud prevention system, Hunter (f,
has been successfully implemented in its first
customer ahd has won numergus other contracts
globally in countries such as Korea, Russia and the UK.

Growing by targeted acquisitions. The ability of
Experian to identify, acquire and integrate
businesses is a core competency. Experian can often
accelerate the growth of the acquired company by
creating product synergies and cross-sefling 1o the
combined ciient base. In the year 1o 31 March 2005,
16 acquisitions and 11 affiliate credit bureaux
purchases were completed for a combined
investment of £181m. Together, these are
performing ahead of plan and are expected to
generate post-tax double-digit returns over time,
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Sales Operating profit

2005 2004 2005 2004

12 months to 31 March £m £m £m fm
Experian Nosth America 724 665 188.2 181.2
Experian International 620 532 128.6 107.3
Total continuing activities 1,344 1,197 316.8 288.5
% growth at constant FX 18% 14% 16% 20%
Discontinued activities 18 89 1.5 1.5
Ciosure costs - - - (7.8}
Total reported 1,362 1,286 318.3 282.2
Operating margin - excluding FARES 21.0% 21.0%
- including FARES 23.6% 24.19%

Operating cash flow 309 208

Notes {relevant to all Experian tables):

Operating margin is for continuing activities oniy. For FARES, the 20% owned real estate information associate,

Experian reports its share of FARES profits but not sales,
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During the year, Experian made significant
investments in infrastructure, including the opening of
a new UK data centre and new technology platforms
for improved access to US credit, consumer marketing
and business-to-business marketing data. The new
glebal management structure announced in February
2005 is also enabling Experian to reinforce its
position as the leading global player in its markets. It
is now better able to support multi-national clients
and develop global products and solutions, while
focusing on the needs of each iocal market.

Experian North America

in the year to 31 March 2005, txperian North America
delivered another good financial performance across
all businesses, demanstrating the strength of its
broad product mix and its distribution capabifities.

Operational review

Sales from continuing activities increased by 19%

in dollars. Corporate acquisitions generated 8% of
this growth, with 11% organic growth. This was
achieved despite a 3% impact from lower saies to the
mortgage sector.

Credit information and Solutions together grew sales by
5% exciuding acquisitions. Growth was driven by new
products such as triggers (automatic alerts to changes
in consurners’ credit behaviour), which gained strong
market adoption. Sales also benefited from improved
delivery platforms and by share gains in Credit
information in under-penetrated sectors such as credit
unions, telecommunications and collections. A further 11
small affiliate hureaux were purchased during the year,
bringing the total to 32 at a combined cost of 5191 m.

Experian North America

2005 2004 Growth at

12 months to 31 March Em im constant FX
Sales

- Continuing activities 724 665 19%

- Discontinued activities - 38 na

- Total reported 724 703 12%
Operating profit

— Direct business 153.7 143.9 16%

- FARES 34.5 37.3 1%

- Continuing activities 188.2 181.2 13%

- Discontinued activities - {1.6} na

- Total reported 188.2 179.6 14%
Operating margin

- excluding FARES 21.2% 21.6%

- including FARES 26.0% 27.2%

Two small businesses {Nukage and Real Estate Sohions) were sold during the second naif of the year. These will pe
treated as discontinued activities from 1 April 20035,

Marketing Information and Solutions togetier grew
sales by 6% excluding acguisitions. There has been a
general recovery in direct marketing, aiding sales of
consumer marketing lists as well as automotive and
business marketing infarmation, in tine with market
trends, Marketing Solutions has seen a continued
switch of clients from traditional iist processing to
database management and email marketing. Experian
continues to gain new data management business
from major multi-channel retailers and is now a key
suppiier to four of the top five retailers in the US.

Experian Interactive increased its sales by 37% during
the vear excluding acquisitions. In Consumer Direct,
which sells credit reports, scores and maonitoring
services to consumers, the number of subscribers
was nearly 2,4m at the yearend, up by over 650,000
during the year, Sales were driven by the move to
monthiy rather than annual bifling, the successful
taunch in the fourth quarter of Triple Advantage (daily
notification of any changes in consumers’ reports
from all three credit bureaux) and increased
consumer credit awarenass. MetaReward, the Internet
lead-generation business, which was acquired in
November 2003, had an exceptional year with sales
doubling on a pro forma basis. This reflects some
large, but lower margin, client contracts,

FARES, the 20% owned real estate information
associate, had another strong vear, with profits of
£63.8m broadiy equivalent to last year's $63.2m,
despite rising interest rates. FARES benefited from the
synergies resulting from its acquisition of
Transamerica’s tax and flood businesses in October
2003, ht continues to make complementary
acquisitions and focus efforts on cost reduction to
mitigate the expected decline in the martgage market.

Financial review

Sales from continuing activities in the year were
$1,337m, up 19% compared to last year. Corporate
acquisitions contributed 8% of this growth, a level
that shouig at least be repeated in 2006 following the
acquisition of LowerMyBills.com.

Operating profit from direct businesses was $284.0m,
up by 16%. The operating margin declined slightly
reflecting the growth of MetaReward (a lower margin
business) in the second half and FACTA-related costs
not yet fulty recouped by the cost recovery charge to
clients, With the free credit report required under the
FACT Act now available to half of the US population,
activity tevels and costs are in line with expectations.

The £/% exchange rate moved substantially during
the vear from an average of $1.70 in the year to
March 2004 to $1.85 in 2005. This reduced reported
sales by £65m and operating profit by £17.0m.




Experian {nternational

Experian International, which accounts for about 45%
of total Experian sales, had another excellent year,
continuing its long record of double-digit sales and
profit growth.

Operational review

Sales grew by 17% at constant exchange rates, of
whtich 10% came from acquisitions. There was
consistently good growth in the UK and Rest of Worid.

Credit information and Sofutions increased sales by
8% excluding acquisitions. In the UK, there was
continued good growth in business infarmation, with
significant gains in market share due to the strength
of value-added products. ln consumer information,
Experian's position in financial services has been
enhanced by wins in other sectors including
government and telecommunications. in Rest of
Worid, there was excellent growth in business
information services in France and in the credit
bureaux in Scuthern Europe. The contract with CCI,
the consortium of Spanish banks, has been extended
to 2010.

Experian-Scorex, the credit solutions business, saw
double-digit growth with particularly strong
performances in the UK, Latin America, Spain and
emerging markets. It continues to deveigp and sell
new solutions, For example, it is working in the UK
with Barclays to optimise targeting of customer
communications. In Russia, it has introduced a new
collections and debt recovery solution for its clients.

Marketing information and Solutions grew sales by 9%
excluding acquisitions. This was driven by strong
growth in many areas including: UK business-to-
business marketing; insurance; online data cleansing;
e-mail marketing; Business Strategies (micromarketing
and economic forecasting) and from operations in
Southern Europe. Fallowing its acquisition in Dctober
2004, QAS, the leading supplier of address
management software in the UK, has defivered to the
acquisition plan, QAS has won significant private and
public sector contracts in the past six morniths and
launched intact from QAS, a jointiy developed solution
with Experian, that makes available online data
cleansing services to its 7,500 UK clients,

Focused now entirely in France, Qutsourcing sales
grew by 7% excluding acquisitions. This was fuelled by
increased volumes and contract wins, such as Cegetel,
in back office processing and card processing.

Acquisitions centinue to be a key driver of growth in
Experian International, leveraging its existing assets
and skills. During the year it has acquired several
companias, often small, that have brought it new
products {such as 5L, providing analytics and
models to the insurance sector), or strengtheried its
presence in more countries (such as Business
Strategies micromarketing in Scandinavia, China and
Hong Kong}. Acquisitions completed in 2005 are
expected to contribute over 10% to safes in the first
nalf of 2006.

Financial review

Excluding discontinued activities, sales at Experian
international increased by 17% at constant exchange
rates. This is despite one large card issuer moving its
UK account processing in-house from Experian from
the second guarter of the financial year 2005.

Operating profit from continuing activities at
£128.6m increased by 20% at constant rates. This
resulted in a 50 basis point improvernent in the
operating margin, reflecting the high level of sales
growth and resulting operating leverage.
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Experian International

2005 2004 Growth at

12 manths ta 31 March £mt im constant FX
Sales

- Continuing activities G20 532 17%

- Discontinued activities 18 s na

- Total reported 638 583 10%
Operating profit

- Continuing activities 128.6 107.3 20%

~ Discontinued activities 1.5 3.1 na

- Closure costs - (7.8) na

- Total raported 1300 102.6 7%
Cperating margin 20.7% 20.2%
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Operational review continued

Burberry

GUS has a 65% stake in Burberry Group plc, The
business delivered a strong performance for the year
ta 31 March 2005, growing sales by 10% and
cperating profit by 21% at constant exchange rates.
Burberry made good progress on its strategic and
operational priorities. The perfarmance reflects the
balance and diversity of Burberry’s operations across
praducts, channels and regions.

2005 2004 Grewth at
12 months to 31 March £m im constant FX
Sales 715 676 10%
Operating profit 165.7 141.2 21%
Operating margin 23.2% 20.9%
QOperating cash flow 144 155
A1 33 March
Number of retail locations 157 145

Burberry saw good growth across retail, wholesale
and licensing, At constant exchange rates, retail salas
increased by 8%, driven by the opening of five new
stores and seven concessions during the year, as weil
as the refurbishment of several key stores including
San Francisco, Boston and Paris. Burberry plans to
Increase its net selling space by approximately 8%

in 2006.

Wholesale revenue in the year increased by 9% at
constant exchange rates. Based upon orders received
to date for the Autumn/Winter 2005 season, Burberry
expects broadly flat wholesale revenue in the first
half of this financia! year.

Licensing revenue increased by 19% in the year at
constant exchange rates, driven by strong gains from
global product licensees, including watches and
fragrance. During the year, Burberry finalised plans
with respect to its non-apparel licences in japan, which
should enable it better to take advantage of the long-
term apportunity in Japan’s substantial luxury markat,

Operating margin increased by over 200 basis points,
as gross margin grew from 57.9% to 59.3% (due to
pricing and sourcing gains and a higher proportion of
revenye from licensing) and expense efficiency gains.
Exchange rate movements reduced reported saies by
£24m and operating profit by £4.9m in the year.

Burberry is launching a major programme to
redesign its busingss processes and systems, creating
a substantially stronger platform to support its long-
term operation and growth. Over the next three
years, Burberry expecis fo invest approximately
£50m in capitai expenditures and associated
expenses, with approximately £18m invested in
2006. in its third year, the programme is expected ta
generate over £20m annually in savings.




Lewis Group

Followitig the sale of its remaining 50% stake on 19
May 2005, GUS no longer has a holding in Lewis. It is
now treated as a discontinued operation.

Lewis Group, & leading retailer in Southern Africa,
sells furniture, household and electrical goods mainly
on credit. There was further significant success
during the year in its focus on the key strategic
business initiatives of:

increasing sales frorm existing stares and expanding
the store hase;

driving operarional efficiencies; and

delivering on its customer-focused business model,
which s based on cosvenience, choice. cradit
and loyalty

Sales increased by 11% in rand, reflecting a positive
retail environment and Lewis' own initiatives. The
trading environment in South Africa is one of the most
positive experienced in the past three decades,
Consumer confidence and expenditure have been
stimulated by a decline in interest rates, in income tax
and in above-inflation wage increases. Lewis is also
benefiting from the rapid growth of the emerging
middle class and the related increase in spanding
power of this group, Lewis’ main target market,

Merchandise sales were un 14% (10% on a like-for-like
basis), with strong growth in furniture, electronic
and white goods. Lewis had success in both the
competitively priced branded merchandise as well as
in its upgraded own-brand ranges now available in
130 stores. insurance premiums and finance charges
earned grew only marginally due 1o the higher
proportion of cash sales (25% compared to 1 8%) and
fower interest rates.

Operating profit increased by 21% in rand, with
operating margin expanding by a further 240 basis
points. This reflects strong sates growth, operating
efficiencies, a further improvement in the quality of
the debtors’ book {driven by efficient collection
procedures and advanced credit risk systems) and
tight contral on costs throughout the business,

The rand strengthened from an average rate of
£1=R12.05 in 2004 to an average of R11.47 in 2005.
This increased reported sales by £9m and operating
profit by £2.7m in the year.
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Lewis Group -

2005 2004 Growth at
iZ monthis to 37 March £ar im conscant FX
Sales 187 160 1%
Operating profit 55.4 43.5 21%
Operating margin 29.6% 27.2%

Al 31 March

Number of stores
- Lewis 400 400
~ Best Electric 5& 47
~ Lifestyle Living 17 18

The above figures are prepared under UK GAAP, while the Lewis Group announcement hizs been prapared under

Seouth African GAAP.
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Sales

Group sales increased by 3% from £7,548m to
£7,787m, while sales from continuing operations
grew by 7% from £7,119m to £7,600m. At constant
axchange rates, sales from continuing operations
were 8% higher than last year.

Profit

Group profit before amortisation of goodwill,
exceptional items and taxation incraased by 10% to
£910m. Return on sales from continuing operations
before exceptional items and goodwill amortisation
rose from 10,7% to 11.3%. The improvement reflects
the focus on our core businesses where profitability
has risen. The goodwill charge increased to £207m
from £193m, largely as a result of a full years charge
on the acguisitions made last year.

Taxation

The Group’s effective rate of tax for the year was
24.3%, based on profit before amortisation of goodwill
and befare profits and losses on sale of businesses,
This compares to 23.4% last year. For 2006, we expect
the tax rate 1o increase by about 2% on a UK GAAP
basis, mainly affected by our current understanding
of recent proposed changes in UK tax legislation.

-Group cash Flow

2005 2004
12 months to 31 March £tm im
Operating profit before interest, amortisation

of goodwill and exceptional items 937 880
Amortisation of Burberry shares 7 1

Depreciation 267 275
Capital expenditure (390) (308)
Change in working capital (167) (272)
Operating cash flow 654 578

Interest (42) (48)
Corporation tax (238) (176}
Free cash flow 374 3534
Actquisitions and divestments (78) 705

Dividends (28T1) (244)
Share buyback ~ GUS (200} -
Share buyback - Burberry (22) -
Special pension contribution (76} (100
Het cash {outflow)/infiow (283) 715

Foreign exchange rmoveéments 56 179

Movement in net debt (227) 894

Shareholder return and dividends

Basic earnings per share before goodwill amortisation
and exceptional items were 63.8p in the year to 31
March 2005 compared to 60.7p last year, The Board
has prapaosed a final dividend of 20.5p per share, a rise
of 1.5p or 8% on last year. The dividend for the year as
a whole of 28.5p is covered 2.19 times from earnings
before goodwill amontisation and exceptional items.

Shareholders® funds

Shareholders’ funds amount to £2,810m, a fall of
£1m in the year, This is equivalent to 276p per share
compared with 277p last year.

Share price and total sharaholider return

The share price of GUS ranged from a low of 740p to
3 high of 989p during the financial year. On 31 March
2005, the mid market price was 812p, giving a
market capitalisation of £9.3bn at that date.

Total shareholder return {the increase in the value of
a share including reinvested dividends) has been
188% over the five years to 31 March 2005. This
compares favourably with the total shareholder
return for the average FTSE 100 company which was
minus 10% over the same period.

Cash flow and net debt

The Group's free cash flow before acquisitions and
divestments, dividends, share buybacks and speaciai
pension contributions was £374m, compared with
£354m in 2004. Capital expenditure in 2005 was
£390m, £84m higher than last year, Capital
expenditure was equivalent to F46% of the
depreciation charge in 2005. Free cash flow was used
to fund acgursitions of £181m, dividends of £281m,
GUS and Burherry share repurchases of £222m and
special pension contributions of £76m. After disposal
proceeds of £103m, net cash outflow for the year
was £283m.

After the positive impact of exchange rates (£56m),
net debht on the GUS balance sheet at 31 March 2005
increased by £227m to £1,427m, up from £1,200m
at 31 March 2004,

Liquidity and funding

The maturity, currency and interest rate profile of the
Group's borrowings are shown in Note 32 1o the
financial statements, The maturity profile is spread
over the next eight vears, to avoid excessive
cancentration of re-financing needs,

At 31 March 2005 undrawn committed borrowing
facilities totalled £420m.




Share buyback proyramme

The £200m share buyback announced in May 2004
has been completed, with GUS buying 22m shares at
an average price of 837p, For the purpose of
calculating basic EPS, the weighted average number
of shares in issue for 2005 was 1,000m. This will fall
to 985m in 2006, before altowing for any shares
igsued in respect of employee share schemes,

Following post-balance sheet acquisitions and
disposais, there are no current plans for further share
buybacks. However, the Board will continue to review
the possibitity of returning surpius funds to
shareholders, white at the same time ensuring that
the interests of bondholders and lenders are
protected by maintaining a strong balance sheet,

In January 2005 Burberry Group pic began a
programme to buy back £250m of shares from both
GCUS plc and its other shareholders by March 2006. By
31 March 2005 it had acquired £41m of shares from
CUS and £22m from its other sharehoiders.

Treasury and risk management

The Group's Treasuty function seeks to reduce or
eliminate exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate
and other financial risks, to ensure sufficient liquidity
is available to meet foreseeable needs and to invest
cash assets safely and profitably. It does not operate
as a profit centre and transacts oniy in relation to
underlying business requirements. it operates
policies and procedures which are peripdically
reviewed and approved by the Board and is subject to
regutar Group laternal Audit reviews.

Currency tisk management

The Group’s reported profit can be significantly
affected by currency movements. Approximately 39%
of the Group’s operating profit generated in the year
to 31 March 2005 was earmed in currencies gther
than sterling. 'h order to reduce the impact of
cutrency fluctuations on the value of investments

in overseas countries, the Group has a policy of
borrowing in US dollars and euros, as well as in
sterling, and of entering into forward foreign
exchange contracts in its key overseas currencies.
During the year ended 31 March 2005 the Group
continued to enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to sell the US dollar, the eurp and the
South African rand, in order to hedge a proportion
of the value of its investment in its overseas
businesses. Additionally, the Group has a poiicy

of hedging foreign currency denominated
transactions by entering intc forward exchange

sale and purchase contracts.

Interest rate risk management

The Group's interest rate exposure is managed by the
use of fixed and fioating rate borrowings and by the
use of interest rate swaps to adjust the balance of
fixed and fioating rate liabiiities. The Group also
mixes the duration of its"borrowings to smooth the -
impact of interest rate fluctuations.

interest costs

At £26m, interest costs were £28m jower than last
year, with the reduction occurring mainly in the first
half. This principally reflects the benefits from selling
the Group’s share of its property joint venture {f14m
benefit), a further 11.5% stake in Burberry {£7m
benefit) and the home shopping businesses (£5m
benefit) during the previous financial year, interest on
the proceeds of the sale of Lewis shares in September
2004 contributed a further £4m benefit, Funding
costs charged against ARG Financial Services
operating profit were also £6m higher. The impact of
the share buyback was a £3m cost, the majority of
which fell into the second half of the year.

Credit risk

The Group's exposure to credit 7isk is managed by
dealing only with banks and financiai institutions
with strong credit ratings, within limits set for each
organisation. Dealing activity Is ¢losely controlled and
counter-party positions are monitored daily.

Acquisitions

Acquisitions amounted to £181m, all of which were
made by Expetian. They inciuded the acquisition of
QAS, the leading supnlier of address management
software in the UK (for a net cost of £90m), and
Simmons, a market research company in the US.

in March 2005, Experian also bought a further

50% interest in Motorfile from the Automaobile
Association, taking Experian’s holding to 1 00%.
Experian also continued to purchase affiliate credit
bureaux in the United States.
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Financial review continued

Dispasals

A partial IPO of Lewis Group took place in September
2004 with 46m shares (46% of the equity) sold for
net proceeds of £105m and a further 4m shares
allocated to Lewis share incentive schemes. Although
the transaction was modestly dilutive to earnings,
the listing enabled CUS to realise value, while at the
same time enhancing the development opportunities
for Lewis.

In May 2003, the Group disposed of its home
shopping businesses in the UK, Ireland and Sweden,
together with Reality, its logistics and customer care
business in the UK. The net book value of assets at
the date of compietion was estimated at £800m.

A provision of £210m was taken in the year to
March 2003, with a further charge of £43m made
in the year to 31 March 2004. Following agreement
of the completion statements and the settlement of
certain warranty claims, a further charge of £27m
has been made in the year ended 31 March 2005
reflecting full and final settlement of all ctaims that
have arisen out of the disposal of these businesses,
A further £140m is receivable by GUS in May 2006
representing deferred proteeds from this sale.

Exceptional items

2005 2004
72 months to 3] March im im
Cantinuing operations
Disposa) of shares in Burberry 4 159
Restructuring costs incurred by Argos Retail Group
following the dispesal of home shopping and
Reality businesses - (7)
Loss on sale of other businesses [¥2) (53}
Exceptional (charge)/profit in respect of
continuing operations {3) 29
Discontinued operations
Net prafit on IPO of Lewis Group 20 -
Loss on disposal of hame shopping
and Reality businessas 27 (36)
Disposal of interest in BL Universal PLC - (5)
Exceptional charge in respect of
discontinued operations {7) {41)
Taotal exceptional (charge}/profit (10) 58

Exceptional items

The only costs treated as exceptional items are those
associated with the disposal or closure of businesses,
All other restructuring costs have been charged
against operating profit in the divisions in which they
were incurred.

An exceptional loss of £10m was recorded during the
year. The significant exceptional items were the
£20m profit on the partial IPO of Lewis Group, net of
the cost of associated employee share schemes, and
a £27m charge for the loss on the disposal in May
2003 of the Group's home shopping and Reality
businesses {as discussed under Disposals above). The
loss on sale of other businesses was principally in
respect of the sales by Experian international of two
small non-core businesses.

Minority interests

Profit attributable to equity minority interests in 2005
of £49m relates mainly to the share of profit
attributable to the minority shareholders of Burberry
and Lewis Group,

The minotity share of the net assets of Burberry and
Lewis Group is included within Minority interests on
the baiance sheet.

Pensions

The Group continues to report pension costs under
SSAP 24, In accordance with the FRS 17 transitional
arrangements, certain disclosures are included in
Note 35 to the financial statements. There is no effact
on the primary financial statements.

The Group's two UK defined benefit pension schemes
had modest deficits at 3F March 2004. To improve
the funding of these schemes, the Group again made
voluntary special contributions totaliing £7&m in
March 2005 (2004: £100m}. The contributions should
marginally increase earnings per share in the current
financial year and beyond,

The FRS 17 disclosures show a net deficit for all
ratirement benefit schemes of £78m net of tax relief
at 31 March 2005, This is after taking into account
the special contributions. The deficit is equal to less
than 1% of the Group's market capitalisation and can
prudently be resolved over a period of time.




Accounting policies and standards

The principal accounting peolicies used by the Group
are shown at Note 1 1o the financial statements on
pages 59 1o 61. No new Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted in this financial year
but the Group has adopted the provisions of UITF
Abstract 37 ‘Purchases and sales of own shares’ and
UITF Abstract 38 'Accounting for ESOP trusts' with
effect from 1 April 2004, The UITF Abstracts require
own shares held by the Company and ESOP trusts to
be deducted in arriving at shareholders' funds.

international Financial Reporring Standards

it is now mandatory for the consolidated financiaf
statemeants of ali Eurepean Unian listed companies to
be reported in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (iFRS) for periods commencing
on or after 1 January 2005,

The move to JFRS will not change how the Croup
is managed and will have no impact on cash flow.
It will, however, be likely to lead to increased
volatility in the profit and loss account and balance
sheet, with the presentation of the financial
staternerits afso affected.

The Group is now prepared for the adoption of IFRS.
The greatest impact on net assets and profit is likely
to come from changes to the accounting treatment
of goodwill amortisation and impairment, other
intangivles, financial instruments, share-based
remuneration, pension costs, tax and deferred tax.

Initial guidance, based on unaudited numbers,
of the overall impact of iFRS is provided in a separate
section of the Annual Report on pages 91 to 94.

The financial statements for the year to 3) March
2006 will be reported under IFRS, as will the interim
results for the six months to 30 September 2005,

Post balance sheet events

On 18 April 2005 the Group announced that Argos
had agreed to buy 33 Index stores and the Jndex
brand from Littiewoods Limited. The purchase price
is £44m payable in cash upon completion, which is
expected to be in July 2005,

On 5 May 2005 the Group announced that
Experian had acquired Y00% of the share capital

of LowerMyBilis.com, a leading online generator

of mortgage and other {pan application leads in the
United States. The purchase price is $330m, plus

a maximum performance related earn-out of $50m
over the next two years. The acquisition is being
funded from the Group's existing banking facilities.

On 19 May 2005 the Croup announced that it had
successfully completed the offering of its remaining
stake in Lewis Group, realising proceeds of £140m,

"Dcﬂu:ch {a%

David Tyier
Group Finance Director
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Board of directors

Sir Victor Elank (62}
Chairman

Sir Victor Blank was educated at Stockport Grammar
Schoot and St Catherine's College, Qxford,

He qualified as a soliciter with the law firm Clifford-
Turner (now Ciifferd Chance), becoming a partner in
1969. In 1981, he moved into investment banking
with Charterhouse, becoming Chairman and Chief
Execwive in 1335, He was a director of The Royal
Bank of Sc¢otland Greup plc fram 1985 10 1993,

He joined the Board of GUS in 1993,

Sir Victor retired from investment banking in 1987,
having become Deputy Chairman of CUS the
previous year. He became Chairman of CUS in 2000
and is alse Chairman of Trinity Mirror plc,

Sir victar is a member of the Financial Reporting
Leouncll and of the Council of Oxford University.
He cnairs two charities, 'WeliBemng 2nd UYS Hillel,
as well as the Council of University College School.

Sir WYC1oT i5 an Honorary Fellow of the Royat College
of Obstetricians and Cynaecologists, an Honorary
Feliow of St Catherine’s College, Oxford, a Fellow

of the Royal Society of Arts and Companion of the
Institute of Management.

John Coombe (60}
Non-executive director

John Coombe was educated at Haberdashers' Aske's
School in Elstree and Ciry of Londor College.

He gualified as a chantered accauniant with Dixen
Wiison & Co in 1969, before taking up the pesition
of Maznagement Accountant at BOC Ltd. He moved
to the Chanerhouse Graup plcin 1973 and became
Group Treasurer, before being appointed Finance
Manager of Chamer Consolidated ple in 1684,

in 1986, Jahn Conmbe joined Glaxo Heldings as
Group Financial Cantraller and, in 1992, was
appointed Finance Director. He continued in this
role through Glaxe's transfermational mergers with
Weicome and SmithKline Beecham, becoming Chief
Financial Officer of ClaxaSmithKline pic in 2000.
He retired from Claxodmithkline in March 2095,

John Coombe joined the Board of CUS in April 2005,
His arher business apocintments include member of
the Supervisory Eoard of Siemens AG, non-executive
director of HS8C Holdings plc and member of the
Code Committee of the Parel on Takeovers and
Mergers. Until 2003, he was a member of the UK
Accounting Standards Board. He is alst 2 trusiee

of the Royal Academy of Arts, where he chalrs the
audit committee,

Jabn Peace (56)
Group Chief Executive

John Peace joined the Board of GUS in 1997,
becoming Group Chief Executive in January 2000, In
June 2002, he was appointed Chairman of Burberry
Group plc, tn advance of its parial fiotation by GUS
in July 2002,

John Peace joined GUS in 1970 and held several
senior IT management positians before co-founding
CCN tn 1980. This was the company formed by CUS
1o market informanon services {o retaliers and other
lending organisations. in 1991, he was appointed
Chief Executive of CCN, which was by then one of
Europe’s largest infortnation services companies.

During the mid-nineties, CCN was combined with
a number of other US and Evropean businesses
to form 2 glebal information services organisation
cailed Experiaf, with john Peate as s Chief
Execative worldwide.

lohm Peace is Chairman of 1he Board of Governors of
Mottinghiam Frent University, a member of the Board
of Companions of the Chartered Management
Institute and a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts.

Andy Hornby {38)
Non-Executive Director

Andy graduated from Oxford University, with an

MA in English, before joining the Boston Consuiting
Group where he spent three vears working
principally en media and retall projects. From there
he went te Harvard Business School and abtained an
MBA. On his return, Andy joined Bive Circie, where
frem 1993 1o 1895 he was Business Development
Director of Blue Circle Home Products, He moved
from there to ASDA where ke held a humber of
senior genera] management roles culminating in him
becoming Managing Director of George, ASDAs
clothing business.

In November 1993, Andy joined the board of Halfax
as Chief Executive, Haiffax Retail. Following the
merger of Bank of Scotland and Halifax in September
2001. he became Chief Executive of the Retail
Division of HEQS plc, a position he currently hoids.

Andy joined the Board of CUS in January 2004.

David Tyter (52)
Group Finance Director

Davld Tyler graduated from Cambridge University,
where he read EConomids, in 1874,

He spent the first 11 years of his career working far
itnilever in 2 variety of financial, cammerclal and
strategic jobs. in 1986 he joined County Natwest
where he worked in senior financial centrol roles.
He then worked for Christie’s Internationai from
1989 ro 1996 as Finance Director and as President
of Christie’s America,

David Tyler has been Group Finance Director of GUS
singe February 1987, Aside from his financial role,
he also has respansibility for the develapment

of {roup strategy. He is 2 non-executive director

of Burberry Group pic and Lewis Group Limited.

He is a Fellow of the Chartered Instiiute of
Management Accountants and a Member of the
Assoclation of Corporate Treasurers.

Qliver stocken (63)
Non-Executive Directer

After qualifying with Arthirr Andersen, Diiver
Stocker became a director of NM Rothschitd & Sons
and subsequently Managing Directer of Barciays
Australia and of Barciays Merchant Bank in London.

At the inception of BZW Holdings in 1986 he was
a member ¢f the Board, becoming Chief Gperating
Officer in 1890 and later Finance Director. In May
T893 he became Group Finance Directar, Barclays
PLC, finishing this role in September 1999,

Dliver Stocken was appointed ¢ the Geard of GUS
in April 2000 and thairs the Audit Committee.

He Is Deputy Chairman of 3t plc and a non-executive
director of The Rank Croup ple, Standard Chartered
ple, Pilkington pic, Searchspace Group Limited,
Rutland Trust plc and Stanhepe plc.

Oliver Stocken is also z Trustee of the Natura!
History Museum; Council Member and Treasurer

of the Royal College of Art; Treasurer and Member
of the Committee of the MCC, and Trustee of the
Heniey River & Rowing Museum.
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Don Robert (46)
Chief Executive Officer
Experian Craup

TYerry Duddy (49)
Chief Executive,
Argos Reqail Graup

Secratary
Gordor Bentiey

Audil Cammitiee

Oliver Stecken (Chairman)
Jonn Caombe

Andy Hornby

Frank Newman

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Stockhrokers Lady Patten
JPMorgan Cazenove Sir Afan Rudge
Merrill Lyneh . .

o Remuneratian Cormmittee
Solicitors Lady Patten (Chairman}
Linklaters

John Coembe
Andy Homby
Frank Newman
Sir Alan Ruage

Berwin Leightan Paisner

Registerad Dffice
One Stanhope Gate

Don Robert graduated fram Qregon State University
with a degree in Business Administration. He began
his career with ({.5. Bancomp, a mufti-state bank
holding combany, where he held positichs of
increasing responsibility over 15 years, From there
he joined Credca, Inc., the nation’s largest specialist
credit reparting campany, as President, In 1693,
Credto was acquired by First American Cotporation
and over the next six years Don Robert held
positions as Executive Vice President of Martgage
Crigination Services and President of First American’s
Consumer Infermation and Services Group.

In 2001, Don Rabet joined Expertan from First
Ametican, becoming Chief Executive Officer

of Experian North America in December 2002,

in February 20C5, he took responsibiiity for Experian
globally as Chief Executive Officer of Experian Group.

Don Robert joined the Board of GUS in April 2005,
His other business appolhtments include director
and compensation committes chairman of Firsy
Advaniage Corporation, member of the Chapman
university Boatd of Counselors and past Chairman
of the Consumer Data Industry Association.

Lady Patten of
Winganron (51}
Nonr-Executive Direricr

Louise Patten joined the Board of CUS in 1997 and
chairs the Remuneration Commitee, She is aiso
Chairman of Brixton pl¢ 2rd a nor-gxecutive directar
of &radford & Bingley plc and Somerfieid plc, as well
as Senior Adviser 10 Bain & Co.

Louise graduateg from Oxford University in 1977
and went from there ta Citibank. She rantained
in banking until 1985, when she moved into
management consultancy, In 1993, Louise joined
Bain & Co, the globat strategy consultancy, as

a partmer.

Lowise has considerable experiente as a hon-
executive director. She was a director of Hilon plc
from 1993-2003, Harveys Furnishings pic from
79932000 and the Catholic Building Society from
1943-1997. Louise is senior non-éxecutive director
and remuneration committee chairman of Somerfield
plc, whose board she joined in 1998, and was Its
interim Chawrman from 1999-2000. I 200!, she
joined the Board of Brixton pic as a non-executive
director, taking over the chairmanship of Brixton in
May 2003, in December 2003, Louise was appointed
a non-executive director of Bradford & Binpgley plc.

Terry Duddy began his career at Letraset in 1978,
initially in personnel management and later in
product management. He joined the Dixons Stores
Group in 1884, where he held various commercial
positions, including Sales Director of Currys, Product
Marketing Directar of the Dixons Stores Group and,
larterly, Maraging Director of PC World,

Terry Duddy joined GUS ir August 1598 as Chief
Executive of the newly acquired Argos, becoming

a dirgctor of GUS later that year. in 2000 he was
appointed Chief Executive of the Argos Retall Group.

$ir Alan Rudge (67}
Non-Executive Director

Sir Alan Rudge was Deputy Chief Executive of BT
untii November 1997 and Chairman of WS Atkins
unti! March 2001, e joined the Board of CUS In
1997 and until March 2005 was President of CELTEL
International 8Y and a non-executive director on

the Board of SESA AG. He is currently Chairman of
the ERA Foundation Ltd ang Pro Chancelior of Surrey
University. $ir Alan is the seniar independent
direcrar of CUS.

Sir Alan has a PhD in Electrical Engineering and

is a2 Fellow of the Roya! Society and the Royal
Acadermy of Engineering. He is a past President of
the Institution of Electrical Engineers and past
Chairman of the Engingering and Physical Sciences
Research Council.

London WIK [AF
Company No.T46575
Registrars and Transfer
Dffice

Lioyds TSB Registrars

The Causaway

Oliver Stacken

Nomipation Committee
Sir Victor Blank {Chairman}
John Coombe

Andy Hornby

Frank Newrman

warthing Lady Patten
Wast Sussex John Peace
BNOY 6DA Sir Alan Rudge
Corparate Governance Qfiver Stocken
Lommittee

Sir Victor Blank {Chairman)

Jonn Peace

Sir Alan Rudge
Lorden Remtley

Erank Newman (63) (USA)

Non-Executive Director

Frank NMewman, who joined the Board of GUS in
2001, is Chairman Emeritus of Bankers Trust
Cerporation, having served as its Chairrean and
Chief Executive Officer from 1995 10 1999. He now
serves as the Acting Chairman of Shenzhen
Deveiopment Sank.

Befare joining Bankers Trust, Mr Newmam was

the Deputy Secretary of the United States Treasury
Depaniment. He served in the Treasury Department
from early 1993 until late 1955, As Deputy
Secretary, Mr Newman was the number two official
and Chief Operating Officer of the department,

Previously, Mr Newman spent Six years with
BankAmerica Corporation, where he was Chief
financial Officer and Vice-Chairman of the 8oard.
Prior 10 joining BankAmerica in 1886, he was
Executive Vice Prestdent and Chief Financial Officer
of Wells Fargo Bank.

Mr Newman is a director of Dow Jones & Company
ard Shenzhen Development Bank, He is a2 member
of the advisory board of Renault and Nissan. He i3
aiso 2 board member of three public-purpose
organisations: the Carnegie Hall Sacrery, Carneli
University Weill Medical College, and MDRC (public
pelicy research).
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Directors’ report

The directors present their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2005.

Principal activities and business review

GUS% is a retail and business services group, Its activities comprise
general merchandise retailing through Argos Retail Group;
information and customer relationship management services
through Experian; and luxury goods through a majority
shareholding in Burberry, A review of the resuits for the year and
an indication of future developments appear on pages 4 to 15,
Research and development investment has been a high priority
for the Group in driving growth, particularly in relation to product
development at Experian as indicated in the Operationa! review
on page 21, Research and development expenditure totalled £2m
during the financial year (2064: £2m),

Profit and dividends

The Group profit and loss account an page 54 shows a profit for the
financial year of £423m (2004: £473m). The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 20.5p per ardinary share to be paid on
5 August 2005 to shareholders on the register on 8 July 2005, An
interim dividend of 9.0p per ordinary share was paid on 4 February
2005 giving a total dividend for the year of 29.5p (2004: 27.0p).

Directors

The names and biographical details of the directors are shown on
pages 30 and 31. Particulars of directors’ emoiuzments, service
contracts and their interests jn the shares of the Company and its
subsidiaries are shown in the Report on directors' remuneration and
related matters on pages 41 10 50. There were no changes in the
directors’ interests in shares between the end of the financial year
and 25 May 2005.

Craig Smith died on 21 July 2004, Lord Harris left the Board at the
Annual General Meeting in 2004 and Alan Smart left the Board on
4 Qriober 2004.

Don Robert and John Coombe joined the Board on 1 April 2005,
As the appointments were made after the last Annual General
Meeting, each will retire in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association and resolutions for their election will be proposed
at this year's Annua! General Meeting.

The directors retiring by rotation at this years Annual General Meeting
are fohn Peace, Terry Duddy and Frank Newman who, each being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election,

During the year, the Company maintained liability insurance for its
directors and officers.

Corporate qgovernance

The Company’s statement on corporate governance is set aut on
pages 34 to 39.

Acgyuisitions and disposals

The partial flotation of Lewis Group Limited in South Africa was
successfully completed in September 2004 through an initial public
offering which saw approximately 46 per cent of Lewis Group
shares pass to external investors. This transaction produced net
proceeds of £105m for GUS.

The cash cost of acquisitions, all of which were made by Experian,
amounted to £181m. They included the acquisition of QAS, a leading
supplier of address management software in the UK {for a net cost of
£80m) and Simmons, a market research company in the US,

Post balance sheet events

On 18 April 2005 the Group announced that Argos had agreed to
buy 33 Index stores and the Index brand from Littlewoods Limited.
The purchase price is £44m payable in cash upon completion,
which is expected to be in Juiy 2005,

On 5 May 2005 the Group announced that Experian had acquired
the whole of the share capital of LowerMyBills.com, a leading online
generator of mortgage and other loan application leads in the US.
The purchase price was $330m, plus a maximum performance
related earn-cut of $50m over the next two years.

On 19 May 2005 the Croup announced that it had successfully
completed the offering of its remaining stake in Lewis Group,
realising proceeds of £140m.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 25 May 2005, the Company had been netified of the
following interests in the nominal value of its issued share capital:

Percentage
Nom:inal  of nominal
value of vilue af
issued share issued share
capital caphal
£ %

Legal & General Investment
Management Limited 10,162,187 4.1
Barclays PLC 10,068,409 4.0
Lloyds T5B Group plc 8,314,034 3.3

Save for the above, no person has reported any material interast
of 3 per cent or more or any non-material interast equal to or more
than 10 per cent of the nominal value of the issued share capital
of the Company.

Purchase of own shares

At last year's Annual General Meeting, authority was given for
the Company to purchase, in the market, up to 100 million of its
shares, representing approximately 9.8 per cent of its issued
Ordinary share capital.

The authority to make market purchases expires at this year’s
Annual General Meeting when shareholders will be asked w give a
similar authority. Details are contaired in the accompanying circular
1o shareholders.

During the year under review, the Company purchased 22 million
shares under this authority at a cost of £200m of which 3.5 million,
costing £30m, were cancelled while the remainder continued to be
held as treasury shares,

Interests in own shares

Details of the Company's interests in its own shares are sef out in
note 24(c) to the financial statements on page 73.
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Donations

The Group’s support for charitable causes is mainly channelied
through the work of the GUS Charitable Trust. The Trusts income
from the Company in respect of the year ended 31 March 2005
was £1,400,000 {2004: £1,240,000). The Croup also contributed
£310,000 to the Tsunami Disaster Appeal. In addition to cash
contributions, the Group’s employees are encouraged to give their
time and skifls for the benefit of a variety of charitable causes.

Charitable donations made by Burberry during the vear under
review amounted to £346,000 (2004: £198,000).

The Group made no political donations and incurred no items of
potitical expenditure during the year under review.

Employment policies

The Group cansistently endorses practices that demonstrate its
commitment to a diverse empioyment base but which allows each of
its businesses to adopt employment processes that reflect the needs
of their own business sector. The Group is committed to ensuring
that career opportunities are offered without discrimination and that:

All employees receive fair and equal treatment irrespective of
gender, ethnic origin, age, nationality, marital status, religion,
sexuality or disability;

The warking environment is conducive to providing a safe and
encouraging arena for all employees to develop at their own
pace, to be treated with respect and to be free from sexual
harassment and intimidation;

Disabled persons, whether registered or not, have equal
opportunities when applying for vacancies, with due regard

to their aptitudes and abititias. In addition to complying with
legislative requirements, procedures ensure that disabled
employees are fairly treated and that their training and career
development needs are carefully managed. For those employees
becoming disabled during the course of their employment, the
Group is supportive, whether through retraining or redeployment,
so as to provide an opportubity for them to remain with the
Croup; and

The assessment of training needs and the provision of
appropriate training is delivered to its employees.

Health and safety

The Group actively works to identify and minimise alt risks.

It ensures that reasonakle precautions are taken to provide and
maintain working conditions for employees and visitors alike,
which are safe, heaithy and in compliance with statutory
requirements and appropriate codes of practice.

In additian, to ensure that these objectives are met, the Group
employs heaith and safety advisers and occupational health staff
on all major sites and ensures that up-to-date policies are regularly
circulated to employees and visitors as appropriate.

Employee invoivement

The Group is intent on motivating and keeping staff informed on
matrers that concern them in the context of their employment and
involve them through jocal consultative procedures. Where there
are recognition agreements with trade unions, the consultation
process is established through national and local trade union
representatives and through joint consultation committees.
Schemes offering share options or the acguisition of shares are
available for most employees. This encourages their contribution
1o the Group’s performance.

Information on matters of concern to empioyees is also
disseminated through conferences, meetings, publications and
electronic media.

Creditor payment
For all trade creditors, it is Group policy ta:

Agree and confirm the 1erms of payment at the commencement
of business with that supplier;

Pay in accordance with any contract agreed with the supplier or
as required by faw; and

Review continually the payment procedures and Jiaise with
suppliers as a means of eliminating difficulties and maintaining
a good working refationship.

Trade creditors of the Group at 31 March 2005 were 30 days
(2004: 28 days) based an the ratio of Group trade creditors at the
end of the year to the amounts invoited during the year by trade
craditors. The Company has no trade creditors.

Annual General Meeting

The eighty-seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held at the Radisson SAS Portman Hotel, 22 Portman Square, Lendon
W1H 9FL commencing at 11.30am on Wednesday, 20 July 2005.
The Notice of Meeting is included in a separate circular to
shareholders which accompanies this Annual Report. It is also
avaiiable on the Company’s website: www.guspic.com,

Auditars

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingness to continue in office and a resolution that they be
re-appointed will he proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Gordon Bentley
Secretary
25 May 2005

Registered Office:
One Stanhope Gate
tondon

WIK TAF
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Corporate governance

Combined Code

The Board of GUS is responsible for the Group's system of corporate
governance. The Board is committed to good governance and
supports the principles contained in the Combined Code on
corporate governance appended to the Listing Ruies of the Financial
Services Authority {(the “Code™), GUS complied throughout the year
with the Code’s provisions except in relation to the attendance

of all directors at the 2004 Annua! General Meeting and formal
reguirements in relation to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee referred to later. This statement describes how the
Company has applied the main and supporting principies set out

in the Code. -

The Board

At the date of this report, the Board consists of a Chairman,

a Group Chief Executive and nine other directors {three executive
directors and six non-executive diractors) one of whom,

Sir Alan Rudge is the senior independent director. The names and
biographica! detaiis of the directors are shown an pages 30 and 31
of this report.

The six non-executive directors are determined by the Board

10 be independent in character and judgement and there are

no relationships or circumstances which could affect, or appear

to affect, a director's judgement. The non-executive directors

are appointed for specified terms, the details of their respective
appointments being as set out in the Report on directors’
remuneration and related matters on page 50. Lady Patten and

Sir Alan Rudge were appoinied to the Board in 1997, Oliver Stocken
in 2000, Frank Newman in 2001, Andy Hornby in 2004 and

John Coombe in 2005,

The Chairman and the non-executive directors meet, at least
annually, as a group without the executive directors present.

At the conclusion of such meetings, the Chairman withdraws

so that, under the leadership of the senior independent director,
the non-executive directors have the opportunity to discuss any
appropriate issues and, at least annually, appraise the Chairman's
perfarmance, taking account of any views expressed by the
executive directors. The Board is satisfied that the Chairman's other
board appointments and commitments do not place constraints
on his ability to fulfil properly his role as Chairman of GUS. The
Chairman is also chairman of Trinity Mirror pic and has a number
of pro boro appointments (see page 30). The Chairman's principal
office is in the CUS registered office at One Stanhope Gate and he
is available as needed to carry out his responsibilities to GUS.

The Board has six scheduled meetings each year and meets more
frequently as required. It met on seven occasions during the year
under review, including the Spring 2005 meeting which actually

fell in early Aprii. Ore of these meetings took place at Experian’s
headquarters in North America.

in the case of Alan Smart, the CEQ of Lewis Group Limited, who
ieft the Board on 4 October 2004, decisions on whether or not he
needed to attend were taken in the light of the demands of the
business and specific issues arising on the Board agenda. Given
the demands of the preparatory work needed for the initiai public
offering of shares in Lewis Group Limited, it was agreed that

M Smart’s trave! should be restricied and, conseguently, he was
unable to attend three scheduled meetings and the 2004 Annual
Ceneral Meeting. Craig Smith passed away after a short iflness in
July 2005.

It is inevitable that there will be occasions when circumstances
arise to prevent directors from attending meetings. In such
circumstances, the usual practice is for the absent director to
review the Board papers with the Chairman and convey any views
an specific issues. The time commitment expected of non-executive
directors is not restricted to Board meetings. All independent
non-executive directors are members of the Audit, Remuneration
and Momination Committees. Time is spent visiting the Group's
pusinesses and attending Company events. in addition, they are
available for consultation on specific issues falling within their
particniar fields of expertise.

There is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the
Board for decision. The Board establishes averall Group strategy,
inciuding new activities and withdrawal from existing activities.
It approves the Group's commercial strategy and the operating
budget and monitors divisional performance through the receipt
of monthiy reports and management accounts. The approval

of acquisitions, for the most part, is a matter reserved for the
Board save that it delegates to the Group Chief Executive the
responsibility for such activities to a specified lavel of autharity,
There are authority levels covering capital expenditure which can
be exercised by the Group Chief Executive or by the Chairman
and Group Chief Executive jointly. Beyond these levels of authority,
projects are referred to the Board for approval.

Qther matters reserved to the Board inglude:
Treasury policy.
Internal controls, audit and risk management.

Approval of interim and annual financial statements.

Remuneration:

- the Company’s framework of executive remuneration and
its cost in the tight of recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee;

- the remuneration of non-executive directors.
Sutcession planning.

Pension schemes.

Corporate responsibility.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary.

The division of regsponsibilities between the Chairman and the
CGroup Chief Executive is ciearly established, set out in writing and
agreed by the Board. The Chairman and the Company Secretary
work closeiy together in planning a forward programme of Board
meetings and establishing their agendas. For scheduled Board
meetings, the agenda usually comprises reports from the Group
Chief Executive, supported by reports from the chief executive of
each operating division and the Group Finance Director. The january
meeting focuses on an annual strategy review, the March/April
meeting deals with the approval of operating budgets for the
coming financial year, while the May and November meetings cover
the approval of preliminary and interim financiat statemeants
respectively, Members of senior management below Board level are
often invited to make presentations to the Board and participate in
certain aspects of the annual strategy review.

The Chairman ensures that the Board is supplied in a timely manner
with information in a form and of a guality to enable it to discharge
its duties, The practice is to have the agenda and supparting
papers in directors' hands four clear days ahead of each meeting.
Additional information is also provided to directors including
monthly management accounts irrespective of whether or not a
Board meeting is scheduled for that month. Arrangements are made
for non-executive directors to visit the Company’s subsidiaries to
see their operations at first hand and have the opportunity 10
discuss them with local management.
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There is in place a procedure under which the directors,

in furtherance of their duties, are abie to take independent
nrofessional advice, if necessary, at the Company's expense,

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are followed and all directors have access to his advice
and services.

All directors receive induction on joining the Board. A customised
induction process is condutted for new directors taking into account
their particular experience and background. This includes informaticn
on the Group and its activities, meetings with senior management
ang site visits. Additional training and updates on particular issues
are arranged for directors as appropriate. During the year under
review, briefings were provided an the new international Financial
Reporting Standards and changes in UK pensions legistation.

The Cornpany Secretary is responsible for advising the Board on all
corporate governance matters, a responsibility he discharges in part
through his membership of the Corporate Covernance Committee.

A formal evaluation of the performance of the Board and its
committees was conducted during the year under review. This
process was carried out using the services of an external facilitator
who conducted face-to-face interviews with each of the directors.
A report was distributed to each director and discussed at the
Board. The evaluation examined the functioning of the Board,
board processes, the roles of Chairman and Group Chief Executive,
Board compaosition and succession planning. The findings were
discussed by the Board and used to consider apportunities far
improvement. In addition, the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee conducted internal reviews of their effectiveness

using a questionnaire. The responses to the questionnaires were
reviewed and discussed by each Committee and, where areas for
improvement wete identified, actions have been agreed. individual
appraisals of directors have been undertaken by the Chairman and
senior independent directos. In the case of the Chairman, the
appraisal was carried out by the senior independent director.

All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders at the first
opportunity after their appointment and, thereafter, in accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association. This ensures compliance
with the Cade by providing that alt directors are required to submit
themselves for re-election at ieast once every three years.

As indicated earlier, the non-executive directors are appointed for
specified terms. Frank Newman is the only non-executive director
retiring by rotation this year. Mr Newman was appointed to the Board
on 10 December 200} and, accordingly, he has now completed one
full three year term of office. Foliowing the performance evaiuation
and individual appraisal referred to earlier, the Chairman and the
Board believe that Mr Newman should be re-elected and confirm that
his performance continues to be effective and to demonstrate
commitment to the role. ’

The letters of appoiniment for non-executive directors, inciuding
the Chairman, are available for ingpection by any person at the
Company’s registered affice during normal business hours and at
the Annual General Meeting {for 15 minutes prior to the meeting
and during the meeting). The Company maintains appropriate
insurance cover in respect of jegal action against its directors.

Board Committees

The Board has appainted a number of committees including
the following principal committees: Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Corporate
Covernance Committee. The Board reguiarly reviews the
chairmanship of its committees. [n order to ensure that undue
reliance is not placed on particular individuals, the Roard has
decided that all its independent hon-executive directors should
serve on its Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

The attendance of directors at Board meetings and meetings of
the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committees was as follows:

Corporate
Beard Board Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance
membher meetings Cammittee  Committee  Cammittee Committee

Number of meeatings
during vear:

Sir Victor Blank {note 5}
John Peace (hote 5)
John Coombe (note 1)
Terry Duddy

Andy Hornby

1
{
1
1

Frank Newman
Lady Patten

Don Robert (note 1)
Sir Alan Rudge
Oliver Stocken
David Tyier (note 5)
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Farmer directors who
served during the yean

Lord Harris (note 2)
Alan Smart (note 3)
Craig Senith (note 4)

Motas:

1. John Coombe and Don Robert were appointed te the Board on
1 April 2005.

Lord Harris left the Board on 21 july 2004.
Alan Smart left the Board on 4 Qctober 2004,
Craig Smith died an 21 july 2004,

w bW N

Sir Victor Blank and john Peace attended all meetings of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, David Tyler
attended ail meetings of the Audit Committee.

Nominartion Committee

The Board has estabilshed a Nomination Committee which leads

the process for Board appointments and makes recommendations

to the Board. The members of the Nomination Committes are

Sir Victor Blank (Chairman), the six non-executive directors and

John Peace (Group Chief Executive). Membership of the Committee
remained constant throughout the year under review save for the
retirement of Lord Harris in July 2004 and the addition of John Coombe
who joined the Committee upon his appointment to the Board in
April 2005. The Committee is chaired by the senior independent
director on any matter congerning the chairmanship of the Company.
The Company Sacretary is the Secretary to the Committee.

The Nomination Committee has written terms of reference covering the
authority delegated to it by the Board. These include the following duties:

To regularly review the structure, size and composition (including
the skilis, knowledge and experience required) of the Board and
make recommendations to the Board with regard 10 any changes.

To give full consideration to succession planning for directors and
other senior executives taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Company and what skills are, therafore,
needed on the Board in the future.

To be responsible for identifying and nominating, for the
approval of the Board, candidates to fil! 8pard vacancies as and
when they arise.
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Before nominating a candidate for appointment as a non-executive
director, the Committee evaluates the balance of skills, knowtedge
and experience on the Board and, in the light of this evaluation,
prepares a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee uses open advertising or the services of external
advisers to facilitate the search, considers candidates from a wide
range of backgrounds and considers candidates on merit ang
against objective criterfa, taking care that appointees will have
engugh time available to devote to the position, This describes the
process used in identifying John Coombe as a suitable candidate
and that led to his appointment to the 8oard on | April 2005.

in the case of executive directors, the Committee has nominations
presented to it by the Group Chief Executive and thereafter
nominates candidates for consideration by the Board, This process
was followed in the appointment of Don Robert to the Board on

| April 2005,

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference are available
on request and can be viewed on the Company’s website at
www.gusplc.com,

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee consisting
exclusively of independent non-executive directors: Lady Patten
(Chairman), John Coombe, Andy Hornby, Frank Newman, Sir Alan
Rudge and Oliver Stocken. The Chairman and Group Chief Executive
are invited to attend Committee meetings and each attended all
Committee meetings in the year under review, The application of
corporate governance principles in relation to directors’'
remuneration is described in the report on directors’ remuneration
and related matters on pages 41 to 51.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an Audit Committee consisting of six
noh-executive directors considered by the Board to be independent.
They are Oliver Stacken (Chairman), John Coombe, Andy Hornby,
Frank Newman, Lady Patten and Sir Alan Rudge. The Committee has
at least two members possessing what the Code describes as recent
and relevant experience. Oliver Stocken, a charterad accountant,
was group finance director of Bar¢clays PLC between 1993 and 1999,
Oliver Stocken joined the GUS Board on 1 April 2000 and was
appointed a member of the Audit Committee with immediate effect.
He became Chairman of the Committee in July 2000. John Coombe
ioined the Board on 1 April 2005 and was aprointed a member of
the Audit Committee with immediate effect. john Coombe was chief
financial officer of ClaxoSmithKline pic prior to joining the Board,
The other members of the Committee were appointed on the date
they were appointed to the Board and also offer a wide range of
experience from positions at the highest level both in the UK and
the US (the directors’ bingraphical details appear on pages 30 and 31).
The Chairman, Group Chief Executive and Group Finance Divector
are normally expected to attend Committee meetings and each
attended all meetings in the year under review.

The main roie and responsibilities of the Comraitiee are set out in
written terms of reference and include:

To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and any formal announcements relating to the
Company's financiai performance, reviewing significant financial
judgements contained therein,

To review the Company’s internal financial controls and its
internaf controis and risk management systems.

TJo moniter and review the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

To make recommendations to the Board, for it to put to
shareholders for approva! in general meeting, in refation to the
appointmens, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors
and to approve the terms of engagement of the external auditors.

To monitor and review the external auditors' independence

and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process taking
into consideration retevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements,

To develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditors to supply non-audit services, taking into
accaunt relevant athical guidance regarding the provision of
nen-audit services by the external audit firm,

The Committee also reviews the arrangements by which Company
employees may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
wrongdoing in financial reparting or other matters {so called
whistleblowing procedures) and is responsible for ensuring that
arrangements allow proportionate and indepandent investigation
of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

in reporting to the Board, the Committee identifies any matters in
respect of which it considers that action or improvement is needed
and makes recommendations as to the steps to be taken. As stated
earlier, in monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the audit
process, the Committee takes into consideration relevant UK
professional and regulatory requirements. These practices were not
formally refiected in the Committee's terms of reference during the
year under review but are now. The terms of reference including
the Committee’s role and the authority delegated to it by the Board
are reviewed annually. These are available on request and can be
viewed on the Company's wabsiie at www.gusplic.com,

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities are discharged in the
following manner:

At its meetings in May and Novernber, the focus falls on a
review of the Preliminary Announcement/Annual Report and
Financial Statements and the Interim Announcement respectively.
0On both occasions, the Committee receives reports from the
external auditors identifying any accounting or judgmental
issures requiring its attention.

A quarterly report from the Group Head of Risk Assurance and
the Heads of Internal Audit of Argos Retail Group and Experjan
are presented at each of the scheduled meetings. In addition,
at the March meeting, the internal audit plans for the coming
year are submitted to the Committee,

The external auditors present their audit plans at the March
rneeting and, at the September rmeeting, there is a detailed
review of the management letter covering the auditors' findings
in respact of the previous financial vear.

Croup companies are, from time to time, required to make
presentations to the Committee on the subject of risk and its
identification, management and controi.

As a matter of routine, the Committee is presented with
information on materia! litigation involving Group companies.

As noted above, one of the primary responsibilities of the Audit
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors. A number of factors are taken into account by the
Commitiee in assessing whether 1o recommend the external
auditors for re-appointment. These include;

The guality of reports provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board ant the gquality of advice given.

The level of understanding demanstrated of the Group's
businesses and its sectors,

The objectivity of the external auditors' views on the controis
around the Group and their ability 1o co-ordinate a global audit
working to tight deadlines.
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The Committee aiso assesses annually the effectiveness of the
external audit process. This assessment covers all aspects of the audit
service provided by the Company's external auditors, The Committee
also reviews annually a report on the external auditors’ own quality
controt procedutes.

(n addition, the Audit Committee has an important role to play
through its responsibitity for and oversight of the auditor relaticnship
and auditor independence. The Committee recognises that auditor
independence is an essential part of the audit framework and the
assurance it provides.

Aithough fower than the previous year, non-audit fees paid to the
Company’s auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in respect of
the year under review exceeded the audit fee. The Committee
has established control processes to safeguard the objectivity
and independence of the external auditors and to ensure that
the independence of the audit work undertaken by the external
auditors is not compromised.

The Committee has established a policy covering the type of
non-audit work that can be assigned to the external auditors.
The auditars may only provide such services provided that such
advice does not conflict with their statutory responsibilities and
athical guidance. These services are:

Further assurance services — where the external auditors' deep
knowledge of the Group’s affairs means that they may be best
piaced to carey out such wark. This may include, but is not
restricted to, shareholder and other circulars, regulatory reports
and work in connection with acquisitichs and disposals.

Taxation services — where the external auditors’' knowledge of
the Group's affairs may provide significant advantages which
other parties would not have. Where this is not the case, the
work is put out to tender.

General - in other circumstances, the external auditors may
provide services, provided that proposed assignments are put
out to 1ender and decisions to award work are taken on the basis
of demonstrable competance and cost effectiveness. However,
certain areas of work are specifically prohibited inciuding work
related to accounting records and financial statements that will
ultimarely be subject to external audit and management of, or
significant involvement in, internai audit services.

The Audit Committee Chairman's pre-approval is required before
the Company uses non-audit services that exceed financial limits
set out in the palicy.

The Committee recejves half-yearly reports providing details of
assignments and rejated fees carried out by the external auditars in
addition to their normal work. Such assignments carried out in the
year under review were;

£m
Further assurance services -
Taxation services
Ceneral 1

The Committee normaliy meets at least four times a year and

met five times during the year under review (including a risk
management presentation during a Board visit to Experiab in
North Amenica), The external auditors and the Group Head of Risk
Assurance and the Heads of internal Audit of Argos Retail Group
and Experian generally attend Audit Committee meetings.

In addition, the Committee meets the external auditors without
management present.

Corporate Governance Committee

To assist in its monitoring of corporate governance issues, the
Board has established a Corporate Governance Committes with
written terms of reference covering the authority delegated by the
Board. These include keeping under review all legisiative, regulatory
and corporate governance developments that might affect the
Company’s operations and making recommendations to the Board
in relation to them. The members of the Corporate Governance
Committee are Sir Victor Blank, John Peace, Sir Alan Rudge and
Gordon Bentley, the Company Secretary. The Committee met on
two occasions during the year under review,

Accountability and Audit

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group's
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectivenass. Such
a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or joss.
The Board reviews annually the effectiveness of the key proceduras
which have been astablished to provide internal control and has
daorie 50 in respect of the year under review.

The Board confirms that there is an cngoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group
including those risks relating to social, environmenta! and ethical
matters. This process was in place throughout the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and meets the
requirements of the guidance entitled “Internal Control: Guidance for
Directors on the Combined Code” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Engiand and Waies in 19589. The Audit Committee
has kept under review the effectiveness of this system of internal
control and has reported regutariy to the Board.

The key procedures, which operated throughout the year, are
as foilows:

Risk assessment:

~ The Group sets out its objectives clearly as par of its medium
term planning process. These objectives are then incorporated
as part of the budgeting and planning cycle and are supported
by the use of both financial and non-financia! key performance
indicators.

- The operating divisions are required to make presentations
on risk 10 the Audit Commitiee which reports regularly to the
Board on the risks facing the Group’s businesses.

- The detailed assessment of strategic risks is delegated to
the Group Chief Executive. This review is carried out as part
of the annual budgeting and the moanthly reporting and
re-forecasting cycles,

- The Audit Committee has delegated responsibility for
considering operationat, financial and compliance risks
on a regular basis and receives reports on the controls over
these risks annuaily. This includes risks arising from social,
environmental and ethical matters.
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Controd environment and control activities:

- The Group consists of a number of major trading divisions
each with its own management and control structures.

- The Group has established procedures for delegated authority
which ensure that decisions that are significant, either
because of the vaiue or the impact on other parts of the
Group, are taken at an appropriate level,

- The Group has implemented appropriate strategies to dea!
with each significant risk that has been identified. These
strategies include internal contrels, insurance and specialised
{reasury instruments.

- The Group sets out principles, policies and standards to be
adhered to by the divistons. These include risk identification,
management and reporting standards, ethical principles and
practice, accounting policy, treasury poiicy and policy on
fraud and whistleblowing. The divisions operate within this
framework under their own policies and procedures laid down
ir organisation and authority manuals.

Information and communication:

- The Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary control
including monthly performance reviews for each major
business and division. These reviews are at a detailed level
within the trading divisions and at a high level for the Board.

- On a monthly basis, the achievement of business objectives,
both financial and non-financial, is assessed using a range of
key performance indicators. These indicators are reviewed 5o
ensure that they remain reievant and reliable.

-~ The Group has whistleblowing procedures for employees to
report suspected improprieties.

Menitoring:

~ A range of procedures i5 used to monitor the effective
application of internal control in the Group, including
management assurance through confirmation of compliance
with standards, and independent assurance through internal
audit reviews and review by speciafist third parties.

~ The interpal audit department’s responsibilities include reporting
te the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internai contro!
systems focusing on those areas considered to be of greatest
risk to the Group.

- Follow-up processes are used to ensure there is an appropriate
response to changes and developments in risks and the
control environment.

Reiations with institutional sharehoiders

The Company recognises the importance of communicating with
its shareholders and does this through its Annuai and interim
Reports, at the Annual General Meeting and through the processes
described below.

Although most shareholder contact is with the Group Chief Executive
and the Group Finance Director, supported by management
specialising in investor relations, it is the responsibility of the Board
as a whole to ensure that a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders
takes place.

At each of its scheduied Board meetings, the Board reviews a
summary report of all important or relevant issues raised by
shareholders during the course of meetings and discussions with
1hem. Additionally, the Board obtains an independent insight into
the views of major shareholders by annually commissioning
research from a third pany adviser across a batanced sample of
GUS shareholders. The latter typically control some 20 to 30 per
cent of the Company's issved share capital. The findings of the
research are presented to the Board by the third party adviser.

Through these protesses, the Board is kept abreast of key issues.
There is afso a direct line of communication te the Chairman
available to shareholders particularly if there are issues of concern,
whether about performance, strategy or governance. Sir Alan Rudge,
as senior independent director, is also available should sharehoiders
have concerns which contact through the normal channels of the
Chairman, the Group Chief Executive and the Group Finance Director
has failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate.
Sharehotders are offered the opportunity to meet the Company’s
non-executive directors.

Shareholders who do not support a particular AGM resclution do
not always seek engagement with the Company to explain their
actions or request further information. The Company is keen to
understand their reasons for the lack of support and to have a
dialogue with sharehplders on these issues. Its policy, therefore,
insofar as is practicable, is to seek engagement with shareholders
on such issves,

Directors attend the Annual General Meeting and are available to
answer shareholders' questions. Alan Smart did not attend the 2004
Annual General Meeting for the reasons stated earlier. Voting at the
Annual General Meeting is by way of 2 show of hands by members
present at the meeting unless a poll is validly called. Following each
vote on a show of hands, unless a poll is validly called, the level of
proxies lodged on each resolution, the balance for and against the
resolution and the number of abstentions is displayed. The results
of vating at the Annual General Meeting are also added to the
Company's website as soon as possible afier sach meeting.

Corporate responsibility

GUS interprets the phrase corporate responsibility (CR) to imply
taking due regard of society’s expectations of large companies. It
shares the wideiy held view in the business community that these
expectations are for steadily higher standards of conduct, and for
the Company to take increased responsibility for the direct and
indirect effects of its operations.

The range of issues commonly embraced by the term CR is
extremely wide. GUS seeks to apply a focused definition of
corporate responsibility built on the following elements:

The principal duty of the Group is to maximise return to its
shareholders but it must do so0 in a manner consistent with
legal and ethical norms in the societias that surrgund it. Thase
norms lead to a set of explicit and implicit ethical obligations
far the Company.

Failure to recognise appropriate ethical obligations can lead to
sanctions against the Company that will damage its
performance or assets. This is not judged to he in the interests
of current or future shareholders.

Companies that are quick to respond to shifts in soctal artitudes
are often better placed 1o take advantage of new markets and
opportunities as they arise. A company with a positive sociai
reputation will also benefit from increased customer and
employee loyatty, leading in turn to advocacy on its behalf from
these important groups.

An important element of the management of CR is therefore the
identification of risks and opperunities arising from a more
holistic understanding of the social context of the Group's
businesses than might otherwise have been the case.

A targe and compiex group like the GUS Group cannot satisfy
every individual stakeholder on every one of their concerns.
Therefore, GUS seeks to prioritise its response based on the
current and future significance of the issue to its businesses.
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CUS has assessed its principal responsibilities to be as follows:

Labour, environmental and social practices in the Group's
supply chain.

Providing a working environment that is conducive to the
recruitment and retention of the widest possible range of
talented staff.

Protection of camsutmer privacy and the proper handling and
use of customer information.

Provision of a safe and healthy place of work.

Providing products of the appropriate guality, inciuding
responsible product sourcing and retailing, praduct safety
and reliabifity.

Serving custamers to their complete satisfaction.

Improving the Group’s enviranmental performance, principaliy
through its use of energy, the impact of its transpart fleet and
its use of bulk materiais such as paper and packaging.

Davelaping strong community relationships in suppart of its
business ohjectives.

In addition the Group is investigating the new business
opportunitias arising from socially-responsible products, and the
provision of services to help customers manage these issues.

As far as possible, GUS seeks to integrate the understanding and
control of these issues in its mainstream business practice. The
Group has a number of policies, procedures and verification
systemns in place to underpin its management in this area. These
are described below, following the disclosure guidelines of the
Assaciation of British insurers (ABI), which refer to social, ethical
and environmental matters (SEE) and do not use the term CR.

With regard to the Board

The Board 1akes reguiar account of the significance of social,
environmental and ethical matters to the businesses of the
Company. The responsibility for such matters lies with the
Company Secretary who ensures that they feature regularly on
the Board’s agenda. The Corporate Governance Committee also
keeps under review the Group’s policies in relation 1o CR and
external stakeholders views on CR issues. The Company
Secretary is supporied in this work by a CR group which meets

under his chairmanship and which draws on staff with relevant

expertise from across all of the Group’s businesses. It ingiudes
experts i communication, risk management, internal audit,
community affairs, consumer rights and the environment. It is
supported by external advisers.

The section on accountability and audit, which appears earlier,
inciudes, amongst other things, the Board's confirmation that
there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and

managing the significant risks faced by the Group, This process

inciudes the identification and assessment of the significant
risks to the Company’s short and long term value arising from
SEE matters, as well as the oppartunities to enhance value that
may arise from an appropriate response. The Company is

reviewing this process to take account of the new operating and

financial review reporting requirements that will apply in
respect of the ¢current financial year.

The Board receives adequate information to make this
assessment and, in this context, referance should be made to
the key procedures described earlier in the section on

accountability and audit. Account is taken of SEE matters in any

training programmes deemed appropriate on the appointment
of new directors.

With regard to paolicies, pracedures and verification

The Board has identified supply chain issues as an area of
potential risk that might significantly affect the Company’s
short and long term value. GUS has substantial buying power,
giving it some degree of responsihility for the actions of the
suppliers with which it deais. GUS takes seriously its own
social responsibility and seeks to guard against the risk to its
reputation through a potential association with undesirable
practices. To this end, the Board has approved a set of seven
principles that merchandise suppliers and business pariners
are asked to endorse. These are set out in more detail in the
separately published CR Report, Third party audit programmes
are now in place in Argos, Homebase and Burberry, with
merchandise suppliers and husiness partners being selected
for audit based on risk and significance to the business,

A programme in Experian UK focuses primarily on the
environmenial performance of the suppliers in support of
Experian's commitment to the anvironmental accreditation
1SC14001. This supply base presents in general a much lower
risk of secial and labour concerns.

The Group has a range of palicies and procedures covering
the other CR issues identified above which are described in the
separately published CR Report.

The Company's policies and procedures for managing risks to
short and long term value arising from SEE matters are as
described earlier in the section on accountability and audit.

An important aspect of the Company's SEE procedures is that
they should be subject to verification and this is refiacted in the
Group Head of Risk Assurance's membership of the CR group.
Two Croup internal Audits per year are reserved for issues
sponsored by the CR group. These are selected to cover any
material CR issues that have not already been covered by
existing audit plans, Such orevious audits have included overall
data collection processes; compliance with ethical principles;
management and control of environmental costs; and HR data
collection processes.

External verification is provided by Acona, a CR consuitancy
practice. Partners from Acona advise GUS on matters relating to
CR, including taking part in the CR group and CR reporting
activity, Specifically with regard to CR reporting, Acona reviews
data collection systems and examines the data for completeness
and accuracy. It also verifies that all claims it the report can be
supported by evidence. The conclusions from Aconas work are
available in full in the separately published CR Report.
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The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the report of the auditors set out on page 53, is made with a view to
distinguishing for sharehalders the respective rasponsibilities af the directors and of the auditors in relation 1o the financial statements.

The directors are requirad by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for the
financia} year.

The directors consider that in preparing the financial statements on pages 54 to 89, appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied, supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, and that alt accounting standards which they
consider applicable have been followed.

The directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources 1o meet its operationai needs for the foreseeable future and, accordingiy,
they cantinue 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that accounting records are kept which disciose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position
of the Company and the Group and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements compiy with the Companies Act 1985.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Company has a website which contains up to date information on Group activities and published financial resufts. The maintenance
ang integrity of this website is the responsibility of the directors. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ fraom legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters

There have been no changes to the framework or broad policy on remuneration since the 2004 Report on directors' remuneration and

related matters.

1. Remuneration Committee
1.1 Role
The Remuneration Committee is responsibie for:

determining the remuneration leve! and structure for executive directors and approving that of selected executives who report to the
executive directors;

communicating te shareholders on remuneration policy and the Committee’s work on behalf of the Board;
reviewing and recommending the design of the Company’s share schemes,

The remuneration of non-executive directors and the Chairman is a matter reserved for the Board as a whole. No director is invoived in any
discussions as to his or her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has written terms of reference which are availabie on request from the Company Secretary and are afso published
on the Company's website {www.gusplc.com).

1.2 Membership and meetings
The Remuneration Committee is a Board committee consisting exciusively of the following independent non-executive direciors:

Lacty Patten (Chairrman)
John Coombe

Andy Hornby

Frank Newman

Sir Alan Rudge

Oliver Stocken

The Committee met on six occasions during the year. Attendance at these meetings is set out in the corporate governance statement on page 35.
John Coombe joined the Committee upon his appointment to the Board on 1 April 2005.

1.3 Advisors

In making its decisions, the Committee consuits with the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive and the Croup Director of Human Resources who
are invited to attend meetings of the Committee as and wher appropriate.

‘The Commitiee also appointed Kepler Associates who advised on the following:
executive remuneration matters;
profit catibration for the setting of annual bonus targets; and

review and confirmation of the total shareholder return of GUS pic and the comparator group companies for the 2001 Performance Share Plan,
the performance cycle of which ended on 31 March 2004,

Other than the above remuneration advice, no other services were provided to the Company by Kepler Associates.

in addition, the following advisors have been retained on behalf of the Company, and provide information to the Committee an relevant matiers
being considered by the Committee:

Towers Perrin - salary survey data and administrative support on various share schemes.
Watson Wyatt — retirement benefits and pensions advice.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP — tax setvices in respect of company share schemes, They also provide audit and tax services to GUS pic as
disciosed in note 7 of the financial statements.
2. Remuneration policy
2.1 Principles

The reward strategy aims o align exgcutive director and senior management remuneration with shareholders’ interests and to attract and retain
the best talent for the benefit of the Group. The key principles are:

i. To provide competitive performance-related compensation which influences performance, and helps attract and retain executives by providing
the opportunity to eam substantial rewards for outstanding performance.

2. To apply demanding performance conditions to deliver sustained profitable growth in all pur businesses, thereby aligning incentives to
shareholders’ interests.

3, To provide a balanced portfolio of incentives - bonus, options and shares.
4, To pay markel-competitive base salary levels but no higher than this.
5. To provide accountability and transparency.

Consistent with the strategy, salaries are set on the basis of mid-market practice amongst UK companies of comparable size. Parformance-related
incentives are targeted at upper quartile levels for outstanding performance 1o produce a highly leveraged package if our growth objectives are
attained. The Company is committed to gerformance-related payments at all levels within the organisation.
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Report on directors’ remuneration and related matters continued

2.2 Elements of remuneration

The remuneration package is weighted towards the performance-relazed elemenzs. in fair value terms, the proportion of total pay (excluding
pensions and benefits) which is variable is approximately 64 per cent, as illustrated below. On the basis of actual performance in 2004/05,
BC per tent of executive directors’ remuneration was performance-retated.

Fair value of executive directar temuneration

Fixed

remusecstion  36% . The Remuneration Committee selects performance measures that align with the

Company’s strategic goals and that are transparent and clear to both directors and
shareholders. Each element in the reward package is designed 1o support the achievement

. Pel;fm:lnanﬂ- of different Company chjectives, as illustrated below:
F ralate
remuneration

Elernent Purpose Performance measure

(a) Base salary ~ Reflects the competitive salary tevel far the particular role. - Individual contribution.
- Takes account of personal contribution, skill and performance.

(b) Annual bonus - Rewards the achievement of annuai financial targets. - Profit before tax together with efficient
- Provides opporiunity to re-invest bonus in GUS shares with capital usage.

matching apportunities.
- Aligns with shareholder interests through delivery in shares.

tc) Share options ~ Direct tink 10 growth objectives through EPS growth hurdie ~ EPS growth measured over a continuous
and to value creation through share price increase. three-year period.
- Aligns with shareholder interests. - No longer a retest facility.,
{d) Performance Share Pian - Aligns with shareholder interests through delivery of shares. - Relative total shareholder return against
- Rewards out-performance compared to peers. tailored comparator group measured over

a three-year period, subject to satisfactory
averall financial performance,

(a) Base saiary and benefits

To ascertain the job's market value, external remuneration consultants annually review and provide data about market salary levels and advise the
Remuneration Committee, Executive directors’ salaries are benchmarked against a mid-market leve! of main board executive directors from the
comparator companies in the FTSE 100 index, currently defined as those ranked from FTSE 11 ~ 40, Before making a final decision on individual
salary awards, the Committee assesses each directars contribution to the business, tq reflect individual performance and experience,

In addition to base salary, executive directors receive certain benefits in kind inciudirg a car or car allowance, private health cover and life assurance.
{b} Annuai bonus

To reward annual performance, executive directors are eligible for an annual incentive with a target of 50 per cent of base salary and a maximum
of 100 per cent of salary for substantially exceeding targets.

Directors are givenh the opportunity to defer receipt of their bonus and invest it in GUS shares under the Co-investment Plan. The number of
shares acquired on behalf of the executive is matched on a sliding scaie depending on the achievement against target for the relevant financial
year and can be summarised as follows:

Thresnald Target Maximum
Bonus potential {% of base salary) 0% 50% 100%
Marching ratic 0* 1:1 21

* Between threshold and target the matching ratio rises from 0.25:1 to 1:1 on a straight-line basis,

The release of these shares is deferred for three vears including the deferred bonus. For matching shares awarded after 31 March 2004 and in
subsequent years, dividends will be accrued. if an executive resigns during the three-year period he/she will forfeit the right to the marching
shares and associated dividends,

Bonuses are currently awarded for achieving profit growth and meeting efficient capital usage targets. We believe that linking incentives to profit
growth helps to reinforce our growth objectives and is an appropriate measure for a predominantly retail business, Targets are caiibrated by
Kepier Associates using benchmarks that reflect internai and external expectations. These include: broker earnings estimates for CUS; earnings
estirnates for GUS’ competitors; straight-line profit growth consistent with median/upper quartile shareholder returns over the next three to five
years; latest projections for the current year; budget; sirategic plan; long-term financial goals, etc.

{¢) Share options

The Executive Share Option Scheme (ESCS) is finked to share price providing a buiit-in performante driver for option holders and further aligns
them with shareholders’ interests. in addition, there is a performance test based on adjusted Earnings Per Share (EPS). For all grants up to and
including the December 2003 grant the performance test requires EPS compound annual growth to exceed compound annval retail price infiation
by +4 per cent per annum over a continucus three-year period. This performance test may be repeated twice.

During 2003/04 the Remuneration Committee decided to remove retesting from ESQS to strengthen alignment with shareholders. Consequently,
for options granted since january 2004 there is no retesting of the EPS performance condition.
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Subject to meeting the performance test, aptions vest three years after grant, and remain exercisable for seven years after vesting. No director
may normaliy raceive an option grant with a face vaiue of more than one times salary in any one year. In exceptionai circumstances the
Remuneration Committee has discretion to grant up 1o two times salary.

() Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan underpins the longerterm incentive structure by providing a share-based reward which is earned only when the

Company out-performs its peers,
GUS' performance under this plan is assessed in terms of three-year total sharehoider return in refation to the following group of peer companies:

Acxiom Kingfisher Reed Elseviar
Boots Marks & Spencer Reuters
Dixons N. Brown Signet
Equifax Next Tesco

Harte Hanks Pinault Printéemps Redoute

None of the awards vests if GUS' total shareholder return (defined as share price movement pius reinvested dividends) i5 below the median rerurn
for the comparator group. Once CUS achieves mediar performance, 40 per cent of the award may vest, while 100 per cent of the awars may be
earned for an upper quartile return or better. This can be summarised as follows:

Pasition % of performance shares that will vest
1 100
2 100
3 00
4 100
5 85
<) 70
7 55
8 (median) 40
9t0 15 0

No awards will be released unless the Remuneration Committee is also satisfied with the Company's underiying financial performance over the
relevant period.

The maximum grant normally available to directors is 100 per cent of salary, converted to shares at the price prevailing at the time the awards are
made. In exceptional circurnstances the Remuneration Committee has discretion to grant a higher amount. The awards vest, to the extent that the
performance test is met, after three years. The majority of participants receive a grant of 50 per cent of salary.

Ouring 2003/04, the Remuneration Committee decided to introduce dividend accrual on performance shares to strengthen alignment with
shareholders. Consequentiy, performance shares awarded after 3§ March 2004 accrue dividends.

e} Pensions

Pensions are offered in line with local competitive practice. The retirement age for directors in the UK is 60 under arrangemenss which broadly
provide a pension of two thirds of final salary (subject to Inland Revenue limits}, life assurance at four times salary and ill heaith and dependants'
pensions. Incentive payments {such as annuai bonuses) are not pensionable. ’

Arrangements are in ptace to provide pension benefits to those executive directors affected by the pensions cap. These are designed to provide
pension benefits in excess of the Infand Revenue cap thereby placing those directors in broadly the same pasition as directars whose pension is
unaffected by this cap. Further details are provided under the disciosure of the arrangements for each director.

The Finance Act 2004, together with the Pensions Act 2004, make major changes to the taxation and regulation of occupational pension
schemes, and to the benefits which occupational pension schemes may provide. The legistation introdutes changes progressively over the course
of 2005 and 2006. GUS is actively considering the implications for the provision of pensions to all of its employees and directors. The Company
expects to offer directors a choice between continuing pension benefits or a cash payment, caiculated by the actuary as broadly representing the
value of the benefits given up. Further work on other aspects of the legistation will continue throughout 2005/06.

(N} Service contracts

All executive directors have rolling service contracts which can be terminated by the Company giving twelve months' notice. in the event
of termination of the director’s contract, any compensation payment s caiculated in accordance with normal legal principles, including the
application of mitigation to the extent appropriate in the circumstances of the case,

(¢ Impact of JFRS

With effect from 1 April 2005, the Company will be reporting its results in accordance with International Finandial Repotting Standards ('IFRS",
This will affect reported earnings and performance in comparison with past years. Performance targets and tests under the Company's incentive
plans will be adjusted, where relevant, 1o ensure consistency of treatment during the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS reporting.
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2, Non-executive directors’ remuneration policy

The GUS policy an non-executive directors' remuneration is that;
Remuneration shouid be in line with recognised best practice and sufficient to atract, mativate and retain high calibre nan-executives.
Remuneration should be set by reference to the responsibilities undertaken by the non-executives.
Remunaration shouid be a combination of cash fees (paid monthly) and GUS shares {bought annually in fuly).

Non-executive directars are obliged to retain shares awavded untii their vetirement from the Board. Any tax liability connacted to these
arrangements is the responsibility of the individual director.

Non-executive diractors should not receive share options from the Company.
Non-executive directors do not receive any berefits in kind, with the exception of the Chairman who has the use of a company car.

The fees of non-executive directars are normally reviewed every two years with effect from 1 July. Fees are reviewed in the light of market
practice in FTSE 100 companies and anticipated number of days worked, tasks and responsibilities, Folfowing the 2004 review, remuneration is

as follows:

Cash £ Nuraber of shares
Chairman 267,000 15,000*
Non-executive base fee 35,000 2,500
Senior non-executive director . 10,000 -
Chairman of Audit/Remuneration Committee 10,000 1,500

*18,000 shares with effect from july 2005.

L Valuc of £T00 invested in March 2000 - shown on a monthly basiz
® GUs

The directors have chosen to iliustrate the total ¥ FTSE 100 fndex

shareholder return (TSR for GUS pic against the B8 Seusie Repler

FTSE 100 Index for the last five financial years. :
In the apinion of the directors, the FTSE 100 index
is the most appropriate index against which TSR
should be measured, as it is a widely used and

understood index of leading UK companies. L2

4. Performance graph

L1t

o
o
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The information set out in sections 3 to §0 below has been subject to audit,

5. Directors’ emoluments

The following tablie shows an anaiysis of the emoluments of the individua! directors for the year ended 31 March 2005.

Annual Taxable
Salary bonus bensafits
£'000 {'000 £'000

Executive directors

Terry Duddy 670 670 24
john Peace {Mote 1) 760 760 30
Alan Smart (Note 2) 68 64 6
Craig Smith (Note 3) 129 128 6
David Tyler (Note 1) ) 470 470 19

Non-executive directors

Sir Victor Blank 383 - 33 416 357
Lord Harris of Peckham {Note 4) 10 - - 10 45
Andy Hornby (Note 5) &S - - 55 [
Frank Newman 5% - - 55 48
Lady Patten of Wincanton 77 - - 77 67
Sir Alan Rudge 65 - - 65 56
Ofiver Stocken 77 - - 77 67

The following shares were purchased for the non-executive directors on 22 July 2004, The value reported below is included within the
remuneration reported in the above table:

Nuriber 6f Value

. shares £

Sir Victor Blank 15,000 128,284
Andy Hornby 2,500 21,382
Frank Newman 2,500 21,382
Lady Patten of Wincanton 4,000 34,210
Sir Alan Rudge 2,500 21,382
Oliver Stocken 4,000 34,210

Notes

1.

nos e

During the year under review, John Peace served as non-executive Chairman angd David Tyler as a non-executive director on the board of
Burberry Group pic, 2 listed company in which GUS retains approximately 66 per cent of the issued share capital. David Tyier served as a
non-executive director on the board of Lewis Group Limited, a company listed in South Africa in which GUS retained approximately 54 per cent
of the issued share capital. Neither executive received any additional remuneration for such services.

Alan Smart left the Board on 4 October 2004.

Craig Smith died on 20 July 2004.

Lord Harris of Peckham left the 8oard on 21 July 2004,

Andy Hornby was appointed to the Board on 21 January 2004.
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6. Share options

I June 2004, executive directars received an option grant with a face value of one times salary under the Company’s executive share
aptian schemas,

Details of options granted to executive directors, under the Company's executive share option schemes, are set out in the table below:

Totat

Options Options Share Dwe numper of
Number aof granted exarcised price on from options at
aptions at during during Exercise date of which Expiry 31 March
1 April 2004 the year the year price exercise exercisable date 2005
Terry Duddy
i1.06.01 150,155 - - 612.7p - 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 80,398 - - 653.0p - 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 85,862 - - 675.5p - 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 - 82,797 - 809.2p - 01.06.07 31.05.14
- 399,212
John Peace
11.06.01 195,854 - - 612.7p - 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 99,540 - - 653.0p - (6.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 103,626 - - 675.5p - 19.06.06 18.06.73
01.06.04 - 83,819 - 809.2p - 01.06.07 31.05.4
492,939
Alan Smart
£1.06.01 37,038 - - §12.7p - 11.06.04 [0.06.11
06.06.02 14,235 - - 653.0p - 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 16,107 - - 675.5p - 19.06.06 18.06.132
67,380
Craig Smith (Note 1)
11.06.01 214,048 - 214,048 612.7p 842.6p 20.07.04 19.07.05
06.06.02 198,337 - 198,337 653.0p 842.6p 20.07.04 19.07.05
19.06.03 38,210 - 58,210 875.5p 842.5p 20.07.04 19.07.05
01.06.04 - 44,726 44,726 809.2p 842.6p 20.07.04 19.07.05
David Tyler
09.12.98 37,918 - 37,918 580.2p 870.0p g9.12.07 08.12.08
23.06.99 37,308 - 37,308 690.2p 870.0p 23.06.02 22.06.09
11.06.01 114,248 - 114,248 612.7p 870.0p 11.06.04 10.06.11
06.06.02 58,192 - - 653.0p - 06.06.05 05.06.12
19.06.03 62,176 - - 675.5p - 19.06.06 18.06.13
01.06.04 - 58,082 - 809.2p - 01.06.07 31.05.14
178,450
Nores

1. Options granted to Craig Smith prior to his date of appointment to the Board in March 2003 were granted under the North America Stock
Option Plan. The 2003 and 2004 grants were made under the UK Executive Share Option Scheme, As a result of his death, all options were
eligible for exercise during the twelve months foliowing the date of his death, His estate exercised ali the options and sold the shares on
10 August 2004 when the GUS share price was 842.6p.

The exercise prices represent the average of the middle market quotations of a CUS share as derived from the Daily Official List of The London
Stock Exchange for the three immediately preceding dealing days to the date on which options were granted.

- The market price of the shares at the end of the financial year was 912p; the highest and lowest prices during the financial year were 989p and
740p respectiveiy.

Full details of directors’ shareholdings and options 1o subscribe are contained in the Company’s Register of Directors’ interests.
Phantom share option

As previously reported, 83,596 Burberry shares are being held by the Company in the name of Victor Bamett, a former director of the Company.
The Company agreed to match the number of Burberry shares in the ratio 1.3 to | with the receipt of the total number of shares deferred for a
period of five vears from the date of the Burberry IPO. Mr Barnett can, however, elect to receive 90 per cent of the shares sooner, in which case he
would forfeit the remaining 10 per cent of the shares.

In addition, Victor Barnett was awarded 167,836 Burberry shares on 1 September 2003 in respect of his annual incentive for 2001/02 under an
agreement made with the Company when he retired from the Board. The Agreement aliowed for the annual incentive payment to be deferred,
with delivery in cash or shares being dependent an the date of the IPO.
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SAYE share option scheme

Details of awards outstanding to directors under the Companys SAYE share option scheme are as foliows:

Number of Options Number of Date from
options at exercised options at Exercise which Expiry
1 Aprll 2004 during the year 31 March 2805 price exercisablé date

Sir Victor Blank 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 .10.06
Terry Duddy 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 .10.06
Lord Harris of Peckham 2,522 2,522 - 384p 01.05.04 .10.04
Lady Patten of Wincanton 2,522 2,522 - 384p 01.05.04 .10.04
John Peace 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 .10.06
Oliver Stocken 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 .10.06
David Tyler 4,394 - 4,394 384p 01.05.06 .10.06

As previously reported, a number of non-executive directors received, in 2001, invitations to participate in the Company's SAYE share option
scheme. This was a one-off arrangement. During the year, Lord Harris and Lady Patten both exercised 2,522 options, at an option price of 384p,
under the 2001 scheme, The GLIS share price on the date of exercise was 785.0p for Lard Harris and 809.5p for Lady Pattep. Lord Harris and
Lady Patten were responsible for paying tax on the gain.

7. Performance Share Plan

In June 2004, executive directors received a share award with a face value of one times sajary.

Details of awards made to directors under the Performance Share Plan are as follows:

Flan shares Plan shares
awarded released Total
Pian shares during the during the Share Share plan shares
awarded at Year 10 year 1o price on price gh held ay
31 March 31 March 31 March date of date of Vestihg 31 March
2004 2005 2005 award release date 2005
Terry Duddy
11.06.01 37,538 - 37,538 612.7p 842.ip  June 2004
06.06.02 8p,398 - - 653.0p - June 2005
19.06.03 85,862 - - 675.5p - lune 2006
01.06.04 - 82,787 - 809.2p - Jjune 2007
249,057
John Peace
i1.06.01 48,963 - 48,963 612.7p 842.1p  june 2004
06.06.02 09,540 - - 653.0p - June 2005
19.06.03 103,626 - - 675.5p - lune 2006
01.06.04 - 93,919 - 809.2p - June 2007
297,085
Alan Smart
06.06.02 14,235 -~ - 653.0p - June 2005
19.06.03 16,107 ~ - 675.5p - June 2006
30,342
Craig Smith (Note 1)
19.06.03 21,138 - ~ 675.5p - June 2006
01.06.04 - 2,042 ~ 809.2p - June 2007
23,180
David Tyler
11.06.01 28,562 - 28,562 612.7p 842.1p  June 2004
06.06.02 58,192 - - 653.0p - Jupe 2005
19.06.03 62,176 - - 675.5p - June 2006
01.06.04 - 58,082 - 809.2p - June 2007
178,450
MNote

1. Craig Smith’s Perfarmance Share Plan awards remain in force untit their normal vesting date, subject to the satisfaction of the performance
conditions, but, as a resuit of his death, the entitiement has been restricted on a time pro-rated basis.
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8. Co-investment Plan

As explained in note 2.2 {b) on page 42, directors are given the oppertunity to defer receipt of their annuai bonus and have it invested in GUS
sharas {'invested shares”). For the year ended 31 March 2004, John Peace, Terry Duddy and David Tyler received a bonus of 100 per cent of base
salary and chose o invest the whole of their 'net” bonus. The invested shares so purchased on their behalf are included ir the table below and also
in the table of directors’ interests appearing on page 50. The reiated matching shares under these arrangements are also shown in the table below.
They are not reieased unti! the expiry of a three-year period and the right to the matching shares is forfeited if a director resigns before then.
Invested Matching Vesting

shires shares date
{Note 1) (Note 1)

Terry Duddy (Note 2)

17.06.02 ' 43,217 144,056 June 2005
20.06.03 46,666 158,193 June 2006
11.06.04 44,141 209,008 June 2007
John Peace .

17.06.02 56,370 187,900 jume 2005
20.06.03 57,778 195,858 June 2006
11.06.04 43,045 166,256 June 2007
Craig Smith (Note 3)

20.06.03 42,001 65,100 Jjuly 2004
11.06.04 42,922 85,844 July 2004
David Tyler

17.06.02 32,882 109,608 june 2005
20.06.03 33,778 I14,501 June 2006
11.06.04 29,427 99,754 lune 2007
Notes

1. Invested shares for Terry Duddy, John Peace and David Tyler are purchased with the bonus net of tax. The matching share awards are made on
a gross basis and are taxed at the point of vesting.

2. As previously disclosed, the Remuneration Committee agreed to grant in June 2004 an extra number of matching shares to Terry Duddy to the
value of £500,000 as a one-off award. The additional shares are inciuded in the total number disclosed above.

3, Craig Smith received a bonus of 100 per cent of base salary and chose to invest the whole of his bonus. On the date of his death, both the
invested shares and matching shares vested and were available for transfer to the nominated beneficiary, All the shares were sold on 10 August
2004 when the CUS share price was 842.6p.

9. GUS plc ESOP Trust

As at 31 March 2005, John Peace, Terry Duddy and David Tyler are, together with other employees of the GUS Group, discretionary beneficiaries
under the CUS plc ESOP Trust and, as such, each director is deemed to be interested in 11,903,887 ordinary shares in GUS Rreld by the trustee of
the Trust.

10. Retirement benefits

Terry Duddy is a member of the Argos Pension Scheme which will provide him an retirement at age 60 with a pension of up to two thirds of the
pension earmings cap subject 1o inland Revenue limits. The following pension figures are based on his capped pensionable eamings. in addition,
his contract provides for the choice of a funded or unfunded scheme to provide benefits in excess of the pension earnings ¢ap. Mr Duddy has
elected to have paid to him a cash sum for investment at his own discretion. The amount 50 paid in the year under review was £261,280.

John Peace is a member of the GUS Pension Scheme. His benefits are not restricted by the pension eamings cap, and therefore the following
pension figures reflect his tax-approved Scheme benefits.

David Tyler is 2 member of the GUS Pension Scheme. His benefits within the Scheme are restricted by the pension earnings ¢ap. However, his
contract allows for an unfunded scheme to provide for benefits in excess of the cap (although part of this promise will be provided for by a

funded arrargement which was clesed tw fuwre contributions on 1 April 2002}, The following pension figures reflect both his approved and
unapproved entitlements.

Alan Smart js a member of the pension scheme operated by Lewis Group Limited,

Craig Smith participated in Experian North America’s 401(k) pension plan, 2 defined contribution style arrangement. Campany contributions to the
plan in the year ended 31 March 2005 amounted to $2,687. In addition, instead of providing Mr Smith with a Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan, the Compary paid him an additional cash sum for investment at his discretion, The additional cash sum far 2004/05 was paid in the year
ended 31 March 2004 and amounted to $143,000.

A number of former directors receive pensions fromr GUS pic under ex-gratia arrangernents. Pensions paid in the year totalled £434,197
(2004: £440,055).
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The table set out below provides the disciosure of directors' pension entitiements in respect of benefits from tax-exempt schemes and
unfunded arrangements.

Additional

Accrued Accrued Change In pension
pension at pensian at Transfer Transfer transfer earned to Transfer value
21 March 31 Marek valye at value at value 31 March 200§ of the increase
2005 2004 31 March 21 March {less Director's  (net of inflation} (less Director’s
PEer annum per annum 2005 2004 cantributions) per annum centributions)
) - (2} 3 @) (5} (63 1151
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Ioop

Terry Duddy i 9 112 86 T 2 2
John Peace 415 374 6,080 5,156 G624 29 431
David Tyler 115 g1 1,365 1,015 335 21 234

Rand ‘000 Rand ‘000 Rand 000 Rand 000 Rand ‘000 Rand ‘000 Rand '0G0
Alan Smart 1,081 99) 16,631 14,880 1,751 69 1,052

Notes

Columns (1) and (2) represent the deferred pension te which the directors would have been entitied had they left the Group at 31 March 2005 and
2004, respectively,

Column (3) is the transfer value of the deferred pension in column (1) cafcuiated as at 31 March 2005 based on faciors suppiied by the actuary of
the refevant Group pension scheme in accordance with actuarial guidance note GNTT,

Column (4) is the equivalent transfer value, but calculated as at 31 March 2004 on the assumption that the director left service at that date.
Column {5) is the change in the transfer value of acerued pension during the year net of cantributians by the directar,

Columin (6) is the increase in pension built up during the year, recognising (i} the accrual rate for the additional service based on the pensionable
salary in force at the year end, and (ii} where apprapriate the effect of pay changes in ‘real’ (inflation adjusted) terms on the pension already earned
at the start of the year,

Column {7) represents the transfer value of the deferred pension in ¢oiumn {6).
The disciosures in columns {1} to (5) are as required by the Companies Act 1985, Schedule 7A.

The disclosures in columns (6) and (7) are as required by the Financial Services Authority Listing Rules, The requirements of the Listing Rules differ
from those of the Companies Act. The Listing Rules require the additional pension earned over the year to be calculated as the difference between
the pension accrued at the end of the financial year and the pension accrued at the start of the financial year less the increase in the pension
earned over the year solefy due to infiation. The change in transfer vafue required by the Companies Act would aiso be significantly influenced by
the assumiptians underlying the calculation at the beginning and the end of the financial year.

11. Directors’ service contracts
Terry Duddy

Terry Duddy has a service contract, dated 27 July 1998, which provides for twelve months' notice on the part of the Company and six months by
the executive. The contract ends automatically when Mr Duddy reaches the normal retirement age of 60.

Under the terms of the contract, the Company reserves the option, in its absolute discretion, to terminake the executive’s employment by paying in
tieu of notice. The payment in lieu shalt be calculated by reference to basic saiary taking into account any pension contributions and benefits in
kind for the duratian of the notice period but without taking inte account any bonus or incentive payment of any kind.

John Peace

John Peace has a service contract, dated 31 March 2000, which provides for twelve monthy” notice on the part of the Company and six months by
the executive. The contract ends automatically when Mr Peace reaches the normal retirement age of £0.

The Company may, in its absoiute discretion, make a payment in fieu of the whoie or part of the natice period of salary, benefits and any bonus
due far that period. The borius will be calculated by reference to that paid in the previous financial vear. The Company will use its best endeavours
to procure that the executive is treated under the terms of the UTIP and share option arrangements such that he is vested to the maximum extent
possible in LT and share options granted 1o him and that he s granted augmented benefits in the pension scheme as if he had remained in
service for the notice period.

if the Company terminates the executive’s employment contract in breach of its terms the Company wili pay and the executive agrees 1o accept as
liguidated damages, in full and final settlement of all claims arising from such termination, a payment and arrangements in respect of pension and
share optiots comptted as indicated above.

Alan Smart

Alan Smart had a service contract the tommencement date for which was 1 April 1997 and which was varied on 2} August 2002 to provide for
notice periods of tweive manths’ on the part of both the executive and the Company. Alan Smart left the Board on 4 October 2004 following the
partial 'PO of Lewis Group.
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David Tyler

David Tyler has a service contract, dated 3 February 1957, which provides for twelve manths’ notice on the part of both the executive and the
Company. The contract will end automatically at normal retirement age of 60.

Under the terms of the contract, the Company reserves the option, in its absolute discretion, 1o terminate the executive's employment by making
a payment in lieu of notice. The payment in lieu shall be calculated by reference to basic salary taking into account any pension contributions and
benefits in kind for the duration of the notice period but without taking into account any bonus or incentive payment of any kind,

Craig Smith

Craig Smith had a service cantract, dated 27 March 2003, which provided for twelve months’ notice on the part of the Company and six months’
by the executive. The contract made specific provisions for the amounts payable to the executive by the Company on termination in specified
circumstances, including death, in line with US practice for senior executives. As a result of his death, in accordance with the service contract,
the following was provided;

Alump sum of one times base salary was paid.

An annual bonus was paid in respect of the period from | April 2004 to the date of his death based on the Company’s actual level of
achievement of the performance objectives pursuant to the annual bonus plan.

His stock options and share awards under any stock option and similar plan respectively became exercisable as specified in the relevant plan
rules and any applicable grant/award agreement.

Chairman and non-executive directors

The Chairman and the non-executive directors do not have service contracts and their appointment may be terminated at any time without
compensation. Non-executive directors are appointed for specific terms of three years and the appointment reviewed at the end of each
three-year term,

12. Combined Code

The constitution and operatioh of the Remuneration Committee are in compiiance with the principles of good governance and the Combined Code
on corporate governance appended to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

13. Shareholding guidefine

It is one of the tenets of GUS' reward strategy that shareholders' and directors’ interests be aligned. To reinforce this, the Remuneration Committee
expects that, over a period of five years or so, executive directors will build a personal holding in GUS shares. This holding should be 200,000
shares in the case of the Group Chief Executive and 120,000 shares in the case of other executive directors.

To underpin this commitment, the Committee expects that, while the guideline holding remains unfulfilied, executive directors will not dispose of
any shares vesting 1o them under any of the GUS incentive plans (save for any disposals necessary to meet tax liabilities arising from them).

14. Direttors' interests

The beneficial interasts of the directors, together with non-beneficial interests, in the Ordinary shares of the Company and in the Ordinary shares of
Burberry Group plc, being a body corporate of the same group, are shown befow in sections (i} and {ii). Share options granted to directors, awards
under the Performance Share Plan and the contingent interests in matching shares under the Co-investment Plan are shown on pages 47 and 48,
Save for the disclosures in relation to Burberry shares, the directors have no interests in the debentures of the Company or in any sharas or
debentures of the Company’s subsidiaries.

GUS ple Burberry Croup pl¢
31 March 31 March 31 March 21 March
2005 2004 2005 2004
(i) Beneficial holdings

Sir Victor Blank 225,000 210,000 - -
Terry Duddy 151,524 107,383 22,0600 -
Andy Hornby 5,420 2,820 - -
Frank Newman 7,500 5,000 - -
Lagdy Patten of Wincanton 16,370 12,370 - -
Jahn Peace 294,154 245,109 50,000 16,000
Sir Alan Rudge 11,450 8,950 - -
Oliver Stocken 31,500 27,022 - -
David Tyler 182,893 153,466 16,000 16,000

(i} Non-beneficial holdings
Sir Victor Biank 3,000 3,000 - -

On behalf of the Board

Lady Patten of Wincanton
Chairman -~ Remuneration Committee
24 May 2005
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Corporate responsibility

Corporate Responsibility Principies

The Group has established a set of CR Principles - broad statements of intent encapsulating its philosophy on CR. These principles are set
out below and provide a framework within which individual businesses develop and apply policies relating to CR issues that are owned by
their management teams and taiiored to their business needs.

Communication

We are determined to stay abreast of society’s expectations in social responsibility and to impiemant change enthusiastically. We will listen
hard to cur stakeholders and report honestly on aur actions and progress,

Benchmarking

We know that we can jearn from other companies, as well as from the many examples of good practice within our own organisation.
We will benchmark our performance, both externally and internally, using quantifiable performance indicators.

Employment practices

We are committed to high standards of employment practice and wish to be recagnised as a good employer. We aim to reward peaple
fairly and to provide equality of opportunity, personal development and training, and a safe and healthy workplace.

Community reiations

We value our relationships with the community around ut and believe that thriving businesses depend upon thriving communities.
Qur community programmes are therefore rooted in our business strategy and are an important management responsibility.

Environment

In GUS, we do not handle toxic substances or manage industrial processes. Nevertheless, GUS is one of the iargest companies in the UK
and it has a responsibility to consider its impact upan the environment. We are committed to continugus improvement in our enviremrental
performance, patticularly through minimising waste, increasing energy efficiency and reducing our consumption of materials.

Human rights

We care about human rights in our own workplace and want to be sure that our suppliers and business partners demonstrate similar
concern, We make these organisations aware of our requirements and take all reasonable steps to ensure they are met.

Customers

We believe we can serve the best interests of our customers by recognising them as individuals. We are committed to responding to their
needs, respecting their privacy and making every effort to earn their trust.

Culture

We believe that good corporate citizenship ultimately resides in the hearts and minds of aur people. Our aim is to ensure that these wider
social responsibilities influence the way we manage, reward and deveiop our people in order to become part of our culture,

Principal responsibilities

The Group’s principal CR responsibilities are set out ity the statement on corporate governance on pages 38 and 39. This list is kept under reguiar
review and has been compared against the conclusions of other commentators and stakeholders to ensure consistency with wider opinion.

Management

The responsibility for CR is, as far as possible, embedded within the day-to-day management of the individual businesses. Overall
responsibility for CR as a business function lies with Gardan Bentley, the Campany Secretaty, who ensures that it features regularly on the
Board agenda and through the role and responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee. He works closely with the Group Head of
Risk and Assurance, whose role during the year under review was formally extended to include CR matters, reflecting the Group's risk-
based approach to the topic.

Gordon chairs a CR Group which draws on staff with relevant expertise from across all of the Group’s businesses. Each business has
made its own arrangements for the management of those aspects of CR which it considers to be relevant.

Reporting

The Group has once again published a complete CR Report on the CUS website, www.guspic.com, instead of in hard copy form.
A brief printed summary is available on request from the Company Secretary's office.

Performance highlights

A detailed review of the Group’s performance against its principal responsibilities can be found in the CR Report, but important
developments during the year under review included:

Forestry and FSC: The Argos Retail Group has this yvear adopted a new integrated policy on its sourcing of wood products and the
camprehensive ‘timber tracker’ system in Homebase has been extended to inciude many key Argos products. The joint buying
activities between the two businesses highlighted a number of potentially probiematic sources and action is in hand to address these,
Homebase's commitment to responsible product sourcing was recognised when the company was awarded its own Chain of Custody
certificate by the Forest Stewardship Council. This is an independent approval of the Homebase system for tracing its products and
Homebase is the first UK DIY retailer to achieve this.

Chemicals in products: The Argos Retail Group has developed a comprehensive policy on possible chemicals of concern in its products
and has begun 3 process of supplier engagement 1o implement it. This development buiids on the collaborative effort underway
between all the major UK retailers to identify possible long-term environmental and health risks resulting from product additives that
are routinely used by manufacturers.
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Corporate responsibility continued

Experian’s work on identity fraud: Experian has positioned itself at the forefront of measures to combat the growing problem of
identity fraud, recognising both the social and commercial benefits of doing so. It has tackled the probiem around the world in a
number of ways including consumer awareness raising activity and the development of products allowing the public to monitor and
track changes tc their credit rating that might indicate a fraud in prograss.

Community
GUS takes an active roie in community activities, supporting charities and waorking directty with local projects:

Taking part in these activities is popular with the Group's empioyees - they feel that they are contributing to their communities and
that the Group is supporting them in this. They are also able ta learn new skills when warking tagethet.

Developing stronger communities, either locally or nationally, has knock-on benefits for the business ~ it can make customers feel
more predisposed towards GUS, it can create a better environment for commerce and trade and it can increase awareness of the Croup,
attracting a wider poof of high quality recruits.

The resources of the Group can have a profound impact on charitabte and cemmunity projects, through both direct giving and also
through the in-kind contribution of the Group’s businesses.

There are two interlaced elements to the Group’s community engagement programme = the work of the GUS Charitable Trust and the
activities planned and dalivered through the Group's businesses. These often overlap. The Charitable Trust welcomes projects that are
‘sponsored’ from within the Group’s businesses since the direct effect of the cash donation is often amplified by the in-kind support
from the business itself resulting in gearing effect that doubies or triples the impact of the project.

The G5 Charitable Trust

The QUS Charitable Trust ("The Trust”) is the principal channe! for the Group’s direct financial support to community projects. These
donations are often supplemented by in-kind contributions from the Group’s businesses such as the donation of goods, the supply of staff
time or the provision of facilities.

The Trust, which is an independent registered charity, has three Trustees: Sir Victor Blank {Chairman), Lady Patten and Gordon Bentiey.
It focuses on three areas:

Medical research.

Work with children and the elderly.
Education.
The Trust is also developing its support for environmental initiatives.

The Trust’s income from GUS in respect of the year ended 31 March 2005 was £1.4m. In that yvear the Trust made awards totalling £1.1m.
Major awards were as follows:

£000
Prime - an ME CFS project : S o . : 97
Healing Foundation : ' B : : : : 61
Prostate Cancer Charter for Action . S . : . : 60
Citizens Advice Bureaux ' ' . 55
Down'’s Syndrome Association : o ) . 54
Help the Hospices ' . ) ) : 50
Kidscape ‘ 45
Contact a Family — ) ) 44
Business in the Community Breakfast Club 38
For Dementia ) : 35
Childrens Safety Education Foundation 34
tnvesting in Volunteers = . - _ 30
CRARG ' 30
ICAN ' ' ' 3C
Habitat for Humanity : . 10

' 689

Socially Responsible investment

Much of GUS' dialogue with shareholders on CR matters is in support of such shareholders' socially responsible investment (SRI} policies.
SRi policies divide broadly into three categories:

Screening: Investors develop funds which avoid companies based on invofvement in pre-defined unethical activities, for example saies
of tobacco, alcoho! or arms.

Best in class: !nvestors empioy proprietary methods to rank companies based on their environmental, social and ethical performance
criteria, then select the best for investment. This is often via intermediaries: rating agencies that undertake the evaluation and supply
the information to investors.

Engagement: investors deveiop 2 programme of discussion and involvement with management on CR maftters.

GUS' activities are such that it is typically included in screened funds. The Group is also listed in a number of 'best in ¢lass’ indices, the
two most notable of which are the Dow jones Clobal Sustainability Index and FTSE4Good.
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Report of the auditors

Independent auditors’ report to the members of GUS plc

We have audited the financial statements which comprise the Group profit and joss account, the statement of Group total recognised
pains and losses, the note of Group historical cost profits, the reconciliation of movement in Group shareholders’ funds, the Group
balance sheet, the Parent Company balance sheet, the Group cash flow statement and the related notes to the financial statements. We
have also audited the disclosures required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985 contained in the report on directors’
remurieration and related matters {'the auditable part?.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors' responsibilities. The directors are aiso responsible for
preparing the report on directors' remuneration and refated matters,

Qur responsibility is to audit the financiai statements and the auditable part of the report on directors’ remuneration and refated
matters in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and United Kingdom Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board, This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in accordance
with Section 225 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any ather persaon to whom this report is shown or into whase hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to ¥ou our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and
the auditable part of the report on directors’ remuneration and related matters have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985. We also report 1o you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the
Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require far our audit,
or if information specified by taw regarding directors' remuneration and transactions is not disclosed,

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the impiications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financiai statements. The other information comprises only the financial
highlights, the chairman's statement, the chief executive’s review, the Group strategy, the operational review, the financial review, the
directars’ repart, the corporate governance statement, the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the unaudited part of the report on
directors' remuneration and related matters and the corporate responsibility report.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an gpinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures of its risk and control procedures,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the auditable part of the report on
directors' remuneration and related matters. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adeqguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 5o as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financiaf statements and the auditable part of the report on
directors’ remuneration and related matters are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or ervor.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements,

Opinion
in our opinion;

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at 31 March 2005 and of the
profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended,

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

those parts of the report on directors’ remuneration and related matters required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A to the Companies Act
1885 have been praperly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act 1985,

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester

24 May 2005
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Group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March 2005

2005 2005 2008 2004
Before  Exceptional Total
Exceptional Jtems
Items (Note 5}
Notes Em £m £m im

Turnover 2 7,787 - 7,787 7,548
Continuing operations 7,600 - 7,600 7,119
Discontinued operations 187 - 187 429
Cost of sales 4 {4,357) - (4,357) (4,273)
Gross profit 3,430 - 3,430 3,275
Net operating expenses before amortisation of goodwill {2,538) (5) (2,543) (2,463)
Amortsation of goodwill {207} - 207) {193)
Net operating expenses 4 {2,745) (5} (2,750) (2,656)
Operating profit 685 {5) 680 619
Continuing operations 6320 1 631 575
Discontinued aperations 55 (&) 49 44
Share of operating profit of BL Universal PLC (joint venture) - discontinued operations - - - 18
Share of operating profit of associated undertakings - continuing operations 44 - 44 46
Trading profit 729 (5) 724 683
Profit on Initia) Public Offering of Lewis - discontinued operations - 26 26 -
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry - continuing operations - 3 3 157
Disposal of home shopping and Reality businesses - discontinued operations - 27) (27) (386)
Loss gn sale of interest in BL Universal PLC - discontinued oparations - - - (5)
Loss on sale of other businesses — continuing operations - N (7) (53)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 729 (10) 719 74%
Net interest 6 (26) - {26) (54}
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7 703 (10) 693 692
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 {221 (192}
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 9 472 500
Equity minority interests (49) (27)
Profit for the financial year 423 473
Dividends 10 (293) (271}
Retained profit for the financial year 130 202
Earnings per share T
- Basic 42.3p 47.4p
- Diluted 41.7p 47.0p
Earnings per share before amortisation
of goodwili and exceptional items 1
- Basic 63.8p 6C.7p
- Diluted 63.0p 60.1p
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Statement of Group total recognised gains and losses

far the year ended 31 March 2005

2005 2004 2004

Associated BL Universal Associated

under- PLC under-

takings (joint takings
venture)

im im im

Profit for the financial year 38 4 4]
Revaluation of properties - - - - -
Currency transiation differences 9 {2} 7 - {12}

Tatal recognised gains for the year 394 36 430 4 29

* Exc¢luding associated ungertakings and, in the year ended 31 March 2004, joint venture and associated undertakings.

Note of Group historical cost profits

for the year ended 31 March 2005

200% 2004

im £m
Reported profit on ordinary activities before taxation 693 €02
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years 4 93
Historical cost profit on crdinary activities before taxatien 6§97 785
Historical cost retained profit for the year after taxation, minority interests and dividends 134 295

There is no materia! difference between the actual depreciation charge for the year and the depreciation charge on the historical cost
basis. .

In the year ended 31 March 2004, the realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years arose principally as a result of the sale of
the hame shopping and Reality businesses and the disposal of the interest in BL Universal PLC.

Reconciliation of movement in Group shareholders’ funds

for the year ended 31 March 2005

2005 2004

{Restated)

{Note i}

im im

Profit for the financial year 423 473

Dividends (293) (271)
130 202

Goodwilt credited to reserves on disposal of subsidiary undertakings - 35
Shares issued under share option schemes 34 31
Shares cancelled on purchase (30) -

Purchase of own shares including treasury shares (176) {6)
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes 34 14
Revaluation of properties - 3
Currency transiation differences 7 33
Net change in shareholders’” funds {1) 312
Opening shareholders’ funds 2,811 2,543
2,810 2,855

Prior year adjustment — UITF 38 (Note 1) - (44)
Closing shareholders’ funds 2,810 2,871
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Group balance

at 3]_ March 2005

£m

2004

2004

{Restated)
{Nore 1}

im

im

Fixed assets

Intangible assets — goodwill
intangible assets ~ other
Tangible asséts
tnvestments

2,333
159
1,168
114

2,338
159
1,038
103

3,774

3,638

Current asseéts

Stocks 16 1,017 823
Debtors - due within ohe year 17 1,088

~ due after mare than gne year 17 1,735 540 1,628
Investments 18 31 101
Cash at bank and in hand 347 524,

3,130 3,076

Creditors
Amounts due within one year 19 (1,983) (2,221)
Net current assets 1,147 855
Total assets less current liabilities 4,921 4,493
Creditars - amaounts due after more than ane year 20 (1,750) {1,4313)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 22 (101} (89)
Net assets 3,070 2,971
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 254 254
Share premium account 24 69 35
Revaluation reserve 24 36 40
Profit and ioss account 24 2,451 2,482
Total equity shareholders’ funds 2,810 2,811
Eguity minority interests 260 160
Capital employed 3,070 2,971

Approved by the Board
on 24 May 2005

John Peace Group Chief Executive
David Tyler Group Finance Director
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2004 2004
(Restated}
(Nate T}

£m £m

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 3
Investments in group undertakings 3,157
3,160
Current assets
Debtors — due within cne year 4,738
- due after maore than one year 6,835 154 4,892
Cash at bank and in hand - 75
6,835 4,967
Creditors
Amounts due within one year (6,621} 4,690
Neat current assets 214 277
Total assets less current liabilities 3,374 3.437
Creditors - amounts due after more than one year 20 (1,451} (1,092)
Provisions for liabitities and charges 22 (24} (25)
Net assets 1,899 2,320
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 23 254 254
Share premium account 24 69 35
Profit and loss account 24 1,576 2,031
Total equity shareholders’ funds 1,899 2,320

Approved by the Board
on 24 May 2005

John Peace Group Chief Executive
DPavid Tyler Group Finance Director
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Group cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 March 2005

2005 2004
{Restated}
{Note 1)
Nores £m fm
Net cash inflow from operating activities 30(a} 916 727
Dividends received from associated undertakings 26 45
{including nil {2004 £9m) in respect of discontinued operations)
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 30(b) {42) {48)
Taxation (238) (176)
Capital expenditure 30(c) (390) (306)
Financial investment (inciuding nil (2004 £82m) in respect of discontinued operations) 30(d) [ARY] 50
Acquisition of subsidiaries 30(e) (176) (132)
Disposal of subsidiaries and joint venture 30(0 106 779
(including £105m (2004 £558m) in respect of discontinued operations)
Equity dividends pait to shareholders (281) (244)
Met cash (outflow)/inflow before management of liquid resources and financing {90) 695
Management of liquid resources 30(q) 74 5
Financing - issue of shares 35 31
- net purchases of own shares 30(h) {206) (8)
- buyback of snares in Burberry Group plc {22) -
- change in debt and lease financing 300 113 (534)
(Decrease)/increase in net cash (96) 191
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
{Decrease}/increase in net cash {96) 19]
Cash {inflow)/outflow from movement in debt and lease financing {113) 534
Cash inflow from movement in liquid resources (74) (5)
Movement in net debt resulting from cash flows {283) 720
New finance leases - 2}
Investments transferred from current to fixed assets - (3)
Exchange movements 56 179
Movement in net debt (227) 894
Net debt at beginning of year 30() (1,200) (2,094)
Net debt at end of year 304 (1,427) (1,200)
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2005

1. Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financiaf statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the historical cost convention, modified by the
revaluation of certain fixed assets, and in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards in the Unjted
Kingdom which have been applied on a consistent basis with previous years except as noted below.

The provisions of UITF Abstract 37 ‘Purchases and sales of own shares’ have been adopted by the Group with effect from 1 April 2004,
The Group completed a £200m share buyback programme during the year and shares costing £30m have been cancelied. The remaining
£170m of shares repurchased are held as treasury shares and are deducted from the profit and loss account reserve and net assets.

The provisions of UITF Abstract 38 'Accounting for ESOP trusts' have heen adopted by the Group with effect from 1 Aprii 2004, These
supersede UITF Abstract 13 and require awn shares held by the Company to be deducted in arriving at sharehoiders' funds. The effect of
this change (s to reduce the profit and loss account reserve and therefore net assets of the Company and the Group at 31 March 2005 by
£31m and £8m respectively. Comparative figures have been restated and the effect is to reduce the profit and loss account reserve and
net assets of the Company and the Group by £36m at 31 March 2004, including a movement arising in the year ended 31 March 2004 of
£8m. As a consequence of the adoption of UITF 38, cash flows in respect of own shares are now all reported as financing cash flows and
the comparative figures in the Group cash flow statement have been restated.

The provisions of UITF 38 also amend the requirements of UITF Abstract 17 ‘Employee Share Schemes’ concerning the recognition of the
cost of employee share incentive schemes. This amendment has no material effect on profit before taxation in either the current or prior
years.

On 19 May 2005, the Group annsunced the sale of its remaining interest in Lewis Group Limited and accordingly its results are classified
as discontinued.

The transitional provisions of FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits' applicable to the 2005 reporting period have been adopted by the Group in
these financial statements. in accordance with these transitional arrangements, supplementary disciosures are set out in note 35.

Compliance with S5AP 19 *Accounting for investment Properties’ requires a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985
relating to the depraciation of investment properties, as explained in the ‘Tangible fixed assets’ note below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolfidated financial statements incorporate the finangial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings for the
financial year ended 31 March 2005 except for those of Homebase in respect of which the financial statements to the end of February are
inciuded to avoid distortions relating to the timing of Easter and the related promotions and trading patterns. The results of subsidiary
undertakings sold or acquired during the year are inctuded in the conscfidated results up to the date of disposal or from the date of
acquisition.

Turnover

Turnover represents goods and services s0id to customers outside the Group, less returps, discounts and sales taxes together with interest
and other income attributabie to the Financial Services operations. Details of the basis on which revenue is recognised by the Group's
principal businesses are as foflows:

Argos Retail Group ("ARG")

Turnover represents the amount of goods and services sold to external customers less returns, discounts and value added tax.
Turnover on goods to be delivered is recognised when the customer accepts defivery. A praovision for estimated returns is made,
representing the profit on goods seld during the year which will be returned and refunded after the year end. Turnover is reduced by
the value of sales returns provided for during the year.

For sales promotion purposes ARG operates a variety of schemes that give rise to goods being sold at a discount to standard retail
price. These include redemption of toyalty card paints, staff discounts, Friends and Family evenings and the redemption of promotional
vouchers. Turnover is adjusted to show saies net of all related discounts.

Within ARG Financial Services ('ARGFS") turnover represents interest and fees accrued on customers’ card accounts and loans and
insurance commission. Where ARGFS acts as an agent in arranging the sales of a variety of third party provided financial services
products, only the commission received is included in the profit and loss account and it is classified as twrnover.

Experian
Revenue is recognised in respect of the provision and processing of data, subscriptions to services, software and database
customisation and development and the saie of software licences, maintenance and related consulting services.

Revenue in respect of the provision and processing of data is recognised in the period in which the service is provided. Subscription
revenues, and revenues ir respect of services to be provided by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified period of time, are
recognised on a pro rata basis. Customisation, devefopment and consuiting revenues are recognised by reference to the stage of
compietion of the work. Revenue fram software licences is recognised upon delivery. Revenue from maintenance agreements is
recognised rateably over the term of the maintenance period.

Where a single arrangement comprises a humber of individual elements which are capable of operating independently of one another,
the total revenues are allacated amongst the individual elements based on the fair value of each element. Where the efements are not
capabie of operating independently, or reasonable measures of fair value for each element are not available, total revenues are
recognised on a pro rata basis over the contract period.
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2005

1. Accounting palicies cantinued

Burberry
Turnover, which is stated excluding value added and other sales taxes, is the amount receivable for goods supplied (less returns, trade
discounts and aflowances} and royaities receivabie,

Wholesale sales are recognised when goods are despatched to trade customers, with provisions made for expected returns and
altowances as necessary. Retail sales, returns and allowances are refiected at the dates of transaction with consumers, in addition
provisions are made for expected returns as necessary. Royalty income from licensees is recognised as earned on the basis of the
terms of the relevant royatty agreement, which is typically on the basis of production volumes.

Lewis
Turnover comprises net merchandise sales, earned finance charges, earned TV and apptiance service contracts and carriage. Value
added tax is excluded.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised on the date of delivery. Finance charges are recognised, using the sum of digits
basis which clasely approximates the effective yield hasis, as instaiments bacome due. Revenye from service cantracts is recognised
on a straight line basis, over a 24-month period, commencing after the manufacturer’s guarantee has expired. Revenue from the
provision of other services is recognised when the services are rendered.

Assaociated undertakings
The Group's share of the profits of associated undertakings is included in the Group profit and loss account up to the date of disposal or
from the date of acquisition. Loans to associated undertakings and the Group's share of net assets are included in the Group balance sheet.

Tangibie fixed assets

Investment properties are revalued annually and included in the balance sheet at their open market value. In accordance with S5AP 19, no
depreciation is provided in respect of investment properties except for leaseholds with less than 20 years 1o run. This represents a
departure from the Companies Act 1385 requirement concerning the depreciation of fixed assets. Had SSAP 19 not been foliowed the
depreciation charge for the financial year would not have been material.

As permitted by FRS 15 the Group has adopted a policy of not revaluing trading properties, and previously revalued trading properties are
included at their 1996 valuation iess depreciation. All Arges and Homebase properties and leasehold trading properties with 20 years or
less to run had not previously been revalued and remain at depreciated historicai cost.

tand and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. Freghold properties are depreciated over 50 years by egual annua)
instalments. Leasehold premises with unexpired lease terms of 50 years or less are depreciated by equal annual instalments over the
remaining period of the iease. Plant, vehicles and equipment are depreciated by equal annual instaiments over two ta ten years according
to the estimated life of the asset. Equipment on hire or lease is depreciated over the shorter of the period of the lease or its useful
economic life.

Fixed asset investments
Investments held as fixed assets are stated at cost less any provision considered necessary for impairment.

investments in the shares of Burberry Group pic held by that company are treated as fixed asset investments in the Group consolidated
financial statements. Amortisation is provided in respect of shares which have been or will be gifted unconditionally to empioyees.

Goodwill

For acquisitions of subsidiary undertakings and investments in associated undertakings made on or after 1 April 1998, goodwill {being the
excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets acquired) is capitalised as an intangible fixed asset. Fair
valuas are attributed to the identifiable assets and liabilities that existed at the date of acquisition, reflecting their condition at that date.
Adjustments are also made to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. Goodwili
arising on acquisitions is amortised by equal annual instalments over its estimated useful economic life, up to 2 maximum of 20 years.

Goodwill on acquisitions prior to 1 Aprii 1998 was written off to reserves in the year of acguisition, On the disposal of a business, any
goodwill previousty written off 10 reserves is ingluded in the profit or ipss on disposal.

Qther intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill comprise the data purchase and data capture costs of internally developed databases and are
capitalised under SSAP 13 1o recognise these costs over the period of their commercial use, Amortisation is provided by egua! annual
instalments on the cost of the assets over three to seven years.

Impairment of fixed assets and goodwifl
Fixed assets and goodwill are subject to review for impairment in accordance with FRS 11 ‘tmpairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill', Any
impairment is recognised in the profit and loss account in the year in which it occurs.

Stocks
Stocks and work in progress are valued on a first in first out basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Provision is made to
reduce the cost to no more than net realisabie value having regard to the age and condition of stock, as wel! as its anticipated saleability.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Deferred coansideration

Where part or all of the amount of purchase consideration is contingent an future events, the cast of the acquisition initially recorded is a
reasonable estimate of the fair vaiue of the amounts expected to be payable in the future. The cost of the acquisition is adjusted when
revised estimates are made, with corresponding adjustments made to goodwill until the ultimate outcome is known.

Where part or all of the amount of disposal consideration is contingent on future events, the disposai proceeds initially recorded are a
reasonable estimate of the fair vaiue of the amounts expected to be receivabie in the future, The proceeds are adjusted when revised
estimates are made, with corresponding adjustments made to debtors and profit/{loss) an disposal until the ultimate outcome is known.

Leases

Where assets are financed by leasing arrangements that give rights approximating to ownership the assets are treated as if they had been
purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the fair value of the Jeased assets. The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as
obligations to the lessor and the assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their useful economic life. The interest
element of lease rentais is charged to the profit and loss account over the fife of the lease in proportion to the outstanding fease
commitment. All other leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.

Gross rental income and expenditure in respect of aperating leases are recognised on a straight line basis over the periods of the leases.

Foreign currency

Assets and liabilities of overseas undertakings are transiated inte sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the
results are transiated into sterling at average rates of exchange. Differences arising on the retransiation of opening net assets, profits and
losses at average rates and borrowings designated as hedges are taken to reserves. Foreign currency transactions which are covered by
specific forward exchange contracts are translated intc sterling at the contracted exchange rates. The interest differential reflected in
forward contracts is taken to net interest. Exchange profits and lpsses which arise from normal trading activities are included in the profit
and loss account.

Derivative fimancial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest
rates. Derivative instruments utilised by the Group include interest rate swaps, currency swaps and forward currency contracts. Amounts
pavyable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps are recognised as adjustments to net interest over the period of the contract.
Forward currency contracts are accounted for as hedges, with the instrument's impact on profit deferred until the underlying transaction is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Financial instruments hedging the risk on foreign currency assets are revalued at the balance
sheet date and the resulting gain or loss is offset against that arising from the translation of the underlying assets into steriing and taken
to reserves.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in respect of timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date and is
determined using the tax rates that are expected to apply when the timing differences reverse, Deferred taxation assets are recognised
only to the extent that they are expected to be recoverable, Deferred taxation is discounted using the post tax yields to maturity that
could be obtained at the balance sheet date on relevant government bonds with maturity dates similar to those of the deferred taxation
assets and liabilities.

Treasury shares
In accordance with the provisions of UITF Abstract 37 ‘Purchases and sales of own shares’, treasury shares are held at cost and are
deducted from the profit and loss account reserve,

incentive plans

The Group's share based incentive plans are accounted for in accordance with UITF Abstracts 17 ‘Employee Share Schemes’ and 38
‘Accounting for ESOP trusts’. The fair vaiue of the shares at the date of the grant, less any consideration to be received from the empioyee,
is charged to the profit and loss account over the period to which the employee's performance relates. Where awards are contingent upon
future events (other than continued employment) an assessment of the likelihood of these conditions being achieved is made at the end of
each reporting period and an appropriate charge is made to the profit and loss account.

The Group operates Save As You farn schemes that allow for the grant of share options at a discount to the market price at the date of the
grant. The Group has made use of the exemption under UITF 17 not to recognise any compensation charge in respect of these options.

Pension costs

The Group operates pension plans throughout the world. The two major defined benefit schemes are in the United Kingdom with similar
arrangements being in place for eligible employaes in North America, South Africa and The Netherlands. The assets covering these
arrangements are held in independently administered funds.

The Group charges the regular costs of its defined benefit pension schemes against profits on a systematic basis over the service lives of
the pensionable empioyees in accordance with advice from qualified actuaries. Variation from regular cost is allocated over the expected
remaining service fives of current scheme members. Any difference between the cumulative amounts charged against profit and
contributions paid is included as an asset or provision as appropriate in the balance sheet.

The Group also operates defined contribution pension schemes, the major one being in the United Kingdom, with assets heid in
independently administered funds. The cost of providing these benefits, recognised in the profit and loss account, comprises the amount
of contributions payabie to the schemes in respect of the year.




62 CUS Annual Report 2005

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2005

Turnpver Profit before wxation HET assels
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
{Restated)
(Note 1)
2. Divisional analysis £m £m im

Argos Retail Group
Continuing operations:

Argos 3,384 309.6 452
Homebase 1,483 91.8 190
Financia! Services 60 0.2 291
Wehkamp 235 18.9 242
5,162 421.5 1,175
Discontinued operations 269 - -
5,535 5,430 421.5 415.5 1,495 1,175
Experian
Experian North America 724 703 188.2 179.6 an 321
Experian International 638 583 130.7 102.6 213 197
1,362 1,286 318.3 282.2 524 518
Burberry 715 676 t65.7 141.2 237 200
Lewis - discontinued operations 187 160 55.4 43.5 163 172
Praperty - discantinued operations - - - 18.0 - -
Central activities - 6 (24.1}) (19.9) - -
7,799 7,559 936.8 880.5 2,419 2,065
Inter-divisional turnover {principally Experian) 12) (i)
7,787 7,548
Net interest (Note 6) (26.4) {53.9)
Profit before amortisation of goodwill, exceptiona!l items and taxation 910.4 826.6
Amortisation of goodwill (207.3) (192.6) 2,333 2,338
Exceptional items (Note 5) {10.0) 58.3
Profit before taxation 693.1 592.3
Net debt (1,427} (1,200
Dividends and taxation (353) (363)
Transaction consideration 98 131
Net assets 3,070 2,971

The profit of Argos for the year ended 31 March 2005 is after charging £16.2m in respect of the OFT fine. The profit of Homebase
inciuded in the Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2005 is after charging £18.3m in respect of reorganisation costs.

The profit of Financial Services is after deducting funding costs.

On 19 May 2005, the Group announced the sale of its remaining interest in Lewis Group Limited and accordingly irs results have been
classified as discontinued.

The profit of the Praperty division, in the year ended 31 March 2004, represented the Group's shave of the operating profit of BL Universal
PLC up to the date of its sale on 17 November 2003.

Amortisation of goodwill inciudes £127m (2004 £127m) relating to Argos Retail Group, £73m {2004 £59m) relating to Experian and £7m
(2004 £7m) reiating te Burberry. The goodwill reporied within net assets of £2,333m (2004 £2,338m} inciudes £1,708m (2004 £1,834m)
relating to Argos Retail Group, £518m (2004 £394m) relating to Experian and £107m (2004 £110m) relating to Burberry.
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Turnaver by destination Turnover by otigin Profit befare taxation Net zgsets
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
{Restated)
. . (Note 1)
3. Geographical analysis £m im £m im £m £m £ £m
United Kingdom & ireland 5,742 5,596 5,890 572.9 1,148
Continental Europe 761 735 668 676 79.7 65.3 377 353
North America 888 865 882 859 200.6 416 392
Rest of World 396 352 347 83.6 172
7,787 7,548 7,787 936.8 2,085
Net interest (Note 6) {26.4}
Profit before amortisation of goodwil, exceptional items and taxation 910.4
Amortisation of gootwil (207.3)
Exceptional items {Note 5) {10.0)
Profit before taxation 693.1
Net debt (1,427)
Dividends and taxation {353)
Transaction consideration 98
Net assets 3,070
2005 2004
4. Cost of sales and Net operating expenses £m im
Cost of sales 4,357 4,273
Net aperating expenses comprise:
Distribution costs 1,696 1,377
Administrative expenses (in¢cluding amortisation of goodwill £207m (2004 £193m)) 1,054 1,279
2,750 2,656

Cast of sales includes £88m {2004 £217m) in respect of discontinued activities.

MNet operating expenses include £44m {2004 £169m) in respect of discontinued activities of which distribution costs represent £32m

(2004 £87m) and administrative expenses represent £12m (2004 £82m).

Administrative expenses include an axceptional charge of £5m (2004 £5m) comprising-a charge of £6m (2004 nil} in respect of employee
shares in connection with the Initial Public Offering of Lewis and income of £1m (2004 £2m) in respect of employee share schemes in
connection with the (nitial Public Offering of Burberry and restructuring costs in Argos Resail Group of nif (2004 £7m),
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5. Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise:

Continuing operations

Disposal of shares in Burberry

Income in respect of employee share schemes in connection
with the disposal of shares in Burberry*

Restructuring costs incurred by Argos Retail Group following
the disposal of home shopping and Reality businesses*
Loss on sale of other businesses

Exceptional (charge)/profit in respect of continuing operations (3) 99

Discontinued operations

Profit on Initial Public Offering of Lewis 26 -

Charge in respect of employee share schemes in connection

with the Initial Public Offering of Lewis* (6) -
20 -

Disposal of home shopping and Reality businesses (27) (36}

Disposal of interest in BL Universal PLC - (5)

Exceptional charge in respect of discontinued operations {7} 4N

Total exceptional (charge)/profit o 58

* Aggregated to a net exceptional charge of £5m (2004 £5m} within Trading profit.

The income in respect of Burberry shares in the year arises from the exercise or lapse of awards under executive share schemes. The
profit on the disposal of shares, in the year ended 31 March 2004, related to the sale of 11.5% of the ordinary share capital of Burberry
Group plc on 19 November 2003. This profit comprised the excess of sale proceeds, less costs, over the related portion of net assets
disposed of at that date.

The loss on the sale of other businesses was principally in respect of the sales by Experian International of two small non-core businesses.
The loss on sale of other husinesses, in the year ended 31 March 2004, was principally in respect of the sale by Experian North America of
its Outsourcing activities and included a charge of £24m in respect of goodwill previously written off to reserves.

The initial Public Offering of 46% of the oardinary share capital of Lewls Group Limited, GUS' South African Retailing business, on the JSE
Securities Exchange South Africa was priced on 29 September 2004 and trading in the shares commenced on 4 October 2004, The
associated exceptional profit comprises the excess of the flotation proceeds, less costs, over the related portion of net assets disposed of
at 29 September 2004 and the cost of share schemes designed to secure the retention of key employees.

The disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses took place in May 2003. The provision for loss on disposal charged in the year
ended 31 March 2003 represented the difference between the sale proceeds of £590m and the net assets disposed of which were
estimated to be £800m. The further charge ir: the year ended 31 March 2004 refated to professional fees and other costs associated with
the transaction, including a pension charge of £3m, and a charge of £11m in respect of goodwill previously written off to reserves.
Following agreement of the completion statements and the settlement of certain warranty claims, a further charge of £27m has been made
in the year ended 31 March 2005 reflecting full and final settlement of all claims that have arisen from the disposal of these businesses.

The disposal of the 50% equity stake in the property joint venture BL Universal PLC was announced on 17 November 2003. The asscciated
exceptional item, in the vear ended 31 March 2004, comprised the deficit of sale proceeds, less costs, over the related portion of net
assets at that date.

The tax effect of the exceptiona! items is disclosed in Note 8 {d).

2005 20604
6. Net interast £m im
Interest income:
Bank deposits and other 33 26
Interest expense:
Bank loans and overdrafis 7 I3
Eurobonds 62 73
Finance leases 1 1
Group share of interest expense of joint venture - 8
Gross interest expense 77 93
Less: interest charged to cost of sales (18) (13)

5% 80

Net interest expense 26 43

Interest charged to cost of sales inctudes £18m (2004 £13m) in respect of financial services activities,
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7. Profit on ordinary activities hefore taxation

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation is stated after charging/{crediting}:
QOperating lease rental expense - land and buildings
- plant, vehicles and equipment

Property rental income under operating leases
Amortisation of goodwill {including share of goadwill of associates £4m (2004 £3m)
Amortisation of shares in Burberry
Depreciation of tarigible and intangibie fixed assets - assets owned
- under finance leases
Research and development expenditure
Argos QFT fine
Homebase reorganisation costs
Audit fees - statutory audit
Auditors’ remuneration for non-audit services - further assurance services
- tax advisory services
~ other advice

The audit fee for the Company was £0.3m {2004 £0.2m). Included in the analysis above are fees paid to the Group’s auditors in respect of
non-audit services in the UK of £2m (2004 £4m). The guideiines covermg the use of the auditors for non-audit services are set out in the

corperate governance statement on page 34.

. i . 2005 2004
8. Tax on profit on ordinary activities £m £m
(a) Analysis of charge for the year
Cutrent tax:
UK Corporation tax an profits of the year 155 138
Double taxation relief {8) (8)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 7 4

o 154 135

Overseas tax 53 52
Group share of tax on profits of joint venture - 4
Group share of tax on profits of associated undertakings 1 2
Total current tax charge for the year 208 193
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 21 24
increase in discount (12) a7
Adjustments in respect of prior years 4 (8)
Total deferred tax 13 (i}
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 221 192
(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The tax charge for the year is lower than the standard rate of Corparation tax in the UK {30%).
The differences are explained betow:
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6583 692
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of Corporation tax in the UK of 30% 208 208
Effects of:
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years 7 4
Expenses not deductibie for tax purposes 9 6
Goodwill amortisation not deductible for tax purposes 57 54
Tax reifief in respect of US goadwill written off to reserves (18} (14}
Differences in effective tax rates on overseas earnings (30) (23)
Other permanent differences (19) a2
Disposal of businesses 3 (23)
Gther timing differences (9 (7}
Current tax charge for the year 208 193

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges

in the foreseeable future, the Group's tax charge will continue to be infiuenced by the profile of profits earned in the different countries in
which the business operates, As indicated in the Financial review on page 26, the tax charge wiil also change as a consequence of the
adoption of international Financial Reporting Standards from 1 April 2005.

(d} Tax effect of exceptional items
There is no taxation in respect of the exceptional items for the year ended 31 March 2005 (2004 nil).
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9. Profit on ordinary activities after taxation

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation includes £33m (2004 £307m) which is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. As

permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Caompany has not presented its own profit and loss account,

2005 2004
10. Dividends £m £m
Interim paid -~ 9.0p per share (2004 8.0p) 90 80
Final praposed - 20.5p per share (2004 19.0p} 203 191
Totat - 29.5p per share {2004 27.0p} 293 27)

2005 2004
11. Basic and diluted carnings per share . pence pente
Basic earnings per share before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional items 63.8 60.7
Effect of amortisation of goodwill (20.5) {15.1)
Effect of exceptional items {1.0) 5.8
Basic earnings per share 42.3 47 4

The calcufation of basic earnings per share is based on profit for the yvear of £423m (2004 £473m) divided by the weighted average
number of Ordinary shares in issue of 1,000.1m (2004 998.0m). Basic earnings per share before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional

items is disclosed to indicate the underlying profitabitity of the Group and is based on profit of £638m (2004 £606m).

2005 2004

£m im

Earnings before amortisation of goodwill and exceptional items 638 606
Effect of amortisation of goodwill (205) {191
Effect of exceptional items (10) 58
Profit for the financial year 423 473
2005 2004

m m

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the year* ) 1,000.1 998.0
Ditutive effect of share incentive awards 12.6 8.1
Diluted weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the year 1,012.7 1,007

* Exciuding own sharss held.

The diluted earnings per share amount 10 41.7p (2004 47.0p) and diluted earnings per share hefore amortisation of goadwill and

exceptional items amount to 63.0p (2004 60.1p). The calculation of diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilutive effecr of

awards under employee share incentive schemes.
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Homepase Experian Other
. acquisitions acquisitions
12. Intangible assets - goodwill im £rny £m
Group
Cost
At 1 April 2004 2,993
Differences on exchange {33
Additions (see Note 31) 199
Disposals {14)
At 31 March 2005 3,175
Amortisation
At 1 April 2004 5G 94 655
Differences on exchange ~ - (1 {2)
Charge for year B9 38 69 203
Dispasals - - {14} (14}
At 31 March 2005 577 88 148 842
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 1,108 726 394 2,338
Net Book Vaiue at 31 March 2005 1,018 688 518 108 2,333
The cumulative amortisation at the batance sheet date inciudes nil {2004 nil} in respect of the impairment of goodwill.
Databases
13. Other intangihle fixed assets im
Group
Cost
At 1 April 2004 344
Differences on exchange (4)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 7
Additions 65
Disposal of subsidiaries 7)
Disposals (46}
At 31 March 2005 359
Amaortisation
At 1 Aprit 2004 185
Differences on exchange 23
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3
Disposal of subsidiaries (5)
Charge for year 59
Disposals (40
At 31 March 2005 . . 200
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 158
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 159
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Leasehoid properties

Freehold Plant, Assets
properties Lang Short vehicles & In course of
leasehold tgasehold equipment construction
14. Tangibie fixed assets £m im im £m im
Group
Cost or valuationh
At 1 April 2004 384 1477
Differences on exchange (1) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 11
Additions 36 269
Transfer between assets - -
Disposal of subsidiaries - 4)
Disposals (250)
At 31 March 2005 1,503
Cost 265 t 412 1,503 33 2,214
Valuation — trading properties {1996} 45 - - - - 45
310 1 412 1,503 33 2.259
Depreciation
ALY Apnil 2004 52 1 164 909 - 1,128
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3 - - 9 - 12
Charge for year ] - 20 179 - 208
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - 3) - (€3]
Disposais {2 (B 7 (242) - (252)
At 31 March 2005 62 - 177 852 - 1,091
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 191 3 220 568 56 1,038
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 248 1 235 651 33 1,168
2005 2004
Assets held under finance leases and capitalised in plant, vehicles and equipment £m £
Cost 60 63
Aggregate depreciation {53) (51)
Net Book Value 7 12

The Group has no investment properties hetd for hire under operating ieases. At 31 March 2004, investment properties vaiued at £6m
were heid for hire under operating leases.

Revalued trading properties are included at their valuation at 31 March 1996 less depreciation. The valuation at 3t March 1996 was on the
basis of open market value for existing use. Other trading properties are included at cost.

On the historical cost basis the net book value of properties carried at valuation is £6m (2004 £7m), comprising cost of £14m
(2004 £16m) and related depreciation of £8m (2004 £9m).

Freehold Short Plant, Tozal
propesties leasghald venicles &
properties equipment
£m im £m im
Company
Cost
At 1 April 2004 and 321 March 2005 1 1 2 4
Depreciation
At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 - - 1 1
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 and 31 March 2005 1 1 1 3

The Company has no investment properties hetd for hire under operating leases. At 31 March 2004, properties with a net book value of
£1m were classified as investment properties held for hire under operating leases.
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Shares in Interests in Other
associated shares in investments

undertakings Burberry
{note a) {note h) {note ¢}

15. Fixed asset investments im im im

Group

Cost or valuation

At} April 2004

Differences on exchange

Additions

Share of profit after taxation {after goodwill charge of £4m (2004 £3m))
Dividends received

Movement on acquisition of balance of shareholding

Dispaosats

At 31 March 2005

Amounts written off
At 1 Aprit 2004
Amaortisation far year

At 31 March 2003 11
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 93 g i 103
Net Book Vvalue at 3T March 2005 106 8 - 114
Group
undertakings
(note d)
im
Company
Cost
At 1 April 2004 3,162
Additians 1,819
Disposais (1,819
At 31 March 2005 3,162
Amaunts written off
At 1 April 2004 and 31 March 2005 5
Net Book Value at 31 March 2004 3,157
Net Book Value at 31 March 2005 3,157

As reported in Note 1, own shares held by the Company are now deducted in arriving at sharehalders' funds {see Note 24).

{(a) Stiares in associated undertakings
The additions in the year ended 31 March 2005 are principally in respect of First American Real Estate Solutions LLC. The Group’s share of
cumulative retained profits of associated undertakings at 31 March 2005 is £44m (2004 £31m).

The principal associated undertakings are as follows:

Countsy of Class of %
Name incorporaticn shares held interast Nature of business
First American Real Estate Soiutigns [LC USA * 20 Information services
AAGUS Financial Services Group NV The Netherlands Ordinary 333 Consumer lending

* First American Rea! Estate Solutions LLC (FARES") is a US partnership.
All interests in associated undertakings are held by subsidiary undertakings.

(b) interests in shares in Burberry

These comprise shares in Burberry Group plc held by that company and, at 31 March 2005, the interest represents the cost of 6.5m
(2004 4.9m) ordinary shares (nominal value of £3,240 {2004 £2,448)} which amounts to 1.3% (2004 1.0%) of its called up share capital.
These shares are held to meet the share option award cbligations arising on certain Burberry share incentive schemes (see Note 34{k)).

In the vear ended 31 March 2005, Burberry Group plc purchased 2.3m (2004 2.7m) shares at a cost of £8m (2004 £7m). These shares
were acquired by the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust in the open market using funds provided by Burberry Group companies. In addition,
715,453 shares were used to satisfy awards granted under the Burberry Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2002 and All Employee
Share Plans,

in the year ended 31 March 2005 the Burberry Group pic ESOP Trust has waived its entitiemen? to dividends of £254,307
(2004 £167,998). The costs of funding and administering the trusts are charged to the profit and ioss account of Burberry Limited in the
period to which they relate. The market vaiue of all Burberry Group pic shares held at 31 March 2005 was £26m (2004 £17m).

(¢} Other investmeants
QOther investments comprised investments formerly heid by Experian North America, At 31 March 2004 the market and redemption vaiue
of these investments was £1m.

{d) Croup undertakings
The principai subsidiary undertakings are listed on page 95.
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6. Stocks m

Group

Raw materials 14 15
Work in progress 7 8
Finished goods 296 800

1,017 823

There is no significant difference between the replacement cost of stocks and the amounts shown above as stock subject to provisioning
would not necessarily be replaced and can therefore be excluded fram the comparisan.

2005 2005 2004 2004
Due within Due after Duye within Due aftar
one year maore than one year more than
ont year one year
17. bebtors Em £m im Em
Group
Trade debtors:
Hire purchase debtors 166 39 166 38
Provision for unearned finance charges (28) (7) (26) {6}
Net hire purchase debtors 138 32 140 33
Instalment debtors 419 232 304 261
Other trade debtors 394 36 363 3]
Total trade debtors a51 300 807 325
Amounts owed by associated undertakings - - 1 -
Taxation recoverable 4 1 1 §
VAT recoverable 14 - 7 -
Pension asset - 128 - 80
Deferred consideration receivable - 140 - 140
QOther prepayments and acerued incame 183 14 272 14
1,152 583 1,088 540

An amount of £140m is unconditionally receivable by the Company in May 2006 from March UK Limited being the element of deferred
consideration in respect of the disposal of the home shopping and Reality businesses,

2005 2005 2004 2004
Bue within Tue after Oue within Due after
one year more than oane year more than
one ygar one year
im £m im im

Company
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 6,667 - 4618 -
Taxation recoverable - - I3 _
Deferred taxation - 16 - 14
VAT recoverable 1 - - -
Prepayments and accrued income 11 140 107 140
6,679 156 4,738 154
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18. Current asset investments im
Cast
Listed investmeants 24
Unlisted investments 7
31
Certificates of deposit 70
101
Market and redemption value
Listed investmenis 26
Unlisted investments 5 5
34 31
Certificates of deposit - 70
34 101
The listed and unlisted investments are held in connection with the activities of Lewis Group Limited, the Croup’s South African Retailing
business.
Group Croup Company Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
{Restated) {Restared)
(Note 1} (Note 1)
19. Creditors ~ amounts due within ane year £m im £m £m
Loans and overdrafts (Note 21) 123 499 35 339
Obligations under finance feases 6 5 - -
Trade creditors 502 458 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 6,335 4,120
Taxation 66 97 20 -
VAT and ather taxes payable 6% 68 - -
Soclal security costs 47 40 - -
Accruals 794 686 9 13
Other creditars 173 178 19 27
Proposed final dividend 203 191 203 191
1,983 2,221 6,621 4,690

Accruals for the Group and the Company at 31 March 2004 have been reduced by £12m as a result of the adoption of UITF 38
{see Note 24).

Group Group Company Company

2005 2004 2005 2004

28, Creditors - amounts due after more than one year Em im Em im

loans (Note 21) 1,674 1,314 1,451 i,082
Ohbhligations under finance leases:

Repayabile in one to twp years 2 5 - -

Repayable in two to five years - 2 - -

Accryals 51 ¥ - -

Other creditors 23 58 - -

1,750 1,433 1,451 1,092
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21. Loans and overdrafts

£im

Company
2004
im

Repayable wholly within five years:

n500m 5.125% Eurobands 2004 333 - 333
h600m 4.125% Eurobonds 2007 396 375 396
£350m 6.375% Eurchonds 2009 - 348
4.0% Perpetual Securities 73 -
4.9% Perpetual Securities 149 -
Multi-Currency loans - 380
Other loans i 35
Qverdrafts 165 -
1,449 1,117 1,138 735
Repayable after more than five years:
£350m 6.375% Eurobonds 2009 - 348 - 348
£350m 5.625% Eurobonds 2013 348 348 348 348
1,797 1,813 1,486 1,431
The amounts due to be repaid within five years are repayable as follows:
Within one year 123 499 35 339
Between two and five years 1,326 618 1,103 396
1,449 1,117 1,138 73%
All the borrowings of the Group and the Company shown above are unsecured.
Deferred Post- Total
taxatian retirement
healthcare
casts
22. Provisions for liabilities and charges im £m im
Group
At 1 April 2004 77 i2 89
Profit and loss account i3 1 14
Payments - m m
Acquisition of subsidiaries m - [¢))]
At 31 March 2005 89 12 101
Pensions Post- Tota!
obiigations retirement
healthcare
[d:3.34.]
im im im
Company
At 1 April 2004 14 11 25
Profit and loss account 2 ) 3
Payments (3) (1) (4)
At 31 March 2005 13 11 24
Group Group
2005 2004
£m £m
The provision for deferred taxation comprises:
Accelerated capital allowances 15 -
Other timing differences 208 199
undiscounted provision for deferred taxation 223 189
Discount {134) (122)
Discounted provision for deferred taxation 89 77

Unprovided deferred taxation - property revaluations

1

Deferced taxation is not provided in respect of profits retained in overseas Group undertakings; were these profits to be distributed to the

UK the taxation liability would be approximately £645m (2004 £211m).
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23. Called up share capital

Authorised
Qrdinary shares of 25p each 1,250.0

Allotted and fully paid

At 1 April 2004 1,014.0
Allotted under share option schemes 6.7
Canceliation of purchased shares (32.5)

At 31 March 2005 1,017.2

Details of awards and options in respect of the Company’s shares are given in Note 34(a).

own Treasury Profit Totai Revaluation Share
shares shares and loss prafit and reserve premium
Fasarve aceount less account account
raren'g
24. Reserves [ im im Em
Group
At | April 2004 as previously reported - - 2,518 2,518 40 35
Prior year adjustment — UITF 38 (Neote 1)
Investment in own shares (72) - 24 (48) - -
Accruals - - 12 12 - -
(72) - 36 (36) - -
At 1 April 2004 as restated (72) - 2,554 2,482 40 35
Profit for the financial year - - 130 130 ~ -
Shares issued under option schemes - -~ - - ~ 34
Purchase of own shares )] (170) (30) (206) - -
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes - - 34 34 - -
Revaluation surplus realised on disposals - ~ 4 4 {4) -
Currency translation differences - - 7 7 - -
At 31 March 2005 {78) (170) 2,699 2,451 36 69
Company
At 1 April 2004 as previously reported - - 2,067 2,067 - 35
Prior year adjustment — WTF 38 {(Note 1}:
Investment in own shares {72) - 24 (48) - -
Agcruals - - 12 12 - -
(72) - 36 (36) - -
At 1 Aprit 2004 as restated (72) - 2,103 2,031 - 35
Lass for the financial year - - (260} {260) - -
Shares issued under option schemes - - - - - 34
Purchase of own shares (&) (}70) (30} {206) - -
Credit in respect of share incentive schemes ' - - It 11 - -
At 31 March 2005 (78) (170} 1,824 - 1,576 - 69
ta) Goodwill

Cumulative goodwill of £1,709m {2004 £1,70%9m} has been charged to reserves in respect of acquisitions before 1 April 1998, including
£1.678m {2004 £1 678m) in respect of subsidiary undertakings and £31m (2004 £31m) in respect of associated undertakings.

{b) Currency transiation differences

Included in currency translation differences is an exchange gain of £57m {2004 £177m) arising on borrowings denominated in foreign
currencies and currency swaps designated as hedges of net investments overseas. This amount inciudes a gain of £58m (2004 £148m) on
the currency swaps designated as hedges of net investments overseas.

(¢) interests in own shares
During the year, 24,740,000 (2004 3,450,000} Ordinary shares were purchased by the Company, representing 2.4% (2004 0.3%) of the
called up share capital, for a total cost of £222m (2004 £23m). Of the total number of Ordinary shares purchased:

~ 3,500,000 (2004 nil) shares were subsequently cancelled. These canceiled shares were purchased at a cost of £30m and represented
0.3% of the called up share capital of the Company. Reported profit and loss account reserves were reduced by £30m.

- 2,600,000 (2004 3,450,000} Ordinary shares, representing 0.3% (2004 0.3%) of the called up share capital, were purchased by GUS
ESOP Trusts at a cost of £22m (2004 £23m). These shares are now deducted from shareholders' funds.

- 18,640,000 (2004 nil) Ordinary shares, representing 1.8% (2004 nil} of the called up share capital, were purchased for a rotal cost of
£170m (2004 nil) as Treasury shares. These shares have not been cancelied but are held in a Treasury shares reserve within the profit
and loss account reserve and represent a deduction from shareholders’ funds.
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24. Reserves continued

Interests in own shares, deducted in arriving at shareholders' funds in accordance with UTTF 38, represent the cost of 30.5m (2004 11.7m)
of the Company's Ordinary shares (nominal value of £8m (2004 £3m)) which amounts to 3.0% (2004 1.2%) of the catted up share capital.

Of the above Ordinary shares held, 11.9m {2004 11,7m) Ordinary shares are now heid by The GUS pic ESOP Trust (‘the Trust’). These
shares have been acquired in the open market using funds provided by the Company. At 31 March 2005 shares previously held by the
Company's other ESOP trusts ware transferred to the Trust.

Alt shares in the Trust are held to satisfy the Group's obligations under its share incentive plans. Shares are granted to employees at the
discretion of the Group and are released to employees by the Trust in accordance with the ruies of the respective share incentive plans.
The Trust has waived its entitlement to dividends in respect of 11.0m {2004 11.2m) Ordinary shares. At 31 March 2005 the market vaiue
of the shares was £109m (2004 £87m). The casts of administering the Trust are charged to the Group prafit and loss accaunt.

(d) There are no significant statutory, contractual or exchange contro! restrictions on distributions by Group undertakings.

_ 2005 2004
25, Cammitments £m im
(a) Group capital commitments
Capital expenditure for which contracts have been placed a1 64
There are no significant commitments relating to the Company.
2005 2005 2004 2004
Land & Plant & Land & Plant &
. : buildings eguipiment bufldings equipment
{b) Operating lease commitments £m £m im £m
Croup
Annual commitments where the commitment expires:
Within one year 11 4 11 13
Within two to five years 43 18 33 18
in more than five years 283 - 264 -
337 22 308 31
2005 2004
tand & Land &
buildings buildings
im £m
Company
Annual commitments where the commitment expires in more than five years 1 2

26. Contingent liabilities

There are no borrowings by subsidiary undertakings guaranteed by th‘e Company at 31 March 2005 (2004 £3m).

n the United States, there are a number of pending and threatened litigation claims involving Experian. Experian is vigorously defending
such claims. The directors do not believe that the outcome of any such pending or threatened litigation will have a raterial adverse effect
on the Group's financial position. However, as is inherent in legal proceedings, there is a risk of outcomes unfavourable to the Croup.

27. Related party transactions

During the year Experian companies made net sales and recharges to associated undertakings of £10m (2004 £22m). Amounts receivable
from and owed to associated undertakings are shown within notes 17 and 18,

28, Post halance sheet event

On 189 May 2005, the Group arnounced the sale of its remaining interest in Lewis Group Limited (‘Lewis’) of 50m shares, comprising 50%
of the issued share capital. The offer excluded the 4m {(4%) Lewis shares which will be transferred to the Lewis Employes Share Incentive
Trust, The sale was achieved by way of an accelerated book-buiiding process and was concluded at a price of R33.50 per share, a discount
of 5.6% to the ciosing price of Lewis on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa on 17 May 2005, being the last price prior to the
announcement of the offer.
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29. Foreign currency

The principal exchange rates used were as follows:

Average Clesing
2005 2004 2004
Us doifar 1.88 1.70 1.84
Euro 1.47 1.44 . 1.5G
South African rand 11.47 12.05 11,55
20035 2004
(Restated)
{Note |}
30. Notes to the Group cash flow statement £m im
{a) Net cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit 680 619
Depreciation and amortisation charges 481 459
Charge in respect of share incentive schemes (including £4m in respect of minorities) 38 15
Increase in stocks (194) (134)
increase in debtors (92) (295}
Increase in creditors 3 8]
Decrease in provisions for iiabilities and charges - (28)
Net cash inflow from operating activities ai6 727
(b) Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 32 23
interest paid (62) (65)
interest element of finance lease rental payments 1) [4)]
Dividends paid to minority interests an (5)
Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance (42) (48)
(¢) Capital expenditure
Purchase of fixed assets {416) (323)
Sale of fixed assets 26 17
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure (390) (306)
(e Financial investment
Purchase of Burberry sharas* (8) (N
Sale of Burberry shares™ 2 -
Purchase of other fixed asset investiments {5} (32)
Sale of other fixed asset investments - 7
Loans repaid by 8L Universal PLC. - 82
Net cash {(outfiow)/inflow for financial investment () 50
* These purchases and sales are in respect of shares held to hedge and satisfy awards under Burberry incentive schemes.
{e) Acquisition of subsidiaries
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings (note (1)) (199) (139
Met cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings (note (8) 23 7
Net cash outflow for acquisition of subsidiaries (176) (132
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2004

{Restated)

\ (Notet)

30. Notes to the Group cash flow statement continued im

(f) Disposal of subsidiaries and joint venture

Proceeds of Initial Public Offering of Lewis (note {m)) -
Proceeds of disposal of shares in Burberry (note (m)} 207
Sale af home shopping and Reality businesses 438
Sale of interest in BL Universal PLC 120
Sale of ather businessas (note {(m} F4

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries and joint venture

{g) Management of liquid resources

Purchase of investments - (m
Sale of investments 70 -
Decrease in term deposits {other than overnight deposits) 4 B
Net cash inflow from management of fiquid resources 74 g

{h) Net purchases of own shares

Purchase of own shares {222) (23)
Sale of own shares 16 17
Net cash outflow from purchases of own shares {206) {6}
(i Financing
Debt due within one year:
Repayment of borrowings {334) (525)
New borrowings 93 -
Debt due after more than one year:
Repayment of borrowings 21y -
New borrowings 380 -
Capital element of finance lease rental payments : (5) 9)
Net cash inflow/{outfiow} from financing 113 (534)
At Cash Exchange At
L april flow mavement 31 March
2004 2005
(i) Analysis of net debt im £m £m Em
Cash at bank and in hand {including overnight deposits} 326 {173) - 153
Qverdrafts (165) 77 - {88)
161 (96) - 65
Debt due after more than one year (1,314) {359) n (1,674)
Debt due within one year (334) 241 58 (35)
Finance ieases (12} 5 m (8)
(1,660) ar13) 56 (1,717)
Liquid resources:
Term deposits 198 4 - 194
Current asset investments {including certificates of deposit) 101 {70} - 31
299 {(74) - 225
Total (1,200 (283) 56 {1,427)

(k} Major non-cash transactions
The Group did not enter into any new finance lease arrangements during the year (2004 £2m).

During the year ended 31 March 2004 the Group teclassified current asset investments of £3m as fixed asset investments.
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30. Notes to the Group cash flow statement continued

{l) Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings

Net assets acquired:

Fixed assets

Current assets:

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors (including overdrafts of nit (2004 £1m))
Provisions for liabilities and charges

GCoodwill

Satisfied by:
Cash 196 136
Acquisition expenses 3 3
195 139
Deferred consideration 12 8
2117 147
Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year had no material impact on the cash flows of the Group.
2005 2005 2005 2005 2004
initial Public Disposal of Disposal of Total Tatal
Gffering of shares in other
Lewis* Burberry  businesses
{m) Disposal of subsidiaries and joint venture Em Em £m im im
Fixed assets: )
Intangible assets - - 2 2 5
Tangible assets - - 1 1 10
Fixed asset investments ~ - - - 132
Current assets:
Stocks - - - - 151
Debtors - - 3 3 9258
Creditors - - {2) (2) {436)
Provisions for liabifities and charges - - -~ - (12)
- - 4 4 775
Profit on initial Public Offering of Lewis 26 - - 26 -
Profit on disposal of shares in Burberry - 3 - 3 157
Loss on sale of other businesses - - (7} (7} (94)
Coodwill previously written off to reserves - - - - 35
26 3 {3) 26 873
Satisfied by:
Cash 1G5 4 - 09 779
Payments on disposal of businesses - - 3) (3) -
Deferred consideration - ~- - - 144
Creation of minority interest (79) 1) - {80) (50)
26 3 (3) 26 873

*Discontinuéed operatichs

Subsidiary undertakings disposed of during the yvear had no material impact on the cash flows of the Group. During the year ended 31
March 2004, the Group received £120m for the sale of its joint venture, BL Universal PLC.
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Accouating
Book policy Fair
i Ii

31. Acquisitions qumE * gnme:: mﬁl:
Detaits of significant acquisitions are given in the directors’ report on page 32.
The assets and liabilities of companies acquired in the year were as follows:
Fixed assets 12 - 12
Current assets:
Debtors 19 - 19
Cash at bank and in hand 23 - 23
Creditors (38) (5) (43)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 1 - 1
Net assets acquired 17 (5) 12
Coodwill (Note 12) 199

211
Satisfied by:
Cash 196
Acquisition expenses 3
Deferred consideration 12

211

There were no fair value adjustments in respect of acguisitions during the vear,

32. Financial instruments

The financial review on pages 26 to 29 provides details of the Group's treasury policy and controls.

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 13 in respect of shart term debtars and creditors and accardingly,
where permitted by the FRS, details in respect of such debtors and creditors are excluded from the disclosures dealt with in this note.

(a} Bovrowing facilities
At 31 March 2005 the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities available of £420m (2004 £900m) which expire in December
2008. These facilities are in place to enabie the Group to finance its working capital requirements and for general corporate purposes.

{by Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Set out below is a comparison by category of book values and fair values of the Group's financial instruments:

2005 2005 ) 2004 2004

Book value Fair value Book value Fair vaiue

£m £m im im

Fixed asset investments — ather investments - , - 1 ]
Debtors due after more than one year 455 455 480 480
Current asset investments 3 34 101 101
Cash at bank and in hand 347 347 524 524
Financial assets 833 836 1,106 1,106
Loans and overdrafts (1,797) (1,820) (1,813) (1,850)
Finance leases — amounts due within one year (6) (6) (5} {5),
Finance leases — amounts due after more than one year (2) (2) (7 7
Cther creditors - amounts due after more than one year (74) {74) (112) (112)
(1,046} {1,066) (831) {868)

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile:

Interest rate swaps - 13 ~ 14
Currency swaps and forward foreign currency contraces 2 9 49 56
Equity swaps held to hedge National Insurance liabilities on employee share incentive schemes 3 3 - -

The fair values of listed current asset investments and borrowings are based on year end mid-market prices. The fair values of other
financial assets and fiabilities, equity swaps and interest rate swaps are based on net present values using appropriate market rates
prevailing at the year end. The fair value of foreign currency contracts is based on a comparison of the contractual and year end exchange
rates.
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32. Financial instruments continued

(¢} Currency and interest rate risk profile
The returns earned on bank balances, cash and investments are variable, determined by lacal market conditions.

The interest rate risk profile of the Group's other financial assets by currency, after taking account of interest rate swaps, is as follows:

Floating Fixed Financiat Total Fixed rate Financial assets
rate rate assers financial assets on which no
financial financial on which interest is
assets assets no Interest earned
is earned

Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average
interast rate pericd far periad untli
which rate maturity

is fixed

years years

At 31 March 2005

Sterling 144 69 36 249 11 2 2
US dollar - - P 2 - - 2
Euto 160 - 12 172 - ~ 2
South African rand - 32 - 32 27 2 -
304 101 50 455
At 31 March 2004
Sterling 143 100 40 283 11 4 2z
Euro 158 - 6 164 - - 2
South African rand - 33 - 33 23 3 -
' 301 133 46 480
The floating rate financial assets earn interest at rates generaily determined by local regulation and market conditions.
The interest rate risk profile of the Group's financial liabilities by currency, after taking account of interest rate and currency swaps, is as
foliows:
Floaling Flxed Financial Total Fixed rate Financia!
rate rate liabillties financial liabilities lisbilities
finzncial financial on which an which noe
liabilities liabilities no interest interest is
is paid paid
Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average AVETage
interest rate period for periad until
Wwhich rate Maturity
Is fixed
im fm £m £m % years years
At 31 March 2005
Sterling 3 306 32 341 5 2 3
US dolfar 616 33G i3 95§ 3 2 3
Euro 418 70 18 506 2 1 3
South African rand 108 1 - 109 - - -
Other (47} - 11 (36) - - P
1,098 707 74 1,87%
At 31 March 2004
Sterling (300} 632 44 376 5 7 3
US doltar 662 256 32 950 3 3 3
Euro 87 402 26 515 5 ] 3
South African rand 130 1 - 131 - - -
Other (45} - 10 (35) - - 2z
534 1,291 iz 1,837

The floating rate financial liabilities accrue interest at rates generally determined by local regulation and market conditions.

The negative liabilities at 31 March 2005 arose from forward foreign currency sales undertaken to hedge net investment overseas. The
negative steriing and other liabilities at 31 March 2004 arose from forward foreign currency sales undertaken to hedge net investments
overseas.
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32. Financial instruments continued

{d) Maturity of finangial liabilities
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities, including finance lease obligations, is as follows:

2005 2004
£m im
In one year or less 129 504
In one to two years 395 111
In two to five years 1,000 621
in more than five years 355 701
1,879 1,937

{e) Hedging

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for using hedge accounting to the extent that they are held to hedge a financial asset or

liability.

At 31 March 2005 and 31 March 2004 the Group had no material deferred foreign currency gains. An analysis of unrecognised gains and

losses on hedging is shown below:

Unretopnised  \Unreccghised

Totat

gains i0ss5es  unrecognised

Yains/{losses)
Year ended 31 March 2005 £m £m Err
On hedges at 1 April 2004 21 - 21
Arising before 1 April 2004 and recognised during the year ended 31 March 2005 {an - an
Arising during the year and not included in current year income 12 (2) 10
At 21 March 2005 22 t2) 20
Expected to be recognised in 2006 14 {2) 12
Expected to be recognised thereafter . 8 - 8
Year ended 31 March 2004
On hedges at 1 Aprid 2003 338 v} 36
Arising before 1 April 2003 and recognised during the year ended 31 March 2004 (&) 2 (4)
Arising during the year and nat included in current year incame (an - any
At 31 March 2004 21 - 21
Expected to be recognised in 2005 11 _ 11
Expected to be recognised thereafter 10 - 10
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2005 2004
Ful) time Full time
33. Employees Full time Part time  equivalent Full time* Part time equivaient”
The average number of employees of the Croup
during the vear was:
Argos Retail Group
Continuing operations:
Argos 8,541 22,093 17,045 9,746 20,553 17,192
Homebase §,353 11,488 11,061 6,027 10,956 10,395
Financial Services 104 20 116 27 5 29
Wehkamp 643 699 1,041 682 739 1104
15,641 34,300 29,263 16,492 32,253 28,720
Discontinued operations - - - 1,704 932 2,337
15,641 34,300 29,263 18,196 33,185 31,057
Experian
Experian North America 4,441 157 4,520 5,378 95 5,456
Experian Internationai 7,297 701 7,654 7,413 980 7,875
11,738 858 12,174 12,791 1,075 13,331
Burberry 3,902 464 4,131 3,657 451 3,855
Lewis - discontinued operations 5,713 402 5,847 5,488 357 5,608
QOther 70 - 70 62 1 62
37,064 36,024 51,485 40,135 35,069 53,927
* Numbers have been restated to amend the previously disclosed number of employees in Experian International.
The aggregate payroll costs for the Group were as follows:
2005 2004
£im im
Wages and salaries 1,144 1,125
Social security costs 132 133
Other pension costs 55 63
1,33} 1,32]

Details of the remuneration, shareholdings and share options of the directors are included in the Report on directors” remuneration and

refated matters on pages 41 to 50,

: 2005 2004
34. Share options and awards number number
{a} Options and awards in respect of the Qrdinary shares of the Company
The numbers of options and awards cutstanding in respect of the Ordinary shares of the Company comprise:
The GUS pic Performance Share Plan 1,939,013 1,767,768
The GUS pic Co-lnvestment Plan 4,556,040 2,535,109
The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes 13,495,716 14,344,437
The North America Stock Qption Plan 5,397,569 5,988,803
CUS plc Savings Reiated share option schemes 8,848,440 9,349,008
Other share schemes 71,113 27,764
34,307,897 34,012,889

(i) Awards under The GUS ple Performance Share Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2005, awards were made under this plan in respect of 752,358 (2004 800,109) Ordinary shares in the
Company. At 31 March 2005 awards in respect of 1,939,013 {2004 1,767,768} Ordinary shares remained outstanding and, as indicated in
Note 24, shares have been purchased by The GUS plc ESOP Trust to meet obligations under this plan. These awards include those granted
to directors, further detaits of which are cantained i the report on directars’ remuneration and related matters on pages 41 to 50.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, 427,726 (2004 1,108,716) Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficiaries of The

CUS plc Performance Share Plan,

{ii) Awards under The CUS plc Co-investment Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2005, awards were made under this plan in respect of 2,321,962 (2004 1,681,775) Ordinary shares in
the Company. At 31 March 2005 awards in respect of 4,556,040 (2004 2,535,109) Ordinary shares remained outstanding and, as indicated
in Note 24, shares have been purchased by The CUS pic ESOP Trust to meet obligations under this plan. These awards inciude those
granted to divectors, further details of which are contained in the report on directors' remuneration and related matters on pages 41

1o 50.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, 257,821 (2004 94,450} Ordinary shares were transferred from the Trust to beneficiaries of The GUS
plc Co-Investment Plan.
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34. Share options and awards continued

{iii) Options under the 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes

Unexercised options granted under these schemas in respect of Qrdinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Number Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
- 52,136 580.2p From 09.12.2001 to 08,12.2008
. - 45,276 690.2p From 23.06.2002 t0 22.06.2009
315,029 537,829 375.7p From 07.04.2003 1o 06.04.2010
- 11,406 526.0p From 06.12.2003 to 05.12,.2010
1,832,707 4,392,899 612.7p From 11.06.2004 to 10.06.2011
179,961 388,796 635.0p From 17.12.2004 10 16.12.2011
2,844,460 3,136,395 653.0p From 06.06.2005 to 05.06.2012
747,744 1,284,351 554.0p From 23.12.2005 to 22.12.,2012
3,751,549 4,392,596 675.5p From 19.06.2006 1o 18.06.2013
88,333 99,753 757.0p From 02.12.2006 to 01.12.2013
3,562,323 - 809.2p From 01.06.2007 to 31.05.2014
173,610 - 867.0p From 24.11.2007 10 23.11,2014

13,495,716 14,344,437

These options include those granted to directors of the Company, further details of which are contained in the report on directors’

rermuneration and related ratters on pages 41 to 50.

During the year ended 31 March 2005, 4,005,563 (2004 4,595,779} Ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of such share

options.

{iv) Options under the North America Stock Qption Plan

Linexercised options granted under this scheme in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Number Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
200,407 359,373 381.3p From 14.06.2001 to 13.06.2006
6,983 10,217 526.0p From 06.12.2001 to 05.12.2006
650,813 1,689,656 612.7p From 11.06.2002 to 10.06.2007
1,436,910 2,047,476 653.0p From 06.06.2003 to 05.06.2008
57,244 97.660 554.0p From 23.12.2003 to 22.12.2008
1,535,436 1,756,367 675.5p From 19.06.2004 to 18,06.2009
28,054 28,054 757.0p From 02.12.2004 to 01.12.2009
1,458,033 - 809.2p From 01.06.2005 to 371.,05.2010
23,689 - 867.0p From 24.11.2005 1o 23.11.2010

5,397,569 5,988,803

All such options are to be satisfied by the transfer of aiready issued Ordinary shares and shares have been purchased for this purpose by
The GUS pic ESOP Trust (see Note 24). During the yvear ended 31 March 2005, 1,637,297 {2004 2,017,296) Ordinary shares were
transferred from the Trust to beneficiaries on the exarcise of options.

{(v) Options under The GUS plc Savings Related Share Option Scheme, The GUS pic Savings Related Share Optian Schemse {ireland) and The

GUS ple tnternational Savings Related Share Option Scheme

Unexercised options granted under these schemes in respect of Ordinary shares in the Company are as follows:

Number Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
1,669 2,524,448 384.0p From 01.05.2004 10 31.10.2004
2,299,567 2,433,622 384.0p From 01.05.2006 to 31.10.2006
800,375 1,023,276 523.0p From £1.09.2005 10 28.02.2006
715,718 792,694 523.0p From 01.09.2007 to 29.02.2008
1,428,403 1,652,676 508.0p From 01.09.2006 to 28.02.2007
842,061 922,252 508.0p From 01.09.20038 to 28.02.200%
2,067,393 - 648.0p From 01.09.2007 to 29.02.2008
593,254 - 648.0p From 01.09.2009 to 28.02.2010

8,848,440 9,349,008

These optiens include those granted to directors of the Company, further details of which are contained in the report on directors’

remuneration and related matters on pages 41 to 50,

During the year ended 31 March 2005, 2,602,142 (2004 2,151,956) Ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of such share

options.
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34, Share options and awards continued

(vi) Other share schemes

At 31 March 2005, £529,000 (2004 £159,000) was held in savings based share schemes in France and the United States which gives a
right to acquire 71,113 (2604 27,764} Ordinary shares in the Company. Ouring the year, 106,356 (2004 147,739) Crdinary shares were
issued following the exercise of such options.

(b) Options and awards in respect of ordinary shares of Burberry
An intittal Public Offering (1PQ’} of ordinary shares in Burberry Group plc was completed in July 2602 and details of options and awards in
respect of these shares are as follows:

(i} The Burbarry (PO Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan (the ‘IPO RSP}

On 11 July 20602 awards in respect of 8,100,198 ordinary shares were made to directors and senior management of Burberry under the
IPD RSP

During the year ended 31 March 2665, 1,635,000 ordinary shares were issued in respect of PO RSP awards. The outstanding awards
granted under this plan in respect of the ordinary shares of Burberry Group pic are as follows:

Nember Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Periad of exercise
2,687,499 3,859,446 nil From 11.07.2005 tw 11.07.2012
1,826,251 1,825,724 il Fram 11.07.26G06 to 11.07.2012
1,826,250 1,929,724 nil From 11.07.2007 to 11.07.2012

6,340,006 7,718,894

Obligations under this plan may be met by the issue of ordinary shares of Burberry Group pic.

Equity swaps have been entered into to cover the future employer's National Insurance liabitity (or overseas equivalent) that may arise in
respect of this plan.
{it) The Burberry 2004 Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan (the ‘2004 RSP

On 2 August 2004 awards in respect of 1,367,592 ordinary shares were made to directars and senior management of Burberry under the
2004 RSP. Shares have been purchased by the Burberry Group pic ESOP Trust to meet the obligations under this plan. No ordinary shares
have been transferred during the year ended 31 March 2005 in respect of the 2004 RSP

The putstanding awards granted under this plan in respect of the ordinary shares of Burberry Group plc are as foliows:

Number Number

af shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
671,296 - il From 02.08.2007 10 02.08.2014
335,648 - nil From 02.08.2008 t0 02.08.2014
335,648 - nil From 02.08.200G9 to 02.08.2014

1,342,592 -

Equity swaps have been entered into to cover the future employers National Insurance liability (or overseas equivalent} that may arise in
respect of this plan.

(iiit The Burberry Senior Executive 1PO Share Option Scheme (the ‘IPO Option Scheme?)

On 11 july 2002 options in respect of 5,955,198 ordinary shares were granted to directors and senior management of Burberry under the
IPO Option Scheme. Obligations under this scheme may be met by the issue of ordinary shares of Burberry Group plc. During the year
ended 31 March 2605, 1,906,349 {2004 691,166) ordinary shares were issued following the exercise of aptions under the PG Option
Scheme,

The unexercised options granted under this scheme in respect of ordinary shares of Burberry Group plc are as follows:

Number Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 EXercise price Period of exercise
245,010 706,301 230.0p From 11.07.2003 to 11.07.2012
483,341 1,928,399 230.0p From 11.07.2004 10 11.07.2012
1,728,332 1,831,288 230.0p Fram 11.07.2005 to 11.G7.2012

2,456,683 4,465,998

Equity swaps have been entered into to cover the future employers National insurance liability {or overseas equivalent) that may arise in

respect of this scheme.
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34. Share options and awards continued

(iv) The Burberry Group plc Executive Share Ontion Scheme 2002

During the year ended 31 March 2005 a total of 2,002,290 {2004 3,043,533) options were granted to employees in respect of ordinary
shares in Burberry Group pic under the Executive Share Option Scheme 2002, During the year ended 31 March 2005, 682,813 (2004 nil)
ordinary shares were transferred to participants following the exercise of options under the scheme.

The unexercised options granted under this scheme in respect of ordinary shares of Burberry Group plc are as follows:

Number Number

of shares of shares
2005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
334,198 1,000,345 258.0p From 12.06.2004 to 12.06.2013
931,777 969,344 258.0p From 12.06.2005 1o 12.06.2013
915,113 969,344 258.0p From 12.06.2006 to 12.06.2013
667,430 - 378.0p From 02.08.2005 to 02.08.2014
667,430 - 378.0p From 02.08.2006 10 02.08.2014
667,430 - 378.0p From 02.08.2007 to ©2.08.2014

4,183,378 2,939,033

Shares have been purchased by the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust to meet obligations under this scheme. Equity swaps have been entered
into to cover the future employer’s National Insurance liability {or overseas equivalent) that may arise in respect of this scheme.

{v) The Burberry Group pic Co-investment Plan

During the year ended 31 March 2005 awards were made under this plan in respect of 221,763 (2004 nil) ordinary shares in Burberry
Croup pic. At 31 March 2005 a total of 221,703 shares remain outstanding. Shares have been purchased by the Burberry Group plc ESOP
Trust to meet obligations under this pian.

{vi) All Employee Share Plan
During the year ended 31 March 2005 Burberry employees were offered a total of 471,050 (2004 412,400) ordinary shares in Burberry
Group plc at a nil exercise price under an All Employee Share Plan,

The ordinary shares are held in two trusts, the Burberry Group Share incentive Plan and the Burberry Group plg ESOP Trust. The shares
must be held in trust for between three and five years.

The ordinary shares in Burberry Croup plc granted and remaining outstanding under this plan are as follows:

Number Number
of shares of shares
28005 2004 Exercise price Period of exercise
176,700 208,300 nil From 19.07.2005 to 19.10.2005
105,850 128,291 nil From 25.1¢.2005 1o 18.07.2082*
121,200 148,500 nil From 07.07.2006 to 07.10.2006
81,450 85,350 nil From 18.07.2006 to 18.10.2006
119,750 147,350 nil From 05.08.2006 10 18.07.2082*
252,400 - nil From 30.07.2007 10 30.10.2007
171,750 - nil From 20.08.2007 to 18.07.2082*
1,029,160 717,791

* No date has been specified when these awards lapse. The cessation date of the trust in which the shares are held is 18 July 2082.
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34. Share aptions and awards continued

(€) Options and awards in respect of ordinary shares of Lewis Group Limitad
An initial Public Offering ('tPO") of ordinary shares in Lewis Group Limited was completed in October 2004 and details of options and
awards in respect of these shares are as follows:

() The Lewis Executive IPO Restricted Share Scheme (the 'LEIRSS")

On 4 October 2004 awards in respect of 951,876 ordinary shares in Lewis Group Limited were made to directors and senior management
of Lewis under the LEIRSS. At 3} March 2005 awards in respect of 929,344 ordinary shares remained outstanding under the LEIRSS. An
award under the LEIRSS takes the form of a deferred right to acquire shares in Lewis Group Limited at no cost (¢ the participant. The fair
value of the LEIRSS shares has been charged as an exceptional item in the year ended 31 March 28G5.

Follawing the sale of the remainder of the Group's holding in Lewis Croup Limited in May 2005 the awards under the scheme vested.

(i) The Lewis All Empioyee Share Scheme (the 'LAESS)

At IPO all Lewis employees were offered shares in Lewis Group Limited under the LAESS. The number of shares awarded was 1,623,837, At
31 March 2005 awards In respect of 1,498,358 ordinary shares remained outstanding under the LAESS. An award under the LAESS takes
the form of a defarred right to acquire shares in Lewis Group Limited at no cost to the participant, The vesting of these awards is not
subject to performance conditions. The fair value of the LAESS shares has been charged as an exceptional item in the year ended 31 March
2005.

Foliowing the sale of the remainder of the Group's holding in Lewis Group Limited in May 2005 the awards under the scheme vested.
{iii} The Lewis Executive Share Option Scheme (the ‘LESQS")

During the year ended 31 March 2005 a total of 822,850 options in respect of the ordinary shares of Lewis Group Limited were granted to
the directors and senior management of Lewis under the LESOS at the PO price of Rand 28 per share. At 31 March 2005 awards in respect
of 807,829 ordinary shares remained outstanding under the LESQOS.

Foliowing the sale of the remainder of the Group's hoiding in Lewis Group Limited in May 2005 the awards under the scheme vested.

35. Pension and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates pension pians in a number of countries around the world and provides post-retirement heaithcare insurance benefits
to certain former employees.

Pension arrangements for UK employees are operated principally through two defined benefit schemes (the GUS Scheme and the Argos
Scheme) and the GUS Defined Contribution Scheme. In other countries, benefits are determined in accordance with local practice and
regulations and funding ts provided accordingly. There are defined benefit arrangements in place in North America, South Africa and The
Netherlands with schemes in other countries being either defined contribution or state sponsored schemes.

{aj Pension costs
Pension costs are determined in accardance with 55AP 24 with supplementary disclosures in accordance with the transitional
arrangements of FRS 17.

The total pension cost for the Group was £55m (2004 £63m) of which £16m (2004 £15m) related to overseas plans. At 31 March 2005
there was a net pension asset of £128m {2004 £60m) in respect of the defined benefit schemes and other pension arrangements. The
increase arose largely as a result of special contributions totalling £76m made during the year and the pension asset is included within
debtors. In the year ended 31 March 2004, special cantributions totalling £100m were made. The pension asset is stated after deducting
unfunded liabilities of £16m (2004 £13m).

In the year ended 31 March 2004 an exceptional charge of £3m was made in respect of the transfer of pension arrangements for those
employees of the home shopping and Reality businesses who chose to transfer their pension rights to their new employer foliowing the
disposal of those businesses. The charge was based on the market value of scheme assets and scheme liabilities of the GUS Defined
Benefit Scheme, in respect of the transferring employees, at 31 March 2004 and was in¢luded in creditors at 31 March 2004. The payment
in respect of the transfer was made on | December 2004,

The GUS Defined Benefit Scheme:
This scheme has rules which specify the benefits to be paid and is financed accordingly with assets being held in independently
administered funds, A full actuanal valuation of the scheme is carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years.

The fatest full actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent, qualified actuaries, Wyatt Watson LLP,
using the projected unit method. Under the projected unit method of valuation the current service cost will increase as members approach
retirement due to the ageing active membership of the scheme,

The principal actuarial assumptions used for SSAP 24 purposes were as follows:

Valuation rate of interest:

- post-retirement (pensioners) 5.10% per ahnum
- post-retirement (non-pensioners) 5.60% per annum
«~ pre-retirement 7.00% per annum
Rate of future earnings growth 4.50% per annum
Pension increases 2.75% per annum

At the valuation date, the market value of the scheme's assets was £387m, On the above assumptions, this represented 99% of the vaiue
of benefits that had accrued to members. Since that date the Group has made a special contribution to the scheme of £26m.
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315. Pension and other post-retivement benefits continued

The Argas Defined Benefit Scheme:
This scheme has rules which specify the benefits to be paid and is financed accordingly with assets being held in independently
administered funds. A full actuarial valuation of the scheme is carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years.

The latest full actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent, qualified actuaries, Wyatt Watson LLP,
using the projected unit method. Under the projected unit method of vaiuation the current service cost will increase as members approach
retirement due to the ageing active membership of the scheme.

The principal actuarial assumptions used for SSAP 24 purposes were as shown above for the GUS Defined Benefit Scheme.

At the vatuation date, the market vaiue of the scheme's assets was £303m. This represented 92% of the benefits that had accrued 1o
members. Since that date Argos Limited has made 2 special contribution te the scheme of £50m.

The GUS Defined Contribution Scheme:

This scheme was introduced during the year ended 31 March 1999 with the aim of providing pension benefits to those Group employees
in the UK who had heen ineligible far pensign scheme membership, The assets of the scheme are held separately fram those of the
Company in an independently administered fund, The pension cost represents contributions payabie by the Company to the fund and
amounted to £8m {2004 £11m). Contributions totalling £1m (2004 £1m) were payabie to the fund at 31 March 2005 and are included
within creditors.

(b) Post-retirement heaithcare costs

The Group operates schemes which provide post-retirement healthcare benefits to gartain retired employees and their dependent relatives,
The principal scheme relates to former employees in the UK and, under this scheme, the Group has undertaken to meet the cost of post-
retirement healthcare insurance for all eligible former employees and their dependents who retired prior to 1 April 1894,

The last full actuarial valuation of the accrued iiability in respect of these benefits was carried out as at 31 March 2003 by independent,
qualified actuaries, Watson Wyatt LLP, using the projected unit method. The assumption which has the most significant impact on the
actuaria! valuation is that medical cost inflation will be 6.5% per annum for three years reducing to 4.75% per annum for the longer term,
A provision at 31 March 2005 of £12m (2004 £12m) is included in provisions for liabilities and charges.

Premiums paid in the year were £1m (2004 £im) and the total cost for the Group was £1m (2004 £im).

{c) Disclosures made in accordance with FRS 17

Under the transitional arrangements of FRS 17, the Group continues to account for pension costs in accordance with SSAP 24 but a
number of additional disclosures are reguired including information in relation to overseas schemes. These have been determined with the
assistance of the Group's actuaries who have adjusted the S5AP 24 calculations up to 31 March 2005.

During the year ended 31 March 2005 contributions to the Group’s defined benefit schemes amounted to £116m (2004 £132m).

The last full vatuations of the schemes, which used the projected unit method of valuation, were carried out as follows:

The GUS Defined Benefit Scheme - 31 March 2004
The Argos Defined Benefit Scheme - 31 March 2004
The Experian Pension Plan (USA) - 1 january 2004
The Experian Information Solutions Inc Supplemental Benefit Plan (USA) - 1 January 2004
The Lewis Stores Croup Pension Fund {(South Africa) - 1 January 2003
The Lewis Stores Retirement Fund (South Africa) - 1 January 2003
The Wehkamp Retirement Plan (The Netherlands) - 1 January 2005

The Experian North America schemes are in the process of being terminated. foltowing the sale in Japuary 2004 of the business employing
the members of these schemes. This led to a curtailment gain of £2m and a settlement cost of £11m in the year ended 31 March 2004.
The net amount of £8m was included as a charge to profit and toss account in the FRS 17 disclosures. At 31 March 2005, annuities have
been purchased for all of the liabilities of the pension plans, but these are still awaiting regulatory approval and so an asset transfer has
not yet occurred.

The principal assumptions used in the vatuations for FRS 17 purposes were as follows:

GUs Arpos Gus ATQOs GuUs Argos

2005 2005 2094 2604 2003 2003

UK schemes % % % % % %

Rate of inflation 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.5 2.5

Rate of salary increases 4.7 4.7 4,6 4.6 4.3 4.3

Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 2.9 2.9 2.8 2.8 2.5 2.5

Discount rate 5.4 5.4 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5

UsA South The UsA South The vsa South The

Africa  Netherlands Africa Netherlands Africa Nethertands

2005 2005 2005 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003

Overseas schemes % % % % % % % % %

Rate of inflation 2.5 5.8 2.0 2.5 6.0 2.0 2.0 7.0 2.5

Rate of salary increases nfa 7.0 2.5 4.0 7.0 2.5 4.0 8.0 4.0
Rate of increase for pensions in

payment and deferred pensions - 6.0 2.0 - 6.0 2.4 - 5.0 2.5

Discount rate 5.0 8.9 4.8 5.1 9.0 5.3 6.5 10.0 5.3
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35. Pension and other post-retirement benefits continued

(c) Disclosures made in accordance with FRS 17 continued

The assets of the Group's defined benefit schemes and the expected rates of return are summarised as follows:

uK Overseas UK Overseas UK Overseas
Fair value Expected Fair value Expected Fairvalue Expecred Fairvalue Expected Fairvalue Expected Fairvalue Expected
2005 long-term 2005 long-term 2004 leng-term 2004  long-term 2003 ‘ong-term 2003 long-term
rate af rate of rate of rate of rate of rate of
raturn return FETetr retern return return
2005 2005 2004 2004 2003 2003
%pa %pa ¥pa %pa %pa
Market vaiue of schemes’
assets:
Equities 561 8.0 57 7.9
Fixed interest securities 247 5.0 39 4.4
Praperty - - 9 7.5 -
Other 11 3.7 40 5.2 14
819 7.0 145 6.2 639
The foliowing amounts were measuted in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17:
UK Overseas
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
£m im £m im im im
Market value of schemes’ assets 81% 689 471 145 122 106
Present value of funded schemes’ liabilities {892y (821} F1oy {150 (141} (127}
Deficit in the funded schemes {73y (132} (239 {3) {19} 21}
Liability for post-retirement healthcare and unfunded pension arrangements (28) 23) {41) {5) (4) (6}
aony (5% (280) [§L4)) {23} 27
Related deferred taxation assets 30 47 84 3 7 8
Net pension liability (71) (08 (196) (7) {16} (19)
UK Overseas
2005 2004 2005 2004
Movement in deficit during the year: £m im m im
Deficit at start of year {155) (280) (23) 27)
Movement;
Current service cost (32) 39 {4) (3
Contributions 100 126 16 [
Past service cost - - - m
Other finance income 1 (5) - n
Actuarial {loss)/gain racognised (19) 20 1 12
Settiement gain in respect of unfunded liabilities of hame shopping and Reafity businesses 4 23 - -
Net curtaiiment and settlement loss in respect of Experian North America schemes - - - (9)
Deficit at end of year (101}  (155) {10) (23)
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35. Pension and other post-retirement benefits continued

(c) Disclosures made in accordance with FRS 17 continued
Disclosure of the effect of the adaption of FRS 17 on the financial statements:

As indicated above, the Group continues to account for pension costs in accordance with S5AP 24 but, in accordance with the transitienal
requirements of FRS 17, disclosure is required of the amounts that would have been recognised under FRS 17. The disclosures are as
follows:

{i) Profit and lass account

i FRS 17 had been adopted in full in the financial statements, the amounts charged in the profit and loss account would have comprised:

UK Oversaas Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£m £m £Em im £m Im

Amount charged to operating profit in respect of defined benefit schemes;
Current service cost (3 {39 ey {3 {36) {42)

Past service cost - ) (1
Amount charged to operating profit in respect of defined benefit schemes {32) (39) 4) (4) (36) (43)
Amount credited/{charged) to net interest:

Expected return on schemes’ assets 47 35 q 7 56 42
Interest on schemes’ liabilities {46) (40) (9 8 (55) (48)
Amount credited/(charged) as Other finance income 1 (5} - (1) 1 (6)
Credit/{charge) in respect of settlements and curtaitments 4 23 - 9 4 14
Total tharge w profit and 1055 actount 27 2n {4y {14} (31} (35)

(il} Statemen: of tota! recognised gains and losses

If FRS 17 had been adopted in full in the financial statements, the amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
wauld have comprised:

UK OVErseas Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
£m im £im £m im im
Actual return less expected return on schemes' assets (see note {iv)) (1) 71 1 18 - 89
Experience gains and {iossas) arising on the schemes' liabilities (5ee note (iv)) 53 (&) 7 1 60 (1)
Changes in the assumptions underlying the prasent vatue of the schemes’ liabilities (71) (49) (7) (7) (78) (56}
Actuarial {loss)/gain recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses  (19) 20 1 12 {18) 32
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35. Pension and other post-retirement henefits continued

{cy Disclosures made in accordance with FRS 17 continued

(iéi) Balance sheet

A pension asset of £81m {2604 £34mj {net of deferred taxation} has been recognised in the financial statements under SSAP 24, (FFRS 17
had been adopted in full in the financial statements, the Group’s net assets and profit and loss account reserve would have been as
follows:

2005 2004
(Restated)
INote [}
£m im
Met assets per balance sheet 3,070 2,971
Eflimination of asset under S5AP 24 (81) (34)
Net pension liability under FRS 17 (78) (124}
Net assets including net pension liability 2,911 2,813
Profit and oss account reserve per balance sheet 2,451 2,482
Elimination of asset under S5AP 24 (81) (34
Net pension liability under FRS 17 (78) {124)
Profit and loss account reserve including net pension iiability 2,292 2,324
(v} History of experience gains and (tosses)
UK Overseas
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Difference between the actual and expected return on schemes’ assets:
Amount (£m) {1) 71 (156) 1 18 (20
Percentage of schemes’ assets 0.1% 104% 33.2% 0.6% 148% 19.8%
Experience gains and (losses) on schemes' liabilities:
Amount {fm) 53 {2 11 7 1 15
Percentage of the present value of schemes’ liabilities 5.7% 0.2% 1.6%  4.3% 0.7% 11.9%
Total amount recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses:
Amount (£m) (19) 20 (214) i iz (20}
Percentage of the present value of schemes' liabilities 2.0% 2.4%  30.% 0.5% 8.3% 16.1%
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Five year summary

Profit by division

Continuing operations:
Argos Retail Group
Argos
Homebase
Financial Services
Wehkamp

Experian
Experian North America
Experian Internationa!l

Burberry . 69 90 117 141 166
Central activities {inctuding GGF and gusco.com) (3) {7 (16) {200 28
464 520 607 819 881
Discontinued operations:
Argos Retail Group 36 42 35 - -
Lewis 31 31 32 44 55
Property 30 25 26 18 -
97 98 a3 62 55
561 68 700 881 936
Net interest (74) 67) (58) (54) (26}
Profit before amortisation of goodwill, exceptional items and taxation 487 552 642 827 910
Amartisation of goodwill (92) {99} (143) (193) (207)
Exceptional items (85) (72) (90) 58 (10)
Profit before taxation 310 380 409 ©92 593
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (106} (122) (141) (192) {221)
Profit after taxation 204 258 268 500 472
Equity minority interests - (n (7 (27) (49)
Profit for the financial year 204 257 251 473 423
Balance sheet £m im £m im £m
Tangible and intangible fixed assets (other than goodwill) 916 1,039 1,221 1,197 1,327
Fixed asset investments 283 278 295 103 114
Working capital 1,669 1,416 1,053 765 978
Trading assets 2,868 2,733 2,569 2,065 2,419
Goodwill 1,516 1422 2,436 2,338 2,333
Dividends and taxation {221) (257) (286} {363) {353)
Transaction consideration 42) (22) an 131 98
Net borrowings (including non-recourse borrowings) (1,712) {1,485) (2,086} (1,200) {(1,427)
Net assets 2,408 2,391 2,596 2,971 3,070
Earnings and dividends 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Earnings per share 20.3p 25.7p 25.1p 47.4p 42.3p
Basic earnings per share before amortisation of goodwill
and-exceptional items 37.2p 41.7p 47.8p 60.7p 63.8p
Dividend per share 21.0p 21.7p 23.3p 27.0p 29.5p
Dividend cover 1.77 1.92 2.05 2.25 2.16
Interest cover 7.6 9.3 12.0 16.3 33.7

Comparative figures have been restated following the adoption of UITF 38. Balance sheet figures have been restated but there is no effect
on profits.

In the financial statemenzs for the year ended 31 March 2006, the information in respect of the year ended 31 March 2005 will be
reported an an {FRS basis. The information in respect of the year ended 31 March 2004 and prior yvears will continue to be presented on a
UK GAAP basis.
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International Financial Reporting Standards

As indicated in the financial review on page 28, the financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2006 will be reported in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). Comparative
information for the year ended 31 March 2005 wili be reissued on an (FRS basis, with appropriate reconciliations to the previously
reported UK GAAP position and results, except for 1AS 32 and 39 which are to be adopted from 1 April 2005. In advance of that, an
unaudited summary of the expected impact of IFRS on the reported position and results of the Group for the year ended 3t March 2005 is
set out in nate | below with key changes to accounting policies set out in note 3.

I. Summary of the impact of [FRS an the reported position and result for the year ended 31 March 2005

Unaudited IFRS result and position compared to UK GAAP

im
Profit for the financial year
- UK GAAP i 423
- IFRS 5849
Total equity
- UK GAAP 3,070
- IFRS 3,384
2008 2005
Unaudited recenciliation of profit for the financial year Note im im
Profit for the financial year as reported under UK GAAP 423
IFRS adjustments:
Reversa! of UK GAAP goodwill amortisation 3(a) 207
Amortisation of other intangibles 3(a) (4)
Pensian charge 3(k) 3
Share based payments 3{c) (7}
Catalogue costs 3(e) (1
Deferred taxation 3 (29)
Other 3(h) 4
Tota! IFRS adjustments i76
Profit for the financial year under IFRS 5498
Unaudited earnings per share under IFRS compared to UK CAAP ' 2005
Basic garnings per share
- UK GAAP 42.3p
- IFRS 59.9p
Diluted earnings per share
- UK GAAP 41.7p
- IFRS 59.1p
Weighted average number of shares used in basic EPS calculation (million) 1,000.1
Weighted average nhumber of shares used in diluted EPS calculation {million) 1,012.7
2005 2005 2004 2004
Unaudited reconciliation of total equity Note im £m im £m
Total equity as reported under UK CAAP 3,070 2,971
IFRS adjustments:
‘Reversal of UK GAAP goodwill amortisation () 207 -
Amortisation of other intangibles 3(a) (4} -
Goodwill impairment on transition 3(a) (3) (3)
Pensions 3(b) {226) (227)
Lease incentives 3(d) 34) 34
Catalogue costs 3(e) (13) (14}
Deferred taxation 3th 186 210
Dividends 3(g) 202 191
Other 3 ] (5)
Total IFRS adjustments 314 118
Total equity under IFRS 3,384 3,089

* There is no reversal of goodwill amortisation on transition to IFRS as IFRS | allows the carrying value of goodwill under UK GAAP at
i April 2004 to be used as deemed cast,
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1. Summary of the impact of iFRS on the reported pesition and result for the year ended 31 March 2005 continued

UK GAAP iFRS IFRS
IFRS format* adjustments

Unaudited cash flow £m im im
Cash infiow from operating activities : 617 - 617
Cash outflow from investing activities (373) {(74) (447)
Cash outfiow from financing activities (340) - {340}
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents {96) 74 (7m
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 162 268 430
Cash and cash eqguivalents at end of year 66 194 260
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents {96) {74) {i70)
Decrease in debt (187) 74 {113)
Decrease in debt resulting from cash fiows (283) - (283)
Exchange and other movements 56 - 56
Movement in net debt (227} - (227}
Net debt at beginning of year (1,200) - (1,200)
Net debt at end of year (1,427 - (1,427)

* While none of the actounting changes on transition to IFRS affects cash, items within the cash flow statement have been reclassified under
the IFRS headings of operating, investing and financing activities, In addition, shert term investments with a maturity of three months or less
at the date of acquisition are reciassified from liguid resources and included within the JFRS definition of cash and cash equivalents.

2. Overview of IFRS adjustments

An explanation of the key effects of the transition 1o IFRS on the accounting policies of CUS is set out in note 3 below. The Group's full
accounting policies under IFRS are available on the GUS plc website at www.gusplc.com, or rmay be obtained from the Company's
registered office.

Transition to JFRS:

The date aof transition ta [FRS is 1 April 2004, This date is the beginning of the comparative period to the vear ending 31 March 2008,
being the first fuli year of reporting under IFRS. The Group has elected to use the foliowing exemptions available under IFRS 1 in preparing
these financial statements and in the reconciliations in note 1:

- IFRS 3 has not been applied retrospectively to business combinations that occurred before the date of transition;

- UK GAAP revaiuations made before the date of transition have been used as the deemed cost of certain properties at the date of
transition;

- All cumulative actuarial gains and losses at the date of transition on the valuation of post-employment benefit assets and fiabilities
have been recognised in full as an adjustment to equity;

- Cumulative transiation differences for ali foreign operations have been deemed te be nil at the date of transition. Any gain or [oss on a
subsequent disposal of a foreign operation shall exclude translation differences that arose before the date of transition,

As encouraged by IFRS 1, share based payment costs are calculated using full retrospective restatement, including awards granted before
7 November 2002,

Adaoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39:

In accordance with IFRS 1, GUS has applied the exemption from the requirement to restate comparative information under 1AS 32 and JIAS
39. in the comparative period, financial instruments that would fall within the scope of IAS 32 and IAS 39 have been accounted forin
accordance with the provisions of UK CAAP. The nature of the main adjustments that would have made the information comply with 1AS 32
and IAS 39 relate to:

- Derivative instruments: Under UK GAAP derivative instruments are not accounted for at fair value, but are generally treated as
off-batance sheet;

- Hedge accounting: Hedge designation under UK GAAP is less restrictive than JAS 39, thereby allowing designation of hedge
rejationships which may not meet the tests under (AS 39.
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3. Key changes to accounting policies

(a) Goodwill and other intangiblies

Under UK GAAP goodwill on acquisitions is capitalised and amartised over its astimated useful economic life of up to a maximum of 20
years. Under IFRS additional specific intangible assets are identified and recognised on acquisitions, resulting in a reduced leve! of
goodwill. Goodwill is no longer amortised but is subject to an annual impairment review. kentified intangible assets are amortised over
their estimated useful economic life.

{b) Pensions
Under UK GAAP the Group accounts for pensions in accordance with SSAP 24, taking annual charges to the profit and loss account without
accounting for market valuation changes.

Accounting for pensions under 1AS 19 is similar to the accounting for pensions under FRS 17. 1AS 12 was amended in December 2004 and
the Group has assumed that the European Commission will adopt the amendment.

Under IFRS any scheme deficit/surplus is brought on batance sheet, the current service cost is charged to the income statement and any
experience gains and losses are taken 10 equity after being recognised in the Group statement of recognised income and expense.

{¢) Share based payments

IFRS requires that the fair value of eguity instruments granted to employees for their services be recognised over the vesting period in the
income statement. Under UX GAAP, the basis on which such costs are recognised differs from IFRS and compensation charges are not
recognised in respect of all such schemes.

(d) Lease incentives
Under UK GAAP property lease incentives are recognised over the period from the inception of the lease up to the first rent review. Under
IFRS incentives are recognised over the life of the lease.

(e) Catalogue costs
Under UK GAAP the Group expenses catalogue costs over the neriod in which the catalogues generate revenue. Under IFRS catalogue costs
do not meet the recognition criteria for an asset and are expensed as incurred.

(f) Deferred taxation
Under UK GAAP deferred taxation is recognised on timing differences and the provision is discounted to present value. Under IFRS deferred
taxation is provided on ali temporary differences, rather than just timing differences, but discounting of the provision is not permitted.

{g) Dividends
Under UK GAAP dividends are provided for in the year in respact of which they are proposed. Under IFRS dividends are recognised in the
period in which they are approved.

{h} Other
Other differences comprise several other differences that are not individually significant,

4, Share based payments

On transition to IFRS, the Group has elected to apply IFRS 2 to those share based payments granted before 7 November 2002 but not
vested at the transition date (1 April 2004). The Group considers that retrospective application hefore 7 November 2002 provides a better
indication of how past and future results are affected in relation to the year on year level of share option grants.

The fair values of ail share option grants made to date are shown beiow:

(@) Options and awards in respact of the Ordinary shares of the Company
(iy The GUS plc Savings Related Share Option Scheme, The GUS plc Savings Related Share Option Scheme (lreland}

and The GUS plc Internationa! Savings Related Share OQption Scheme Grant date Fair value
Three year 9 February 2082 166p
Five year 9 February 2002 176p
Three year 5 july 2002 15%p
Five year S Jjuly 2002 182p
Theee year 26 june 2003 1892p
Five year 26 June 2003 209p
Three year 26 june 2004 235p
Five year 26 June 2004 267p
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4. Share based payments contihued

(i) The 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes Grant dare Fair value
9 December 1998 177p
23 June 1999 192p
8 December 1999 98p
7 April 2000 118p
7 August 2000 103p
6 December 2000 124p
11 june 200! 161p
17 December 2001 151p
6 June 2002 139p
23 December 2002 128p
19 June 2003 130p
2 December 2003 160p
1 june 2004 171p
24 November 2004 162p
{iii) The North America Stock Option Plan Grant date Fair value
14 june 2000 1ip
6 December 2000 122p
11 June 2001 158p
6 june 2002 135p
23 December 2002 127p
19 Jure 2003 126p
2 December 2003 154p
1 June 2004 165p
24 Novemnber 2004 155p
(iv} The GUS plc Performance Share Plan and The GUS plc Executive Long Term Incentive Plans Grant date Fair value
1 April 2000 229
11 June 200 377p
6 June 2002 389p
31 luly 2002 292p
19 June 2003 398p
1 June 2004 494p
(v} The GUS plc Co-Investment Plan Grant tate Fair value
17 June 2002 572p
20 June 2003 582p
11 June 2004 824p
{b) Options and awards in respect of ordinary shares of Burberry Group pic

Scheme Grant date Fair value
The Burberry IPO Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan 1T July 2002 218p
The Burberry 2004 Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan 2 August 2004 300p
The Burberry Senior Executive IPQ Share Option Scheme 11 july 2002 76p
The Burberry Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2002 12 june 2003 87p
The Burberry Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2002 2 August 2004 107p
The Burberry Group plc Co-Investment Plan 29 July 2004 380p
All Employee Share Plan 12 july 2002 225p
All Employee Share Plan 30 August 2003 325p
All Employee Share Plan July/August 2004 375p

{c) Qprtions and awards in respect of ordinary shares of Lewis Group Limited
Fair vaiue
Scheme Grant date Rand
The Lewis Executive IPO Restricted Share Scheme (3 year) 4 October 2004 27.0
The Lewis Executive IPO Restricted Share Scheme (4 year} 4 Qctober 2004 26.0
The Lewis Executive tPQ Restricted Share Scheme (5 year) 4 Ocrober 2004 25.1
The Lewis Executive Share Option Scheme (3 yearn) 4 October 2004 5.3
The Lewis Executive Share Qptioh Scherae {4 yean 4 Qctober 2004 e.1
The Lewis Executive Share Option Scheme (5 year) 4 October 2004 6.7
The Lewis Ali Employee Share Scheme (2 year) 4 October 2004 27.9
The Lewis All Employee Share 5cheme (3 year} 4 October 2004 27.0
The Lewis All Employee Share Scheme (4 year) 4 October 2004 26.0
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Principal subsidiary undertakings

Percentage
Lountry of of ordinary
At 31 March 2005 incarporation shares held

Argos Retail Group

Argos Limited Great Britain 100%
Homebase Limited Great Britain 100%
ARG Card Services Limited Creat Britain 100%
ARG Personal Loans Limited Great Britain 100%
ARG Insurance Services Limited Creat Britain 100%
Hampden Group Limited Great Britain 100%
Argos Retail Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100%
Argos Distributors {lreland) Limited Republic of lreland 100%
Momebase House and Garden Centre Limited Republic of lreland 100%
Wehkamp B.V The Netherlands L00%
ARG Procurement Consultancy (Shanghai} Limited China 100%
Experian

Experian Limited Great Britain 100%
QAS Limited Great Britain 100%
Experian Holding France 5.A. France 100%
Experian Holding A/S Denmark 100%
Experian A/S Denmark 100%
Creditinform AS Norway 100%
Consumerlnfo.com UsA 100%
Experian Information Solutions inc. USA 100%
Experian Services Corporation USA 100%
Experian Marketing Solutions Inc. USA 100%
Burberry

Burberry Group plc Creat Britain 06%
Burberry Limited Great Britain 66%
Burberry ttaly Retail Limited (reat Britain 66%
The Scotch House Limited Great Britain 66%
Woodrow-Universal Limited Great Britain 66%
Burberry Limited USA 66%
Burberry (Wholesale) Limited USA 66%
Hampstead Properties Inc, usa 66%
Burberry Realty, Inc. USA 66%
Burberry France S.A. France 66%
Burberry (Deutschiand) GmbH Cermany B66%
Burberry italy SRL Italy 66%
Burberry {Spain) S.A. Spain 66%
Burberry (Spaim Rertail S.L. Spain 66%
Mercader y Casadevall S.A. Spain 66%
Burberry (Suisse) 5.A. Switzerland 66%
Burberry Pacific Pty Limited Australia 66%
Burberry Asia Limited Hong Kong 66%
Burberry fapan KK Japan 66%
Burberry Korea Limited Korea 66%
Burberry {(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 66%
Burberry (Singapore) Distribution Company Pte Limited Singapore BE%
Lewis

Lewis Group Limited South Africa 54%

Detaiis of interests in associated undertakings are given within Note 15 on page 69.

None of the above companies is directly held by GUS pic.
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Shareholder information

Ordinary shareholders
There were 49,223 hofders of Ordinary shares at 31 March 2005 and their hoidings car be analysed as foliows:

Number of Parcentage Number of Percentage
sharenolders of total number Ordinary shares of Ordinary
of sharenolders ‘000s shares
Over 1,000,000 182 0.4 731,101 71.9
100,001 - 1,008,000 538 1.1 173,575 17.0
10,001 - 100,000 [,530 EN 46,179 4.5
5,001 - 10,0600 1,979 4.0 13,886 1.4
2,001 - 5,000 7,484 15.2 23,146 2.3
1-2,000 37,513 76.2 29,349 2.9
49,223 100.0 1,017,236 100.0

Shareholders are further anaiysed as follows:
Number of Percentage Numtber of Fercentage
shareholders of total number Ordinary shares of Ordinary
of sharehoiders '000s shares
Corporates 11,906 24.2 949,657 931.4
Individuals 37,317 75.8 67,579 6.6

49,223 100.0 1,017,236 100.C

Registrar

Enquiries concerning holdings of the Company’s shares and notification of the hoider’s change of address should be referred to Lioyds TSE
Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA (telephone: 0870 600 3987). A text phone facility for those with hearing
difficulties is avaifable by telephoning 0870 600 3450.

Electronic commaunications

Shareholders can arrange to receive future GUS annual and interim raports electronicaliy and to submit voting instructions onfine at
shareholider meetings by registering at www.shareview.co.uk/gusplc. This service is provided by Lloyds TSB Registrars and gives access to
a comprehensive range of shareholder information, includirg dividend payment details.

GUS website
A full range of investor retations information on GUS is available at www.gusplc.com. This includes webcasts of results presentations given
to analysts and fund managers together with the siides accompanying those presentations.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

The GUS Dividend Reinvestment Plan ('DRIP’) enables shareholders to use their cash dividends to purchase GUS shares, Shareholders who
wish to participate in the DRIP for the first time, in respect of the final dividend to be paid on 5 August 2005, should return a completed
and signed DRIP mandate form to be received by the Registrar, by no later than 15 July 2005, For further details please contact Lioyds TSB
Registrars, The Causeway, Warthing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA (telephone: 0870 241 3018).

Share price information
The tatest GUS share price is available on the GUS website (www.gusplc.com} and also on the Financial Times Cityline Service (telephone:
0906 843 2740 {cails charged at 60p per minute)).

Share dealing facility
Existing or potential investars can buy or sell GUS shares using a postal dealing service provided by JPMorgan Cazenove Limited,
20 Moorgate, London EC2R GDA (1elephone: 020 7155 5155).

Financial caiendar and Annual General Meeting arrangements .
Annual General Meeting and first quarter trading update 20 July 2005

Final dividend record date 8 July 2005
Final dividerd to be paid 5 August 2005
First half trading update 12 October 200%
Interim results announcement 17 November 2005
Third guarter trading update january 2009
Second half trading update April 2006
Preliminary announcement of annual results 24 May 2006

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the Radisson SAS Portman Hotel, 22 Portman Street, London WIH 9FL and begins at 11.30am
on Wednesday, 20 july 2005.

Registerad office
GUS plc, One Stanhope Gate, London, W1K 1AF




Burberry

18-22 Haymarket
London SW1Y 4DQ
United Kingdom

T +44 (0)20 7968 0000
www.burberry.com
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MK9 2NW

United Kingdom

T +44 (0)1908 690333
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America

475 Anton Blvd

Costa Mesa CA 92626
United States

T +1 714 830 7000
F+1 714 830 2448
www.experian.com

Experian International
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Talbot Street
Nottingham NG80 1TH
United Kingdom

T +44 (0)115 941 0888
F+44 ()115 934 4505
www.experian.com
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